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Re-enactors are dedicated to adding a sense of authenticity to celebrations such as Emancipation
Day at Oakley Cabin.
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The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning
Commission (“the Commission”) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 is hereby submitted. This Report
was prepared by the Commission's Finance Department, in accordance with the provisions of Atrticle 28,
Sections 2-113 and 7-107, of the Annotated Code of Maryland. Responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of all the information presented, including all disclosures, rests with the Commission. We assert that
to the best of our knowledge and belief, the data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects and is
reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and changes in financial position of the
governmental activities, business-type activities and various funds of the Commission in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). All disclosures necessary
to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Commission's financial activities have been included.

To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the Commission has
established an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the Commission are protected
from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP. The internal control structure is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and (2)
the evaluation of costs and benefits requires business judgment by management.

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. The Commission selected
the accounting firm of Clifton Gunderson LLP. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the Commission for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 are free of
material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The
independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unqualified opinion that the Commission’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 are
fairly presented in conformance with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first
component of the Financial Section of this Report.

The Commission is also required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the
Single Audit Act of 1996, as revised and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. This audit is issued separately. The
Commission is also required to file a Uniform Financial Report with the Maryland State Department of
Legislative Services by January 1 of each year.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor's report and
provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A complement
this letter of transmittal, and should be read in conjunction with it.

The Commission

The Commission is a body corporate of the State of Maryland established by the Maryland General Assembly
in 1927. The Commission is a bi-county agency serving both Montgomery and Prince George's Counties. Itis
empowered to acquire, develop, maintain and administer a regional system of parks in the defined
Metropolitan District in Montgomery and Prince George's Counties, and to prepare and administer a general
plan for the physical development of a defined Regional District for the two Counties. The Commission also
conducts the recreation program for Prince George's County.



The annual budget serves as the foundation for the Commission’s financial planning and control. The
Commission maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget approved by the Montgomery County and Prince George's County governments.
Activities of the General Fund, which include a transfer for debt service expenditures, are included in the
annual appropriated budget. Project length financial plans are adopted for the Capital Projects Funds. The
level of budgetary control (the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is
established within each individual account in the General Fund. Budget-to-actual presentations for all five
accounts of the General Fund are presented in Note 7 in the basic financial statements.

The Commission maintains an internal auditing division that reports to the Secretary-Treasurer. This staff
performs internal audits throughout the Commission's offices and facilities. All internal control evaluations
occur within the above framework. We believe that the Commission's internal accounting controls adequately
safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The Commission’s financial condition is positive as a result of a stable primary revenue source, property
taxes, and the Commission’s conservative fiscal management policies. The assessable bases in both
counties continue to experience growth, and collections, including interest and penalties as a percent of the
levy, are consistently at or above 99%. The Commission prepares quarterly financial projections to help guide
current year expenditures based upon anticipated revenue sources. In addition, the Commission maintains a
comprehensive fund balance policy to provide a cushion against unforeseen expenditures or revenue
shortfalls in each fund. At June 30, 2009, the Commission’s General Fund budget basis ending fund balance
was $112.1 million.

Along with the Commission’s internal financial management policies, spending affordability guidelines continue
to be provided by Montgomery County Government for the Commission’s Montgomery County operations, and
by a Spending Affordability Committee for the Commission’s Prince George’s County operations.

Montgomery and Prince George's Counties are adjacent to Washington, D. C. and both of these counties
have an economic base that is centered on vital government bureaus, major corporations and higher
educational institutions. Maryland remains the richest state in the nation, according to the latest U. S. Census
data. The state’s median household income for 2008 was $70,545, an increase of about $1,500 from the
previous year and Montgomery County regularly ranks among the top 10 wealthiest counties in the nation.

Like other jurisdictions across the nation both counties are impacted by the current fiscal environment. As of
June 2009, the nation’s unemployment rate was 9.4 percent, whereas Montgomery and Prince George's rates
were 5.4 percent and 6.9 percent, respectively. These counties have a combined population base of 1.8
million people and have almost 1.0 million employed as of fiscal year 2009.

According to the U. S. Census Bureau, Montgomery County received $7.6 billion in procurement contracts
from the federal government for fiscal year 2008, which represents an increase of 10.9 percent over the
previous fiscal year and Prince George's County received $4.9 billion, which was an increase of 3.9 percent
over the previous year. The increase in federal spending boosted economic activity in the Washington area
and contributed to the economy’s resilience to negative forces that dragged the national economy downward
in the second half of the fiscal year.

The Center for Regional Analysis, George Mason University, produces the Washington Area Leading Index,
which suggests that the region's economy has begun to improve albeit the recovery may be a slow and
lengthy process through 2010.

More detailed information on the financial outlook is provided in the Management's Discussion and Analysis
section of this Report.



Long-term Financial Planning

The Commission prepares a six-year projection of results for its Prince George’s County operaticns, which is
reviewed with the Prince George's County Spending Affordability Committee. A high level long-term plan is
prepared for its Montgomery County operations by Montgomery County government, with Commission input.

The Commission has an established fund balance policy of designating 3% to 5% of budgeted expenditures
for contingencies. In Montgomery County a designation of 3% of budgeted FY2010 expenditures was made,
while in Prince Gecrge's County this percentage was 5%. In both Counties, there are undesignated fund
balances, which could also be used to provide funding for unexpected needs.

There are significant undesignated fund balances in Prince George's County ($72.2 million) which are planned
to be used over the six-year period to maintain a stable tax rate for the Commission in that county.

Major Initiatives

The Commission enjoyed an excellent program year in fiscal year 2009. The major accomplishments of the
Commission are set forth in the Program Highlights section of this Report.

Other Information

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Commission for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, The Commission has received this award continuously since fiscal year
1973. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the Commission must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This Report satisfied both GAAP and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We helieve that aur current Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements, and we
are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another Certificate.

In addition, the Commission also received the GFOA's Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation for its
annual budget for fiscal year 2009. The Commission has received this award continuously since fiscal year
1987. In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the Commission's budget
document was judged to be proficient in several categories including policy documentation, financial planning
and organization.
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Commission Background and Organization

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission is a body corporate of the State of
Maryland, established by the Maryland General Assembly in 1927. The laws governing the Commission
were codified in 1959, recodified in 1975 to be Article 66D of the Annotated Code of Maryland and again
in 1983, to be Article 28.

The Commission is a bi-county agency, empowered to acquire, develop, maintain and administer a
regional system of parks in a defined Metropolitan District within the Maryland Counties (Montgomery and
Prince George’s) adjacent to the District of Columbia. The Commission is also empowered to prepare
and administer a general plan for the physical development of a larger Regional District in the same area.

As development and urbanization of the area have progressed, the two Districts have been enlarged by
the General Assembly. They now embrace all of Maryland’'s Montgomery and Prince George’s Counties,
except for certain incorporated municipalities in each County and, for the Metropolitan District only,
Election Districts No. 4 and No. 8 in Prince George’'s County.

Responsibility for public recreation in Prince George’'s County and the County Recreation Department
was transferred to the Commission in July, 1970 as a result of legislative action. This legislation provided
that taxes to support recreation be imposed County-wide and that the County Council may require the
Commission to institute new recreation programs. The County Executive appoints a Parks and
Recreation Advisory Board, which works closely with the Commission in setting policy.

The Commission consists of ten members, five appointed by Montgomery County and five by Prince
George’s County. In Montgomery County, all five of the Commissioners are appointed by the County
Council and confirmed by the County Executive. Montgomery County Commissioners may hot be
appointed for more than two consecutive terms. In Prince George’s County, all five of the Commissioners
are appointed by the County Executive and confirmed by the County Council. Each County designates
one of its Commissioners for the position of Chairman of their respective Planning Board. The
Commission elects one of such designees as its Chairman and the other as its Vice-Chairman. Under
the Commission’s rules of procedure, the Chairmanship and Vice-Chairmanship of the Commission rotate
annually between the two designees. Terms of office are staggered and no more than three members
from each County may belong to the same political party.

The Commission coordinates and acts on matters of interest to both Counties. Two regional offices are
maintained, one in each County. The Commission meets once each month regularly, the site of the
meetings alternating between the two regional offices. The members of the Commission from each
County serve as separate Planning Boards to facilitate, review and administer the matters affecting only
their respective County. To carry out their functions, the County Planning Boards meet at least once a
week. The County Councils set priorities for the Planning Boards’ park and planning operations through
their annual determination and periodic review of the Commission’s operating and capital improvement
budgets and work programs.

The Commission administers a park system that currently contains over 61,000 acres. It is composed of
stream-valley parks, large regional parks, neighborhood parks and park-school recreational areas. Its
staff consists of over 2,218 career employees - planners, park and recreation administrators, park police
and administrative staff. In addition, it employs approximately 5,460 seasonal workers, primarily for its
numerous park and recreation programs.

The operating and administrative functions of the Commission are financed primarily by property taxes
levied for the Commission by the two Counties. The Commission has the authority to sell general
obligation bonds to fund approved park acquisition and development projects.
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FY 2009 PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS

In fiscal year 2009, The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission (M-NCPPC) fulfilled its mission to
provide top-quality land use through planning and parks and recreation services to the citizens of Prince George’s and
Montgomery Counties, while also assisting both County governments in dealing with economically challenging times.
As the only five-time gold medal winner for excellence in parks and recreation in the United States and one of only 78
agencies in the country accredited by the Commission for Accreditation of Park and Recreation Agencies (CAPRA), M-
NCPPC continued to receive national recognition for its programs from a variety of professional organizations,
including the American Planning Association and the Maryland Recreation and Parks Association. In 2009, this
national recognition was enhanced through the CAPRA re-accreditation process and by re-accreditation of the Prince
George’s County division of the Maryland National Capital Park Police by the Commission on Accreditation for Law
Enforcement Agencies, Inc. (CALEA). During the fiscal year, M-NCPPC continued to build on its record of
accomplishment and leadership, while positioning itself to move forward and meet future challenges by adopting new
ideas and approaches to community collaboration. Increased emphasis was placed on community outreach, including
re-vamped interactive web-based communications. Marketing efforts were directed toward specific groups including
seniors, youth, families, ethnic and immigrant populations, and those with special interests and needs. Prince George’s
County Department of Parks and Recreation newest venture, “Parks and Recreation: 2010 and Beyond”, is designed
to help develop a strategic plan for where the Department, its programs and facilities should be headed in 2010 and
into the future. An ambitious and wide-ranging community visioning exercise, “Envision Prince George’'s”,
spearheaded by the Prince George’s County Planning Department, was begun and will help determine the directions
in which the County will proceed. The Montgomery County Planning Department held several listening sessions with
the public to develop recommendations for the far-reaching 2009-2011 Growth Policy.

Prince George's County Department of Parks and Recreation

Meeting Customer Needs through Innovative Service: The Department continued to provide comprehensive park
and recreation programs as well as county-wide facilities and services. An aggressive bilingual marketing campaign
focused on youth to get them involved and give them safe places to meet and enjoy leisure time. The customer base
grew to 408,824 individual clients registered in the SMARTIink database, the Customer Service Help Desk expanded
as the main portal for resident inquiries and requests for service, and issuance of permits for rental of park buildings,
shelters and fields was added to the SMARTIink system. The Active Citizen Response system that tracks and resolves
inquiries and requests expanded. Weekly e-mail newsletters, the web site, and community relations outreach meetings
enabled up to date information sharing. Partners 'n Parks continued relationships with IKEA, REI, AARP and the
University of Maryland, and grants were received from state and national organizations.

Enhancing the Park System: Staff used the geographic information system (GIS) and project management software
to effectively manage 26,752 acres of parkland and oversee the planning, design, and construction of capital projects.
New initiatives included a strategic land acquisition program, and staff training in team building and project
management. New construction included: the Potomac River Waterfront Park, the “green” Vansville Community
Center, and the Sportsplex concession and restroom. Major renovations were completed at South Bowie and Upper
Marlboro Community Centers, and the Gwendolyn Britt Senior Activity Center. Construction is in progress on the Fort
Washington Forest Community Center. Six park buildings and 10 park sites were renovated, and 10 playgrounds were
replaced. Program Open Space provided $2.73 million for park acquisition, and a Department of Aging grant of
$415,000 will be utilized at the to-be-built Beltsville/Laurel Senior Activity Center.

Planning and Providing Recreational Opportunities for All: Over 21,000 youth enrolled in summer camps,
playgrounds and teen centers, with community partners providing funding for 150 children needing assistance. More
than 200 sports teams played in tournaments, and sports leagues attracted more than 30,000 participants. The 27th-
annual Washington Area Metropolitan Youth Super Bowl was held at the Prince George’s Sports & Learning Complex,
and the Maryland Maniacs Arena Football continued at The Show Place Arena. Youth enrolled in record nhumbers in
the First Tee golf program. The new Health and Wellness Operation and programs like the family walking program
were initiated. Free summer concerts at numerous parks and facilities delighted thousands, and thousands more
enjoyed events such as Festival Hispano, the Festival of Nations, Kinderfest, Juneteenth, A Save the Block Party!, in
conjunction with the National Community Reinvestment Coalition, the Jug Bay 10K run/walk, the Beltway BBQ
Showdown, and the Festival of Lights at Watkins Regional Park.
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Serving the County’s Youth: With the Youth Action Plan as a guide, diverse programming and positive experiences
and opportunities were offered, including free ID cards, the free late-night Safe Summer program, the Xtreme Teens
program, the award-winning Café Groove, the Positive Pathways Program for pre-teens, and the “Talk Up, Not Down”
residency camp serving at-risk youth. Service to Latino youth included the third successful Quinceanera. The Prince
George’s Employees’ Child Care Center and the facility at Glenridge Elementary School were accredited by the
Maryland State Department of Education. Lunches were served to needy children at 77 summer program sites, and
pre-school, before- and after- care, and Kids’ Day Out programs continued at facilities countywide. A pilot program for
the Headquarters for United Benefits program was offered at Kentland Community Center, part of the vision to make
M-NCPPC facilities the “HUB” of community activities and provide a rounded offering of County social services.

Supporting Arts and Cultural Heritage: New programs and performances were successfully launched at the
Department’s three full-time arts centers, resulting in record class registrations and revenue. The popular annual Black
History Month celebration continued, with the Expressions of a People festival attracting a record number. Montpelier
Arts Center expanded programs in new classrooms, sold out its ever popular jazz series, and released its 6" CD, on
the Jazzmont label. Expressions: Talk Up Not Down overnight camp attracted teens from throughout the County, and
culminated in a compelling performance. Historic rental properties were heavily booked despite the economic down
turn, and a research study on building rental clientele during non-peak hours supported a “one-stop” shopping concept
to provide more expansive services to meet business and non-profit needs. Prince George's Equestrian Center
activities increased by 10 percent, and the Show Place Arena won industry recognition with the prestigious Prime Site
Award.

Preserving and Protecting Natural and Historical Resources: To help youth experience the outdoors and grow an
appreciation for the environment, partnerships and grants were used to offer naturalist-led opportunities and programs.
Innovative educational programs continued at museums, nature centers, waterfront parks and natural areas. Special
events, conservation and reforestation projects, river and stream valley clean-ups, and continued partnerships led to
environmental improvements. Outdoor recreation opportunities expanded through cooperative projects like the
Patuxent Water Trail. Awareness of African American history was raised through cooperative efforts with the African
American Heritage Preservation Group. Stewardship of historic sites included maintenance, restoration and
stabilization projects. Partnerships with organizations including the: Patuxent River Keepers, Anacostia Watershed
Society, Prince George’s Historical Society, Patuxent 4-H Foundation, and Boy and Girl Scouts of America helped
promote, protect and restore the County’s rich natural and historical heritage

Keeping Parks Secure: The Park Police ensured the safety of patrons using sophisticated technologies including
Mobile Data Terminals, in-car digital video cameras, T-3 all-terrain vehicles and remote digital video surveillance
equipment. The Community Services Unit prepared activities and programs to better serve patrons, the canine
program helped combat crime, a new unit patrolled the Potomac River Waterfront Community Park and Potomac
Heritage Trails across the Woodrow Wilson Bridge, and officers participated in regional area task forces to combat
drug abuse and trafficking and to address gang problems. Park Police Community Volunteer Academy (PPVA)
members continued to assist with services like free fingerprinting and Park Watch, and several trained as Community
Emergency Response Team (CERT) members. In 2008, the President's Council on Service and Civic Participation
awarded the Gold Unit Presidential Service Award to the PPVA for their activities.

Maintaining Parks and Facilities: The Maintenance and Development Division undertook a major Infrastructure and
Inventory Assessment of its park structures, inspecting 150 sites to identify current conditions and obtain life cycle
replacement information for planning and budgeting purposes. Various repairs and renovations were completed. A
new online work order system improved communication in the field and provided valuable feedback on the status of
each of the more than 5,000 requests received annually. Fleet Management completed more than 6,600 work orders,
continued upgrades to Commission fuel sites to comply with environmental regulations, and planned for replacement
of the current fuel management system with a new more efficient system to more accurately account for fuel
consumption. More than 60 vehicles were replaced with newer, more fuel efficient models and hybrids to help improve
air quality throughout the metropolitan region. The Department continued to partner with the County by maintaining
four primary routes in hazardous snow and ice conditions.

Prince George’s County Planning Department
Communicating with the Public: The Planning Department was the lead agency in hosting the Second Economic

Outlook Forum: Securing Prince George’s County’s Place in the Shifting Economic Landscape. This collaborative
outreach engaged nearly 300 people in a communitywide dialogue on the economic vitality and future direction of the
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county and was used to launch Envision Prince George’s, a major community visioning project. Envision Prince
George’s released its first newsletter at the end of the fiscal year, with wide distribution to an estimated 5,000, and
inserted information in the quarterly Guide publication of the Department of Parks and Recreation, reaching an
estimated 200,000. In collaboration with the University of Maryland, Morgan State University and Maryland Department
of Planning, a Planning 101 educational session for approximately 130 municipal and other officials was convened to
enhance knowledge and participation in planning processes and decisions. Staff and urban planners from other
organizations provided an orientation to social studies teachers in the County School System on land-use planning and
information tools designed to facilitate understanding and use of urban planning as a curriculum in the classroom.

Planning for Quality Communities: In FY09, work continued on Master Plans, Sectional Map Amendments (SMAS),
Zoning Map Amendments (ZMAs), specialized planning studies, and Planning Assistance to Municipalities and
Communities (PAMC) projects. Community planning projects included: adopting the Sub region 5, Sub region 6, and
Marlboro Pike Master Plans and SMAs, and completing the Upper Marlboro Revitalization Action Plan. Consultant
work continued on the following studies: County Housing Affordability; Trends and Current Status of the County
Workforce Housing Market; Industrial and Employment Land Needs; the Regional Economic Development Incentives
Strategic Plan and Best Practices Survey; and the International Office and Warehouse Business Incubator Facility
Feasibility Study. Staff completed the preliminary Landover Gateway Sector Plan and SMA and the Port Towns Sector
Plan and SMA. In addition the following plans were completed and await Planning Board and District Council
approval: Takoma/Langley Crossroads Sector Plan; Glenn Dale-Seabrook-Lanham Sector Plan and SMA; Bowie State
University MARC Station Sector Plan and SMA; New Carrollton Metro Station Transit District Development Plan; and
the Sub region 4 Master Plan/SMA. Work also continued on the functional plan for Historic Sites and Districts; Central
US 1 Corridor Sector Plan and SMA; New Mixed-Use Zoning Tools Project; Central Kenilworth Avenue Revitalization
Study; and Westphalia Public Facilities Implementation Study, and contracts were let for the Central Annapolis Road
Sector Plan and SMA and the City of Mount Rainer MUTC.

Providing for Public Facilities and Services: Staff members provided public facility technical support for all active
master plans. Staff also assisted the Fire/EMS Department with a study of population density by First Due stations,
assisted the Board of Education with the annual Educational Faculties Master Plan, coordinated the Planning
Department’s analysis for the Water and Sewer Plan Amendment cycles, and provided the Memorial Library System
with information on internet usage in the public libraries. Staff conducted and presented the final results of a Solid
Waste Transfer Station Siting Criteria and Public Participation Project.

Developing Efficient Transportation Systems: Studies for the Purple Line and the US 301 Waldorf Area continued.
Public workshops on the Countywide Master Plan of Transportation (MPOT) were concluded and the plan was drafted.
The Preliminary MPOT was adopted by the Planning Board. Support was provided to the County’s Bicycle and Trail
Advisory Group, the Transit Services and Operations Plan, the Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC) impact study,
the Transportation Planning Board Technical Committee, and Bicycle/Pedestrian Subcommittee. In addition, staff
processed 24 traffic impact studies for development activities. A consultant study to develop Alternative Adequate
Public Transportation Facilities Requirements and Review Procedures to address traffic congestion in targeted growth
centers and corridors was initiated.

Preserving and Protecting the Environment and Historic Properties: The Countywide Green Infrastructure Plan
was implemented through review of land development applications, and updating of various master and sector plans.
Staff assisted with development and implementation of a GIS model for floodplain analysis, and revised proposed
legislation and a technical manual for the Woodland Conservation Ordinance based on public comment. Development
review activities focused on use of natural resource inventories, and archeological review of subdivision applications
continued. The Water Resources Functional Master Plan was initiated and work continued on the: Postbellum
Archeological Resources Guide; Historic Properties Database Update; African American Historic Inventory
Development; and Environmental Standards for Historic Properties projects. The Historic Sites and Districts Plan
Amendment were initiated, and the Ante-Bellum Plantation Research Guide and List of Free Blacks were finalized.
Staff supported the Historic Properties Grant Committee by reviewing and field surveying applications; 16 applications
were approved and awards successfully signed. Staff provided reports and recommendations to the County’s Historic
Preservation Commission on development cases, Historic Area Work Permits, and Preservation Tax Credit
applications.

Information Technology Advancements: Several new projects were initiated in FY09. The GIS Section executed

contracts to acquire 2009 color aerial photography and a new countywide topography layer, to add several years of
historical aerial imagery to the GIS database and to acquire professional services to help the Department create the
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capacity to perform 3D GIS analysis. A major upgrade in document management software was initiated that will
convert our existing image storage and delivery system to a web-based environment. This will improve internal
network efficiency and make access to the document database over the Internet feasible. Final delivery of these
products and services are expected in FY10.

Promoting Responsible Development: Staff reviewed and analyzed several hundred applications for zoning map
amendments, special exceptions, conceptual and detailed site plans, and preliminary and final plats of subdivision,
along with over 10,500 permits, and provided expert professional advice to decision-makers. Several development
proposals were approved in major transportation corridors, including: the Konterra Town Center, detailed site plan for
mixed-use development comprising 2,161 multifamily dwellings, 2.2M square feet of retail and office space, and 300
hotel rooms located along the 1-95 corridor; and the Westphalia Center conceptual site plan for 5,000 dwelling units,
1.4M square feet of retail space, 4.5M square feet of office space and 600 hotel rooms, located northeast of
Pennsylvania Avenue (MD 4) and Westphalia Road. In addition, major improvements to the development review
process were initiated with extensive public outreach efforts to comprehensively update the Zoning Ordinance,
Subdivision Regulations, and Landscape Manual.

Montgomery County Department of Parks

Park Projects and Acquisitions: Acquisitions reached near record-breaking levels as the Department acquired for
nearly 247 acres of parkland in FY09. Acquisitions included land for Upper Paint Branch Stream Valley, Fenton Street
Urban Park, Piedmont Crossing Local Park, and Black Hill Regional Park. Projects completed in FY09 include: Fit-out
of Community Center at Wisconsin Place, Broad Acres Local Park, Matthew Henson Trail, Lake Needwood Dam
Remediation, Pope Farm Utilities Upgrade, Ballfield Lighting at Olney Manor Recreational Park, Stream Restoration
Projects at Hoyles Mill Road, Waverly-Schuylkill Local Park and Pennyfield Boat Ramp. The Wheaton tennis facility
opened in January 2009. The $1.7 million project replaced the outer fabric and installed a new heating and air
conditioning system and better florescent lighting. Opening day festivities were attended by over 400 patrons.

Reduced Expenditures: Funding has not kept pace with the growing number of parks and acreage maintained by the
Department. In an effort to do more with less, the Department has implemented a number of cost-saving measures,
such as implementing a retirement incentive plan, freezing non-critical positions, and narrowing the focus to the most
mission-critical tasks. Parks officials have used non-career staffing, where appropriate, increasing the use of seasonal
staff, job corps, volunteers, interns, and multi-cultural youth summer job initiatives. In addition, officials began
maintenance efficiency measures, including: Designated no-mow areas, removal of trash cans at local park ball fields
during non-peak months, changes in landscaping and horticultural programs, third-party charges for special events,
and fleet reductions and energy efficient replacements of vehicles and equipment, including bio-diesel vehicles. Park
Police implemented Intelligence Led Policing, a new approach to deploy resources to problem areas before they
become crime hotspots. The strategies analyze crime reports and call for service, citizen input, and Park Police and
employee observations to identify and target areas with the most activity. This puts more officers in targeted areas
during targeted times. A new Rolling Roll Call has also been instituted, allowing officers to begin their shifts directly on
their assigned beats instead of reporting to a designated location, saving time, fuel and vehicle usage. Most
importantly, officers are able to provide more direct patrol time within their assigned beats.

The Energy Management Program has reduced consumption since 2004 by focusing on implementing projects that
reduce energy consumption. The projected reduction in energy consumption reduction for FY09 is 9 percent or about
$148,900 below budget. The cumulative consumption reduction savings (not including the avoided costs) over the five
year period has been $1,516,000.

The Recycling and Solid Waste Management Program has increased recycling rates from 32 percent in 2003 to 68
percent in 2009. The Water Conservation Program reduced consumption since 2004 by 18 percent and focused on
implementing programs and projects with a long-term goal to reduce potable water usage for irrigation by 50 percent
by 2015. The projected overall reduction in costs in FY09 is estimated to be $28,900. Staff implemented water
conservation programs such as the installation of waterless urinals in selected park facilities especially at remote
locations.

The Green Parks and Facilities Management Program assesses major facilities to determine steps required to meet

U.S. Green Building Council Leadership in Energy & Environmental Design (LEED®) Green Building Rating System
for commercial existing and new buildings. Based on the energy management program consumption reductions over
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the past five years and the initial improvements in the energy efficiency of the transportation fleet in FY09, green house
gas emissions have been reduced by an estimated 7.1 percent, which is the equivalent of 1,014 tons in CO? SO?
NOx, and Hg emissions.

Protect and Interpret Cultural Resources: Rehabilitation of historic structures has progressed steadily in FY09. The
Seneca Stone Barn, a rare stone stable, was restored to its original appearance after years of being on the verge of
collapse. The Zeigler Log House was restored to reveal two hidden log rooms from 1823. The Josiah Henson Site
(formerly “Uncle Tom’s Cabin”) continues to attract hundreds of visitors at its special events. An adjacent property was
acquired to expand what had been a one-acre park. Moreover, the Department secured a $100,000 Save America’s
Treasures grant to plan for the permanent exhibition and opening of this site to the public. The Underground Railroad
Experience Trail and Oakley Cabin continue to attract regular visitors and provide special events during the year. The
Department has just been awarded a $50,000 Maryland Heritage Areas Authority Grant to professionalize the
interpretation at the Underground Railroad Experience Trail and Oakley Cabin.

New Program Initiatives: The Community Garden Program promotes the growing of local produce, healthy living and
fosters social interaction within the community. The program uses existing park land, resources and funding to create
neighborhood gardening sites. In May 2009, a pilot garden site was established in Takoma Park. Thirty-three plots
were offered to the neighborhood and County residents for vegetable gardening. The program provides each
community garden site with physical amenities, garden oversight throughout the year and occasional weekend
education programs. Three additional community garden sites will be open in early September for fall planting.

No Child Left Inside (NCLI) promotes outdoor experiences that connect children and teens to nature. Using existing
resources, this program supports ongoing opportunities for children to enjoy, learn about and care for the natural
world. Numerous classes, workshops and activities are provided daily at historical and archeology sites, nature
centers, and public gardens. Partnerships have been developed with Montgomery County Public Schools encouraging
science teachers to use nearby parks as outdoor classrooms. Natural playgrounds are being created to encourage
children to use their imaginations. In the fall of 2009, a NCLI youth leadership program is being initiated for teens.

Partnerships and Grants: The Partnership and Grants program continues to grow. During FY09, we completed the
Linda Weiner Memorial, a landscaped hiker/biker trail and rest area with benches, a water fountain, and dedication
plague on the Capital Crescent Trail in Bethesda. Linda Weiner was a Bethesda school teacher who died of cancer.
The $110,000 cost of the project came from private donations. The Wu Wei Tai Chi Club received approval from the
Parks Commission on May 29 to construct a Tai Chi Court in Cabin John Regional Park. The estimated project
construction cost of $75,000 will come from private contributions. The Grants and Donations programs received
$878,121 in FY09 -- $843,330 in grants and $34,791 in donations from individuals, associations, corporations and
partners for commemorative gifts and approved projects.

Montgomery County Planning Department

The Department’s accomplishments in FY09 reflect a continued commitment to advancing key projects that reflect the
priorities of the residents of Montgomery County.

Rethinking zoning: The Planning Department advanced a multi-year effort to reorganize, revise, and simplify the
county Zoning Code to make it easier to use. In FY09, the Department concluded its discovery phase, which
diagnosed problems with the zoning code and began to address solutions. A Zoning Discovery report, which staff
delivered to a County Council committee in January, recommends ways to restructure to fewer, more meaningful
districts, better accommodate sustainable change, and create consistency in land use regulations. The Planning Board
convened an advisory panel to work with staff on the project and planners met several times with that group.

Master planning: In FY09, the Planning Board and its professional planning staff completed one of its most productive
years in community planning. The Board finished its draft of the Germantown Sector Plan and sent it to the County
Council, Moreover, the Board held work sessions on the White Flint Sector Plan and the Gaithersburg West Master
Plan to finalize them early in the next fiscal year. Planners finished and delivered the Georgia Avenue Concept Study,
finalized a draft of the Housing Functional Master Plan and secured approval of the Wheaton Limited Master Plan
Amendment.
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Growth Policy: Planners worked throughout FYQ9 to draft a 2009-2011 Growth Policy focused on sustainable growth
for transmittal early in FY10. To better align the Growth Policy with critical issues like climate change, staff
incorporated measures of sustainability for energy efficiency and production, environmental conservation, connectivity,
diversity, and design. Above all, the growth policy will encourage ways to foster the kind of quality neighborhoods our
residents want.

Housing Montgomery: Planners finalized a set of recommendations to revise the Housing Element of the General
Plan. The plan will link housing to community more clearly than has been done in the past, guiding communities
toward providing a continuum of residency and identifying design changes, legislative reform, and social supports.
Starting with a GIS-based inventory of housing and related data, such as home size, year built, assessment, rents,
etc., staff held a series of public work sessions hosted by the Board on various aspects of housing. The process will
culminate with the Board reviewing proposed revisions to the housing-related goals in the General Plan for County
Council review in FY10.

Keeping Montgomery County Moving: As the County’'s source of transportation forecasting and analysis, the
Department continued to adopt the best approaches to knowledge-based decision making. Staff completed planning
for the Purple Line, Corridor Cities Transitway, and a number of interchange and other transportation projects. The
transportation staff's comprehensive report on the proposed Purple Line served as the basis for the county’s
recommendations on mode and alignment. The report draft advanced with input from a citizens’ advisory committee
that met with staff for more than a year. Staff completed a final draft of the ICC Limited Functional Master Plan:
Bikeways and Interchanges.

Regulatory Caseload: Development review staff analyzed applications and coordinated comments from other
divisions and agencies to prepare staff reports for the board on development proposals. Many of the projects
continued to be complex and require innovative solutions to promote public goals like infill development.

Speaker Series: The Planning Board ran another year of its popular speaker series, attracting experts in the field to
bring a variety of topical issues, from green building to storm water management, to the board, staff, and the general
public. The series serves as way for professionals such as architects and planners to receive credits for continuing
education, providing a venue to learn new, cutting-edge strategies while reducing the costs of certification
maintenance.

2008 Census Update: Research staff conducted the agency’s 2008 Census Update Survey last summer, mailing
24,000 surveys to randomly selected households. This is the third household survey conducted this decade providing
current estimates of population trends updating the federal 2000 U.S. Census data. The project brought a 50 percent
response rate to detailed questions on household demographic data. Information will help us plan appropriate levels of
service for transportation, schools, housing, social services, libraries, and parks and inform Montgomery County policy-
makers as they decide where to allocate valuable resources.

Leaves for Neighborhoods: To achieve a number of environmental goals in its ongoing efforts to “green”
Montgomery County, the Department launched a program to encourage residents to plant trees in their yards. Called
Leaves for Neighborhoods, the campaign features a coupon valid at participating county nurseries. The $25 discount
off native shade trees worth $75 or more is intended to increase the county’s tree canopy on residential property. The
program advertises a $25 coupon available at the Department’s website or at area nurseries and Park and Planning
facilities. The campaign is funded by the Montgomery County Forest Conservation Fund, which contains fees from
developers in lieu of planting.

Transparent Processes: To continue its efforts to keep the public informed about planning issues the Department
continued and perfected its live webcasting of Board meetings. Anyone with a computer can watch the Board in real
time — or visit online archives later to view particular actions. Staff continued to refine the MontgomeryPlanning.org
website to better highlight Board actions and Department initiatives. Among the new web features are blogs and other
direct-feedback methods designed to encourage two-way communication. Communications staff improved the look
and content of the weekly e-newsletter, InfoShare, which goes to the e-mail in-boxes of some 3,000 residents every
Friday. Staff launched a new cable program, “Growing Right,” to highlight three Planning Board projects per month and
produced several new episodes of “Montgomery Plans,” a cable show that highlights significant planning initiatives in a
feature format.



Department of Human Resources and Management

Under the leadership of the Executive Director, the Department of Human Resources and Management (DHRM),
provides two basic corporate services: organizational management and human resources. DHRM serves specific
statutory functions in budget, personnel and collective bargaining. The Department ensures equity and fairness in
employment, takes the lead on best management practices, recommends to and advises both Planning Boards to set
and implement Commission policy. The Department also mitigates risk for Commission activities to achieve a safe
environment for the Commission employees and patrons.

Human Resources: DHRM administers the Merit System Rules and Regulations, Administrative Practices and
Procedures, and collective bargaining agreements that represent employees in the Park Police, the
Service/Maintenance Labor, Trades, and Clerical classifications. The Human Resources Information System (HRIS)
and the Classification and Compensation Systems integrate with the Commission’s financial and timekeeping systems
(Performance and Kronos) functions to preserve and safeguard mandatory employment data and documents in a
restricted environment. Employee compensation and benefits are implemented according to policy, classification
systems and applicable regulations and contracts. A long and short term disability, return-to-work, worker's
compensation, and COBRA programs are also managed.

Performance Management and Accountability: The Department seeks various ways to meet the economic and
fiscal challenges facing the State and both Counties. In FY09 the Department developed a new model for monthly
monitoring of revenue and expenditure trends to serve as an early warning system to manage financial anomalies.
Internally for the Department, an activity-based-costing was initiated in FY09 with a new labor tracking system and
program budget. The information will be used to present input and output metrics, request resources by true cost of
operations and develop alternative methods for service delivery.

Streamlining for Affordability and Efficiency: In FY09, DHRM, Legal, and Finance eliminated 11 fleet vehicles by
and outsourcing vehicle supply and implementing a reporting system to save the Commission over $10,000 annually.
The facility for Central Administrative Services, the Kenilworth Office Building, underwent evaluation for major
maintenance needs and going green options to keep asset current and marketable. The occupancy cost per square
foot was restructured through careful management to keep competitive with the commercial rental market. The
Centralized Information Technology unit was merged with the Finance Information Technology Division in the
Department of Finance. Centralized records management and archival was evaluated and began the moved toward
eliminating outdated microfiche and file storage systems.

Program Improvements: The Recruitment function is a de/centralized cooperative service operated through a
structured and closely monitored on-line tracking system. The expedited process has brought the average days to hire
time from well over 100 days down to approximately 67 days. The goal of 60 days or less will be reached in FY10 and
exceeds local and national standards.

Recognition of Excellence in Business and Results: The Budget and Management Office has continuously
received the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award from the Government Finance Officer's Association (GFOA) for
its annual submission for 22 consecutive years. Human Resources has also received the Workplace Excellence Seal
of Approval award five times from the Alliance for Workplace Excellence. This prestigious award is given only to those
employers with diverse and rich employee programs and policies supporting family and environmental issues.

Department of Finance

The Department of Finance provides fiscal management and oversight of all Commission financial activities. Services
of the Department include: providing financial guidance to operating departments; financial reporting and policy
development; processing of payroll, disbursements and purchasing transactions; investment management; debt
issuance; internal audit; and information systems management.

Corporate Financial Management: In FY09, the Department coordinated the sale of $13.6 million Montgomery
County Park Acquisition and Development Bonds of which $8.4 million were refunding bonds. As a result of the
refunding, a net present value savings of $724,869 will be realized. The remaining portion of the sale, $5.2 million will
be used to acquire land for parks, to develop new parks, and to improve existing parks in Montgomery County. The
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Department provided financial guidance to operating departments on proposed and existing public, private
partnerships, funding approaches for various projects, and long —term fiscal strategy.

Safeguarding of Commission Assets: Fiscal year 2009 was a busy year for the Department of Finance’s Audit
Division. In order to provide a road map for the audit activity and to comply with The Institute of Internal Auditors’
standards, the Audit Division Charter was developed which defines the purpose, authority, and responsibility of the
Audit Division. In accordance with the external auditor's recommendations and best industry practices, a revision was
made to the Division’s risk assessment plan. Based on this plan, top-down risk assessments were conducted on the
Investment & Cash Management Division, Finance IT Division, Payroll Operations and the Montgomery County IT
Operation. Several recommendations were made for improvements. In order to help the Internal Audit staff members
ensure the high quality audits in diverse environments, the Audit Division developed and maintains a full range of audit
guidance in compliance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS) and provided training for
staff internal auditors about best practices for preventing and detecting contract and procurement fraud, interview
techniques, professional audit report writing in compliance with GAGAS and conducting internal investigations. The
Division has successfully issued several recommendations and completed several special investigations as well as
multiple operational and financial audits. The Investments and Treasury Operations Division preserved all operating
capital although investment earnings decreased due to the continued turmoil in the nation's credit markets. Operating
efficiencies (timeliness and reduced paper consumption) were achieved through greater reliance on electronic
communication.

Automating/Streamlining Efforts: The Department has begun a project to replace its outdated financial system
software product with a new enterprise resource planning (ERP) system. The Department has received several
proposals, with the expectation of award and the start of implementation in early calendar year 2010. This new system
will greatly enhance the toolset available to our operating departments and allow for enhanced financial analysis and
program budgeting, along with better access to financial information. The Accounting Division set up an accounts
payable e-mail for receiving statements and invoices electronically. A Performance Measures process was
implemented in the area of procurement. A new purchase order database was developed and the current contract
routing database was modified to generate reports that would identify procurement processing timelines and quality of
service. A customer survey was issued to assess the quality of service. These efforts will assist in developing process
improvements and better procurement planning.

Outreach to Minority, Female and Disabled Vendors: The Department’s Purchasing Division continues to expand
its outreach efforts in trade and procurement events. The events reflect the increasing diversity of the two Counties.

The Commission achieved an MFD utilization rate of 32.6% which equated to $39.3 million of procurement with MFD
firms.

Information Systems Support: The Department’s IT Division continues to provide management and support
primarily for the financial, human resources, and payroll systems which include separate Internet and ATM Wide-Area
Network connections to ensure business continuity for all critical applications and resources. During FY09, major
efforts included: finalizing a Finance Disaster Recovery Plan, expanding KRONOS timekeeping system to all salaried
employees; expansion and upgrade for the remote access and telework applications; upgrade of firewall to include
content and deep packet inspection, upgrade of Faser to EnergyCAP; development and implementation of a
comprehensive security awareness program; upgrade and re-hosting of MNCPPC.org including a new web content
management system; piloted a records retention system for all past CAFR and ERS financial documents; expansion,
and replication of the storage area network architecture to a new warmsite and as part of our disaster recovery plan

Financial Reporting: For the 36" consecutive year, the Commission received the Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting from the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada
for the FY08 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), prepared by the Finance Department.

Office of General Counsel

Office of the General Counsel (Legal Department) provides a comprehensive program of legal services to the
Commission, supporting virtually every facet of the Commission's work program. The Office guides the Commission's
internal corporate operations; advises staff and the Planning Boards as they navigate their important quasi-judicial and
regulatory responsibilities; advocates on the Commission's behalf in litigation before the state and federal courts; and
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participates in cross-functional teams assembled periodically to develop creative solutions to new challenges facing
the Commission.

Protecting the Public Interest in Litigation: The Commission is represented by the Office of the General Counsel in
the varied forums of today’s legal environment, including: state and federal courts, administrative agency hearings,
and regulatory investigations. At the onset of FYQ09, the Office of the General Counsel was actively involved in 35
court cases carrying over from FY08. Over the course of FY09, the Legal Department managed 38 new courts cases,
resolved 43 court cases, and closed the fiscal year with 30 active court cases.

Enhancing the Stewardship of Public Funds Through More Effective Contracting: The Legal Department’s
Transactions Practice Team (TPT) provides an efficient structure to coordinate and manage legal support in both
counties by integrating the service delivery for both the Montgomery County Department of Parks and the Prince
George’s County Department of Parks and Recreation. To date, our coordination has helped create efficiencies by
developing consistent policies and standard documents utilized now on a Commission-wide basis to transact the
leasing of park houses, deeds of dedication for public use, and third-party concession agreements.

Building our Quality of Life — One Transaction at a Time: Commission attorneys represented staff and the
Planning Boards in the negotiation and development of dozens of complex agreements and memoranda of
understanding. Notable transactions handled recently include the Legal Department’s role in serving as a key advisor
on the negotiation of a sublease between the Commission and Dimensions Health Corporation for the construction of a
Commission facility known as the Laurel Beltsville Senior Center (Senior Center) on the campus of Laurel Regional
Hospital in Laurel, Maryland. The Senior Center will be a state of the art facility, devoted to serving the recreational
needs of seniors in Prince George’s County.

Legislative Advocacy: The Office of the General Counsel continued its role as the Commission’s liaison to the
Maryland General Assembly, successfully championing legislation which provided the Commission with a statutory
seat on the State-wide Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee. The Committee advises state agencies in matters
related to the funding of bicycle and pedestrian related activities and programs, public education and awareness of
bicycling and pedestrian safety, in addition to, any other issue directly related to bicycling and pedestrians. Working
with the Commission-wide Legislative Management Team, the OGC monitored a total of 144 local and statewide bills
of interest to the Commission. These bills covered a variety of areas, from land use and environmental matters, to the
creation of business improvement districts and comprehensive whistleblower protections.

Merit System Board

The Merit System Board is an impartial Board, which provides recommendations and decisions regarding the Merit
System of the Commission and is the highest level within the Commission for hearing appeals. During FY09, the
Board continued to maintain its caseload on a current and timely basis.

Employees’ Retirement System

The Employees’ Retirement System (ERS), administered by an 11-member Board of Trustees, in accordance with the
Trust Agreement between the Board and the Commission, is a contributory defined benefit pension system with four
plans, qualified under the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a). The administrative operations are the responsibility
of the ERS Staff and Board-appointed Administrator, who reports directly to the Chairman of the Board of Trustees.

The ERS obtained its latest determination letter on July 31, 2003, in which the Internal Revenue Service stated that the
ERS is in compliance with the applicable requirements of the Internal Revenue Code and the related trust is tax
exempt. ERS Trust Fund net assets closed the year with a fair market value in excess of $452 million. The FY09
annualized rate of return on investments was -19.16%. The Board of Trustees actions for the year included replacing
the small-mid cap growth equity manager; engaging two long duration bond managers; adopting a revised asset
allocation policy; establishing a separate audit committee; adopting an emerging manager policy; and continuous
comprehensive communications to all members which included an Annual Report, a Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report and conducting educational workshops for participants.

18






o ParTllA o

FINANCIAL SECTION

Basic Financial Statements

Cyclists and hikers can now cross the Potomac River from Maryland to Virginia using the new
trail along the Woodrow Wilson Bridge.
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m Clifton
Gunderson LLP

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Commissioners
The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission
Riverdale, Maryland

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and the
budgetary comparison for the general fund of The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning
Commission (the Commission) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively
comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning
Commission’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Commission as of June 30,
2009, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable,
thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 4, 2009, on our consideration of the Commission’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Member of

Offices in 17 states and Washington, DC International
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The management’s discussion and analysis and schedules of funding progress as referenced in
the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no
opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
supplementary information such as the introductory section, combining statements and
schedules section, and statistical section as listed in the table of contents are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The combining statements and schedules section have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied by us in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on them.

Czs )orrectbsaonn_ L) A

Baltimore, Maryland
November 4, 2009
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As the management of The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission (“the Commission”), we offer
readers of the Commission’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the
Commission for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission is a body corporate of the State of Maryland
established by the General Assembly in 1927. The Commission is a bi-county agency. It is empowered to acquire,
develop, maintain and administer a regional system of parks in a defined Metropolitan District of Montgomery and
Prince George’s Counties and to prepare and administer a general plan for the physical development of a defined
Regional District for the two Counties. The Commission also conducts the recreation program for Prince George’s
County.

The major source of funding for the Commission’s primary services are five property taxes levied on an individual
County basis:

e Montgomery County
Administration tax - general administration and planning
Park tax - park operations and debt service for park acquisition and development bonds

e Prince George's County
Administration tax - general administration and planning
Park tax - park operations and debt service for park acquisition and development bonds
Recreation tax - the recreation program

Five separate accounts are maintained within the General Fund to account for the Commission’s primary services.
Revenues and expenditures that can be specifically identified with a county are recorded in the appropriate account.
Expenses that apply to both counties are allocated to the appropriate accounts. Debt is issued on a county basis, not
for the Commission as a whole. General obligation debt is guaranteed by the Commission and by the county
government for which the proceeds will be expended. Due to this unique arrangement, certain financial information
provided in this discussion and analysis, as well as in the summaries presented in Note 7 of the Notes to the Financial
Statements, has been provided by county to reflect the financing constraints within each county. Other funds and
accounts are maintained on a Commission-wide or on a separate county basis as necessary and appropriate.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the Commission exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2009 by $854.2 million (net assets). Of this
amount, $283.9 million may be used to meet the Commission’s ongoing obligations.

e The Commission’s net assets grew by $62.1 million during fiscal year 2009. This is largely a result of: pay-as-
you-go funds of $59.6 million in the Prince George’s Capital Projects Fund which has not been spent, $20.5
million of capital grants and contributions, receipt of property taxes ($15.3 million) in excess of the budget,
offset by debt principal payments of $22.1 million, the increase in the OPEB liability of $10.6 million and
increase to compensated absences of $1.7 million.

e In fiscal year 2008 the Commission implemented GASB statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions”. Implementing this statement
required reporting accrual basis information related to retiree benefits, which previously were reported on a
pay-as-you-go basis. Because the Commission is phasing into full funding of the actuarially calculated
contribution for these benefits, which contribution must be recorded as an expense, a liability of $20.4 million
has been recognized on the Commission’s Statement of Net Assets, including $.9 million in the Business-type
activities. For more information, see note 5E of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

e As of June 30, 2009, the Commission’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$289.0 million, an increase of $36.9 million. Of this amount, $61.2 million is reserved for contracts already
issued (encumbrances) and $38.2 million is designated for use in the fiscal year 2010 budget, for future
facilities costs and as contingency reserves.
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The Commission’s General Fund balance at June 30, 2009 was $143.6 million, a decrease of $7.1 million
during the year. The unreserved fund balance of $112.1 million is approximately 29.4% of fiscal year 2009
expenditures and transfers out. Of this amount, $74.0 million (19.4% of fiscal year 2009 expenditures and
transfers out) is unreserved and undesignated.

The Prince George’s County Capital Projects Fund balance at June 30, 2009 was $136.1 million, an increase
of $48.1 million. The unreserved fund balance of $120.2 million has grown through a combination of unspent
bond proceeds of $10.1 million, and major pay-as-you-go funding, which was $61.2 million in fiscal year 2009.

The Montgomery County Capital Projects Fund balance at June 30, 2009 was $3.2 million, a decrease of $2.4
million. The unreserved fund deficit of $9.9 million results from a combination of a delayed bond sale, and
reserves for encumbrances for long-term contracts, many of which will be funded when expended by
reimbursements by Montgomery County Government or by reimbursable grants.

The assets of the enterprise funds exceeded liabilities by $79.3 million, a decrease of $2.9 million. The Prince
George’s Enterprise Fund had a loss of $2.7 million and the Montgomery Enterprise Fund had a loss of $.2
million.

The Commission’s bonds and notes payable decreased by $10.8 million due to scheduled principal payments,
an advance and current refunding offset by the refunding debt issue and a new Park Bond issue.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Commission’s basic financial statements.
The Commission’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2)
fund financial statements, and 3) Notes to the Financial Statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Organization and Flow of Financial Section Information

Provides the opinion of the Independent Auditors on the fair presentation of the basic financial statements.

Independent Auditors’ Report

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
This supplementary information is required for state and local government financial statements, and is
intended to provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis.

Government-Wide Financial Statements Fund Financial Statements
Provides information on governmental and Provides information on the financial position of
business-type activities of the Commission. specific funds of the Commission.

Exhibits 1 and 2. Exhibits 3 to 11.

Notes to Financial Statements
Provides a summary of significant accounting policies and related disclosures.
Following Exhibit 11.




Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers
with a broad overview of the Commission’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Commission’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the Commission is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Commission’s net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned, but unused
vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Commission that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The
governmental activities of the Commission include General Government, County Planning and Zoning, Park
Operations and Maintenance, Recreation Programs and Interest on Long-term Debt. The business-type activity of the
Commission is Recreational and Cultural Facilities.

The government-wide financial statements can be found as Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Commission, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.
All of the funds of the Commission can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources,
as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful
in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. For both the governmental fund balance sheet
and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances, reconciliations are
provided to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Commission maintains eleven individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balances for the General Fund and the Capital Project Funds for each county, all of which are considered to be
major funds. Data from the other eight governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements,
Schedules 1 and 2 in the Combining and Individual Statements section of this report.

The Commission adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund, which is actually adopted as five
“accounts” corresponding to the five different property tax levies. A budgetary comparison statement for the total
General Fund has been provided as Exhibit 6, and summaries for each account are included in Note 7 of the Notes to
the Financial Statements, to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found as Exhibits 3 - 6 of this report.
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Proprietary funds. The Commission maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
Commission uses enterprise funds to account for Montgomery County’s and Prince George’s County’s Recreational
and Cultural Facilities.

Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the
Commission’s various functions. The Commission uses internal service funds to account for Montgomery County’s
Capital Equipment, Employee Benefits and Risk Management and Prince George's County’s Capital Equipment,
Executive Office Building, Employee Benefits, and Risk Management, and Commission-wide Initiatives. As these
services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more
detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for each county’s Recreational and
Cultural Facilities, both of which are considered to be major funds of the Commission. Conversely, all internal service
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund
data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements, Schedules 7 - 9 in the Combining
and Individual Statements Section of this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found as Exhibits 7 - 9 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. The Commission uses fiduciary funds to account for the Employees’ Retirement System Pension Trust,
Postemployment Benefit Trust, and Private Purpose Trusts for each county, and two agency funds. Fiduciary funds
are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available
to support the Commission’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for
proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary financial statements can be found as Exhibits 10 and 11 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The Commission has also included
financial statements for each county’s portion of the governmental funds financial statements to reflect the relationship
between the financing sources and responsibility for debt. The Notes to the Financial Statements can be found
following Exhibit 11 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information concerning the Commission’s progress in funding its obligation to provide
pension benefits and other post employment benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information can be
found immediately following the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case
of the Commission, assets exceeded liabilities by $854.2 million at the close of the most recent fiscal year.
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A summary of the Commission’s net assets follows:

Summary of Net Assets (millions)
June 30, 2009 and 2008

Total
Percentage
Governmental Activiies ~ Business-type Activities Total Change
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2008-2009
Assets
Current and Other Assets $ 391.7 $ 343.6 $ 5.9 $ 6.5 $ 3976 $ 350.1 13.6%
Capital Assets 603.2 570.1 81.8 84.9 685.0 655.0 4.6%
Total Assets 994.9 913.7 87.7 91.4 1,082.6 1,005.1 7.7%
Liabilities
Current Portion of Long-term
Liabilities 30.2 29.4 1.4 14 316 30.8 2.6%
Long-term Liabilities 143.4 141.9 5.0 5.6 1484 147.5 0.6%
Other Liabilities 46.4 32.5 2.0 2.2 48.4 34.7 39.5%
Total Liabilites 220.0 203.8 8.4 9.2 228.4 213.0 7.2%
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt 492.9 456.8 77.4 79.4 570.3 536.2 6.4%
Unrestricted 282.0 253.1 1.9 2.8 283.9 255.9 10.9%
Total Net Assets $ 7749 $ 7099 $ 793 $ 822 $ 842 $ 79R.1 7.8%

Current and other assets increased by 13.6%, primarily due to an increase in cash and investments resulting from the
positive operating results this year and the current revenues dedicated to construction and acquisition that are
unspent. Changes in other liabilities were primarily a result of payments due to the Prince George's County
Government for support of various programs. Changes in net assets are discussed later.

By far the largest portion of the Commission’s net assets of $570.3 million reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, machinery, and equipment and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that
are still outstanding. The Commission uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these
assets are not available for future spending. Although the Commission’s investment in capital assets is reported net of
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources,
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The remaining balance of $283.9 million of net assets is unrestricted and may be used to meet the Commission’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Changes in this balance are discussed later.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Commission is able to report positive balances in both categories of net

assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. The
same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.
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A summary of changes in net assets follows:

Summary of Changes in Net Assets (in millions)
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

Total
Governmental Business-type Percentage
Activities Activities Total Change
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2008-2009
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 21.4 $ 21.0 $ 18.2 $ 180 $ 39.6 $ 39.0 15%
Operating Grants and Contributions 3.1 3.0 0.1 0.1 3.2 3.1 32%
Capital Grants and Contributions 20.5 40.0 - - 20.5 40.0 -48.8%
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 354.3 313.8 - - 354.3 313.8 12.9%
Investment Earnings 9.1 13.6 0.1 0.3 9.2 13.9 -33.8%
Total Revenues 408.4 3914 18.4 184 426.8 409.8 41%
Expenses:
General Government 18.9 17.4 - - 18.9 17.4 8.6%
County Planning and Zoning 60.4 48.6 - - 60.4 48.6 24.3%
Park Operations and Maintenance 181.3 165.8 - - 181.3 165.8 9.3%
Recreation Programs 68.0 52.7 - - 68.0 52.7 29.0%
Recreational and Cultural Facilities - - 30.7 303 30.7 30.3 1.3%
Interest on Long-term Debt 5.2 5.9 0.2 03 5.4 6.2 -12.9%
Total Expenses 333.8 290.4 30.9 30.6 364.7 321.0 13.6%
Increase (Decrease) in Net
Assets Before Transfers 74.6 101.0 (12.5) (12.2) 62.1 88.8 -30.1%
Transfers (9.6) (9.0) 9.6 9.0 - - S
Increase (Decrease) in
Net Assets 65.0 92.0 (2.9 (3.2) 62.1 88.8
Net Assets - beginning 709.9 617.9 82.2 854 792.1 703.3
Net Assets - ending $774.9 $ 709.9 $ 79.3 $ 822 $ 854.2 $792.1

During the current fiscal year the Commission’s net assets increased by $62.1 million. This is largely a result of: pay-
as-you-go funds of $59.6 million in the Prince George’s Capital Projects Fund which has not been spent, $20.5 million
of capital grants and contributions, growth in property taxes ($15.3 million) in excess of anticipated, offset by debt
principal payments of $22.1 million, the increase in the OPEB liability of $10.6 million and increase to compensated
absences of $1.7 million. Investment earnings were lower due to the falling interest rates during the fiscal year.
Charges for services decreased in the County Planning and Zoning and in the Park Operations and Maintenance
Activities due to the general economic conditions. This was offset by an increase in Charges for Services and Rentals
and Concessions activities for Recreation programs.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the Commission’s net assets by $65.0 million, thereby
accounting for 105% of the total growth in the net assets of the Commission. This increase is primarily attributable to
capital grants receipts of $20.5 million, added to an excess of ongoing revenues over ongoing expenses of $54.1
million, which were offset by the transfers to business-type activities of $9.6 million.
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Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

Capital Grants and
Contributions 5%

Operating Grants and

Contributions 1% Investment Earnings 2%
(1]

Charges for Services 5%

Property Taxes 87%

As the above diagram shows, property taxes make up 87% of Commission governmental revenues. Investment
earnings decreased due to lower interest rates.

As is reflected in the following chart, the Commission’s governmental activities are largely supported by general
revenues and in particular property taxes. Charges for services and operating grants cover 7.3% of governmental

activities expenses.

County Planning and Zoning Programs net costs increased 26.8% largely due to an increase in amounts due to the
Prince George’s County Government for programs they provide which are eligible for funding by the Commission’s
property taxes. These programs are listed in Note 5B and as charges for services were lower than in the prior year
due to the general economic conditions. Park Operations and Maintenance net costs rose significantly due to the
personnel costs associated with filling vacant and new positions, additional costs for professional services and the
decrease in receipts of capital grants and contributions. Recreation Programs net costs increased 35.4% due to the
personnel costs associated with filling vacant positions, as well as additional costs for professional services.

Net Cost of Governmental Activities (000's)

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008
Percentage Change

2009 2008 2008 - 2009
Total Cost Net Cost Total Cost Net Cost Total Cost Net Cost
Of Services  Of Services  Of Services  Of Services of of
Services Serices

General Government $ 18,875 $ 18,875 $ 17,398 $ 17,398 8.5% 8.5%
County Planning and Zoning 60,371 55,694 48,650 43,912 24.1% 26.8%
Park Operations and Maintenance 181,359 154,542 165,753 118,969 9.4% 29.9%
Recreation Programs 68,011 54,477 52,689 40,236 29.1% 35.4%
Interest on Long-term Debt 5,212 5,212 5,902 5,902 -11.7% -11.7%
Total $ 333,828 $ 288,800 $ 290,392 $ 226,417 15.0% 27.6%
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Net Cost by Function - General Government
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Business-type Activities. Business-type activities expenses in excess of revenues led to a decrease in the
Commission’s net assets by $2.9 million.

Expenses of operating these recreational and cultural activities (including interest expense) exceeded charges
for services, current operating grants and interest income by $12.5 million.

Governmental activities contributed $9.6 million to support the enterprise activities. The support is primarily
$9.0 million of operating support for the Prince George’s County business-type activities.

Changes in Net Assets - Business-type Activities

B Interest Expense

O Operating Expenses
$ Millions O Operating Grants
O Net Transfers

B Investment Earnings

B Charges for Services

Montgomery Revenues
Montgomery Expenses Prince George's Revenues

Prince George's Expenses

The operating losses occurred primarily as a result of operations at the Prince George’s County Sports and Learning

Center, the Equestrian Center/Multipurpose Arena and the Golf Courses, and at the Montgomery Conference Centers.
More detail is provided later in the Proprietary Funds discussion.
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Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities
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Charges for services make up the major portion of revenues for the business-type operations, although support from
governmental operations (transfers) also makes up a significant portion.

As noted earlier, the Commission uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance- related
legal requirements.

Financial Analysis of the Commission’s Funds

Governmental Funds. The focus of the Commission’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Commission’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Commission’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $289.0 million, an increase of $36.9 million in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 66% of this
total amount, or $189.6 million, constitutes unreserved and undesignated fund balance, which is available for spending
in future years, with $110.3 million of this balance in the capital project funds. The remaining fund balances are
reserved to indicate that they are not available for new spending as $61.2 million has been committed for contracts
and purchase orders, and $38.2 million is designated to fund fiscal year 2010 expenditures and to provide reserves for
unforeseen expenditure needs.

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Commission. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved
and undesignated fund balance of the General Fund was $74.0 million, while total fund balance was $143.6 million.
As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved and undesignated fund
balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved and undesignated fund balance represents
19% of the total general fund expenditures and transfers out, while total fund balance represents 38% of the same
amount.

The fund balance of the Commission’s General Fund decreased by $7.1 million during the current fiscal year. Key
factors that generated this decrease are as follows:

e A reduction of $46.3 million was planned in the final budget for fiscal year 2009.
e Property taxes were $15.2 million greater than anticipated, primarily due to increases in the assessable base.

e Receipts from Charges for Services and Rentals and Concessions were $1 million lower than anticipated due
to the general economic conditions.
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e Interest revenues were $.4 million lower than anticipated in the general fund due to lower than budgeted
interest rates.

e Interest revenues in the Capital Projects funds were $2.0 million higher than budget due to higher than
anticipated cash balances in those funds which offset the effect of the lower interest rates. These revenues
are transferred into the Park Accounts for each county.

e A control of expenditures generated $13.1 million savings to provide funding for future years’ budgets.

Reserves for encumbrances were $9.8 million higher than in the prior year, representing additional fund balance
increases.

The capital project funds for Montgomery and Prince George’s counties have total fund balances of $3.2 million and
$136.1 million, respectively, all of which represents authorized and funded projects that are not completed. The net
change in fund balances during the current year in these funds were decreases of $2.4 million in Montgomery County,
and an increase of $48.1 million in Prince George’s County primarily due to the $59.6 million in pay-as-you-go funding
in Prince George’s County, $5.2 million of bond proceeds in Montgomery County and construction grants realized of
$12 million in Montgomery County and $2.7 million in Prince George's County, compared to expenditures of $20.1
million in Montgomery County and $17.9 million in Prince George’s County.

Proprietary Funds. The Commission has determined that certain recreational and cultural facilities should be
predominantly self-supporting through user fees. Enterprise fund accounting and reporting is used to emphasize the
self-supporting nature of these activities and to provide improved cost accounting information. Enterprise Fund
accounting, which is on a commercial accounting accrual basis, more accurately reflects whether individual facilities
return the full cost of the program.

One enterprise fund has been established in each county to account for the various facilities. Separate cost centers
are maintained for each major type of facility including an historical airport, four ice rinks, three golf courses, four
enclosed tennis facilities, three conference centers, an equestrian center, a multipurpose arena, a trap and skeet
center, certain regional park facilities, a sports and learning complex and a marina. Four golf courses in Montgomery
County have been leased to the Montgomery County Revenue Authority since April 2006.

The Commission’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Montgomery County fund at the end of the year amounted to $.7 million and those for

the Prince George’s County fund amounted to $1.1 million. The total changes in net assets for the funds were
decreases of $.2 million and $2.7 million, respectively.
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Summary comparative results of the financial operations of the Enterprise Funds follow:

Financial Operations of the Enterprise Funds (000's)
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

Montgomery Prince George's
County County

FY2009 FY2008 FY2009 FY2008

Operating Revenues $ 8,518 $ 7847 $ 9,751  $ 10,231
Operating Expenses, Excluding Depreciation 7,773 7,746 19,246 18,932
Operating Income (Loss), Excluding Depreciation 745 101 (9,495) (8,701)
Depreciation 1,364 1,363 2,269 2,266
Operating Loss (619) (1,262) (11,764) (10,967)
Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) (197) (218) 88 194
Transfers 619 619 8,981 8,445
Change in Net Assets $ (197) $ (861) $ (2,695) $ (2,328)

Comparative Montgomery County key data are as follows:

Montgomery County Enterprise Fund Key Data (000's)
Forthe Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008
Operating Operating Income (Loss)
Revenues Excluding Depreciation
FY2009 FY2008 Change FY 2009 FY 2008 Change

Conference Centers $ 333 % 315 $ 18 $ (213) $ (2570 $ 44

Golf Courses 360 358 2 281 133 148
Ice Rinks 3,768 3,612 156 (60) 35 (95)
Indoor Tennis 1,288 728 560 181 (180) 361
Park Facilities 2,769 2,834 (65) 556 370 186

Total $ 8518 $ 7847 $ 671 $ 745 $ 101 $ 644

The Montgomery County Enterprise Fund revenues increased by $671,000, and operating income, excluding
depreciation, increased by $644,000. Operating revenues and expenses at the two indoor tennis facilities increased
due to the re-opening of both facilities after being closed for refurbishing. This resulted in an increase in operating
income of $361,000. The increase in operating income at the Park Facilities is due to repairs and minor renovations in
FY 2008 that were not required in FY 2009 at the South Germantown Splash Park and at the Wheaton and
Meadowbrook Stables.
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Comparative Prince George's County key data are as follows:

Prince George's County Enterprise Fund Key Data (000's)
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

Operating Operating Income (LosS)
Revenues Excluding Depreciation
FY2009 FY2008 Change FY2009 FY2008 Change

Airport $ 261 % 323 % 62 $ (2200 $ 90) $ (130)
Equestrian Center/Arena 1,464 1,729 (265) (2,341) (2,154) (187)
Golf Courses 2,495 2,534 (39) (1,138) (924) (214)
Ice Rinks 515 533 (18) (877) (742) (136)
Tennis Bubbles 357 342 15 (198) (157) @y
Trap and Skeet Center 1,267 1,331 (64) (152) (118) ()]
Sports and Leaming Complex 3,339 3,387 (48) @4,173) (3,878) (295)
Bladensburg Marina 53 52 1 (396) (639) 243
Total $ 9751 $ 10231 $ (480) $ (9,495 $ (8701) $ (794

The Prince George's County Enterprise Fund revenues decreased by $480,000 and the operating loss, excluding
depreciation, increased by $794,000. The major changes occurred in the Equestrian Center, the golf courses and the
Sports and Learning Complex. Revenues remained fairly stable at facilities with the exception of the Equestrian
Center/Arena where revenues were lower in FY 2009 due to the general state of the economy. Some of these
revenue losses were offset by a reduction in spending for supplies. However, expenses increased overall, primarily
due to increased compensation costs resulting in greater losses than in 2008. The marina did not have the large
dredging expense in 2009 which resulted in the lower operating loss. By policy the fee structures at all facilities are
designed for maximum participation with General Fund support.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
The Commission’s park, recreation, planning and general administrative functions are financed primarily by five legally
designated property taxes that must be levied on a separate County basis. These functions are accounted for in
accounts within the General Fund, each of which has its own budget, and is presented separately in the Notes to the
Financial Statements.

A summary of the Montgomery County budget to actual variances follows:

Montgomery County Budget to Actual Variances (000's)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Administration Park
Account Account
Favorable property tax collections $ 43.3 $ 187.2
Favorable (unfavorable) charges for services 13 (446.8)
Unfavorable intergovernmental revenue (19.4) (124.6)
Unfavorable investment revenue (48.6) (112.5)
Favorable other revenue 23.2 107.1
Total unfavorable revenue variance (0.2) (389.6)
Expenditure savings 1,223.1 1,666.4
Favorable other financing sources (uses) - 360.2
Total favorable budgetary variance $ 1,222.9 $ 1,637.0

Property tax collections were slightly above budget. Charges for services were almost equal to the budget in the
Administration Account and were below budget in the Park Account primarily due to the economic slowdown.
Investment revenue was below budget due to declining interest rates. Unfavorable intergovernmental revenues in the
Park Account are offset by expenditure savings. Other revenue in both funds exceeded the budget. The Administration



Account increase was the result of fines collected, and the Park Account increase was primarily the result of fines and
advertising revenues. The expenditure savings were primarily the result of managing operations to generate a 2.3%
percent savings, as requested by Montgomery County Government. This savings, intended to assist in funding the
fiscal year 2011 budget, was generated primarily by freezing positions. The favorable other financing uses in the Park
Account primarily results from a lower transfer to the Debt Service Fund, due to the delay in issuing new bonds.

The results summarized above, in conjunction with fund balances carried forward, resulted in ending fund balances for
Montgomery County as indicated in the following table:

Montgomery County Budgetary Fund Balances
June 30, 2009

Administration Park
Account Account
Prior year fund balance
Designated for Contingencies $ 823.9 $ 2,386.0
Undesignated 1,086.2 3,526.0
Favorable budget variance 1,222.9 1,637.0
Total ending fund balance, budget basis $ 3,133.0 $ 7,549.0
Fund balance, budget basis
Designated for Subsequent
Years $ 1,068.2 $ 4,574.3
Designated for Contingencies 833.3 2,383.3
Undesignated 1,231.5 591.4
Total Budgetary Fund Balance $ 3,133.0 $ 7,549.0

A summary of the Prince George's County budget to actual variances follows:

Prince George's County Budget to Actual Variances (000's)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Administration Park Recreation
Account Account Account
Favorable property tax collections $ 2,298.8 $ 9,459.2 $ 3,268.4
Favorable (unfavorable) charges for services (615.8) (9.8) 36.1
Favorable (unfavorable) intergovemmental revenue (14.0) 28.1 -
Favorable (unfavorable) investment revenue 2011 (147.2) (295.0)
Favorable (unfavorable) other revenue 1.2 (48.2) (19.1)
Total favorable revenue variance 1,871.3 9,282.1 2,990.4
Expenditure savings 8,726.8 470.3 982.8
Favorable other financing sources - 2,190.7 -
Total favorable budgetary variance $ 10,598.1 $ 11,943.1 $ 3,973.2

Property tax collections were above budget primarily because the assessable base growth was higher than anticipated
in the budget. Charges for services were down significantly in the Administration Account as a result of the economic
slowdown which impacted fees collected for subdivisions, zoning and urban design applications. Intergovernmental
revenue was lower than budget in the Administration Account due to processing fewer permits. Intergovernmental
revenue was higher in the Park Account due to the receipt of grant funds for prior year disbursements. Investment
revenue was favorable in the Administration Account primarily due to higher than anticipated cash balances which
offset lower interest rates. The unfavorable variance in investment revenue in the Park and Recreation Accounts was
due to lower than budgeted interest rates. Other revenues in the Park Account were less than anticipated primarily due
to an accounting change with respect to insurance reimbursements. The expenditure savings were primarily the result
of vacant positions in all of the Accounts, the delay of a planned facility relocation in the Administration Account and
non-departmental savings from liquidation of prior year encumbrances of $360,900 in the Administration Account,
$213,100 in the Park Account and $243,500 in the Recreation Account. Other financing sources were favorable due to
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interest on cash balances in the capital projects fund due to large pay-as-you-go funding balances for projects (this
income is transferred to the Park Account), and the savings from budgeted debt service as a scheduled bond sale was
not needed due to large cash balances.

The results summarized above, in conjunction with fund balances carried forward, resulted in ending fund balances for
Prince George’s County as indicated in the following table:

Prince George's County Budgetary Fund Balances (000's)
June 30, 2009

Administration Park Recreation
Account Account Account
Prior year fund balance
Designated for Contingencies $ 2,829.9 $ 5,643.2 $ 3,679.7
Designated for Future Facilities - 2,550.0 7,315.0
Undesignated 1,492.1 36,955.7 16,437.0
Budget adjustment in mid-year (500.0) (450.0) (1,000.0)
Favorable budget variance 10,598.1 11,943.1 3,973.2
Total ending fund balance, budget basis $ 14,420.1 $ 56,642.0 $ 30,404.9
Fund balance, budget basis
Designated for Subsequent
Years $ 2,160.9 $ 10,845.2 $ 2,227.1
Designated for Contingencies 2,475.5 8,133.2 3,473.3
Undesignated 9,783.7 37,663.6 24,704.5
Total Budgetary Fund Balance $ 14,4201 $ 56,642.0 $ 30,404.9

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The Commission’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2009 amounts to $685.0 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes
land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, and roads. The total increase in the
Commission’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 4.6% (a 5.8% increase for governmental
activities and a 3.6% decrease for business-type activities). The most significant increases are from land acquisitions,
construction of recreational facilities, community center renovation/expansion, construction of an irrigation system in a
regional park, and trail construction. The only significant capital asset changes in business-type activities consist of
depreciation of existing assets.

Proceeds of general obligation park acquisition and development bonds are accounted for in Capital Projects Funds
until the projects are completed. Completed projects and construction in progress at year-end are shown as capital
assets in the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets. During fiscal year 2009, projects totaling $4.5 million in
governmental activities were completed. Among these projects, where most of the costs were incurred in prior years,
are Ovid Hazen Wells Recreational Facilities, ball fields at Olney Manor Recreational Park, general renovations at the
White Mansion, and new park development at Saddlebrook East Community Park.

Expenditures on Montgomery County projects totaled $20.1 million in fiscal year 2009, of which $2.2 million was for
acquisition and $17.9 million was for development. Land acquisition included $1.4 million for land for the Fenton Street
Urban Park and $.7 million for stream valley parks. The largest projects were construction of the Brookside Gardens
irrigation system, with construction cost to date of $1.8 million, of which $1.7 million was in fiscal year 2009, Matthew
Henson Trail, with construction cost to date of $4.0 million, of which $1.6 million was in fiscal year 2009 and the Rock
Creek Trail Pedestrian Bridge, with construction costs to date of $2.0 million, of which $1.3 million was in fiscal year
2009. In addition, expenditures totaling $7.4 million were spent on 26 projects for routine maintenance of parks, roads,
buildings and other structures.

Prince George’s County projects totaled $17.9 million in fiscal year 2009, of which $6.8 million was for acquisition and
$11.1 million was for development. Land acquisition included $5.3 million for Historic Agricultural Resources
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Preservation, $.7 million for the WB&A Trail, $.3 million for Rollins Avenue Neighborhood Park and $.3 million for
Riverdale Community Recreation Center. Major park development expenditures include the Hillcrest Heights
Community Center code improvement/renovation with construction cost to date of $1.3 million all of which was in fiscal
year 2009, the South Bowie Community Center expansion with construction costs to date of $1.2 million all of which
was in fiscal year 2009, the Brentwood Arts Center with construction costs to date of $2.0 million, of which $.3 million
was in fiscal year 2009, construction of the Equestrian Center covered ring with construction costs to date of $1.3
million, of which $.9 million was in FY 2009 and construction of the Southern Regional Technology/Recreation
Complex with construction costs to date of $.8 million, of which $.5 million was in FY 2009. In addition, expenditures
totaling $1.6 million were spent on 11 other community center projects.

Commission’s Capital Assets

Commission's Capital Assets (net of depreciation) ($000's)
June 30, 2009 and 2008

June 30, 2009 June 30, 2008
Business- Business- Percent
Governmental type Governmental type Change
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total Total

Land $ 305,083 $ 19,364 $ 324,447 $ 292,725 $ 19,364 $ 312,089 4.0%
Buildings and improvements 84,623 60,146 144,769 88,776 63,482 152,258 -4.9%
Infrastructure 115,627 - 115,627 117,492 - 117,492 -1.6%
Machinery and equipment 24,229 1,920 26,149 20,185 1,868 22,053 18.6%
Construction in progress 73,644 398 74,042 50,914 172 51,086 44.9%
Total $ 603,206 $ 81,828 $ 685,034 $ 570,092 $ 84,886 $ 654,978 4.6%

Additional information on the Commission’s capital assets can be found in Note 4B of the Notes to Financial
Statements in this report.

Long-term debt. Debt Service Funds are used to account for the payments on the Commission’s general obligation
debt, which includes Park Acquisition and Development Bonds (Park Bonds) and Advance Land Acquisition Bonds
(ALA Bonds). The outstanding issues totaling $121.6 million and the related debt service requirements to maturity are
set forth in Note 4E of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The Commission’s general obligation bonds are unconditionally guaranteed by the Commission and the county for
which issued. Debt service principal and interest expenditures for Park Bonds and ALA Bonds totaled $18.7 million
(Montgomery - $4.5 million; Prince George’s - $14.2 million) for the fiscal year. Of the outstanding debt, Park Bonds
totaled $117.8 million (Montgomery County - $32.3 million and Prince George’s County - $85.5 million) at June 30,
2009. Park Bonds debt service expenditures totaled $17.7 million (Montgomery - $3.8 million, Prince George's - $13.9
million) for the fiscal year. The Commission’s Metropolitan District (Park) tax includes a mandatory tax for debt service
for Park Bonds of 3.6 cents per $100 of assessed valuation for real property (9 cents for personal property) in
Montgomery County and 4 cents per $100 of assessed valuation for real property (10 cents for personal property) in
Prince George’s County. Debt service payments approximated 0.26 cents per $100 of assessed valuation for real
property and .65 cents per $100 of assessed valuation for personal property for Montgomery County and 1.63 cents
per $100 of assessed valuation for real property and 4.05 cents per $100 of assessed valuation for personal property
for Prince George’s County. The remainder of the proceeds of the mandatory taxes was used for park operation and
maintenance expenditures in the respective counties.

The Commission’s outstanding general obligation bonds have the following ratings:

Commission General Obligation Bond Ratings
June 30, 2009
Moody's
Investor Standard & Poor’s Fitch Ratings
Services Inc. Rating Services
Montgomery County Aaa AAA AAA
Prince George’s County Aal AAA AA+

The Commission’s Montgomery County revenue bonds and revenue notes payable totaled $4.5 million at June 30,
2009. The bonds and notes have a reported value of $4.4 million, after considering the $0.1 million of unamortized
discount and are accounted for in the Enterprise Funds. The revenue bonds and notes are not general obligations of
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the Commission or Montgomery County and are payable solely from revenues generated from revenue producing
facilities. Debt service expenditures for the revenue bonds and notes totaled $1.3 million for the fiscal year. The
outstanding proprietary fund debt as of June 30, 2009, and the related debt service requirements are set forth in the
Notes to the Financial Statements.

On May 21, 2009, the Commission issued $8,405,000 of Montgomery County Park Acquisition and Development
Refunding Bonds, Series LL-2 and $5,250,000 of Montgomery County Park Acquisition and Development General
Obligation Project Bonds, Series MM-2. The refunding bonds provided the resources to retire on June 8, 2009
$4,550,000 of Montgomery County Park Acquisition and Development Project Bonds, Series U-2 (current refunding)
and to defease the $3,700,000 callable portion of the Montgomery County Park Acquisition and Development Project
Bonds, Series Y-2 (advance refunding). The reacquisition price in excess of the net carrying value of the old debt is
being netted against the new debt and amortized over the remaining life of the refunded bonds, which equals the life of
the new debt issued. Semiannual payments of interest and annual principal payments are due until November 1, 2020
at a net interest cost of 2.4059% and November 1, 2028, at a net interest cost of 3.4803% respectively.

Details of the Commission’s outstanding debt (net of unamortized discounts and premiums) at June 30, 2009 follow
($000's):
Commission’s Outstanding Debt
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds and Notes

Commission's Outstanding Debt
June 30, 2009 and 2008

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Change

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
General obligation bonds $ 119,930 $ 128,029 $ - $ - $ 119,930 $ 128,029 -6.3%
Revenue bonds and notes - - 4,427 5,502 4,427 5,502 -19.5%
Notes payable 3,355 4,960 - - 3,355 4,960 -32.4%
Total $ 123,285 $ 132,989 $ 4,427 $ 5,502 $ 127,712 $ 138,491 -7.8%

Montgomery County Outstanding Debt
June 30, 2009 and 2008

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Change

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
General obligation bonds $ 35007 $ 32,770 $ - 3% - $ 35007 $ 32,770 6.8%
Revenue bonds and notes - - 4,427 5,502 4,427 5,502 -19.5%
Notes payable 2,301 3,522 - - 2,301 3,522 -34.7%
Total $ 37,308 $ 36,292 $ 4,427 $ 5502 $ 41,735 $ 41,794 -0.1%

Prince George's County Outstanding Debt
June 30, 2009 and 2008

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Change

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
General obligation bonds $ 84923 $ 95259 $ - 3% - $ 84923 $ 95,259 -10.9%
Revenue bonds and notes - - - - - - 0.0%
Notes payable 1,054 1,438 - - 1,054 1,438 -26.7%
Total $ 85977 $ 96697 $ - $ - $ 85977 $ 96,697 -11.1%

The Commission’s total debt decreased by $10.8 million (7.8%) during the current fiscal year, due to a current and
advance refunding and principal payments made as scheduled offset by a new debt issue.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt the Commission may issue to the amount that can be
redeemed within 30 years from date of issue by the taxes authorized for payment of the bonds. The legal debt margin
for the Commission is $1,526.0 million of debt service for Montgomery County and $936.7 million of debt service for
Prince George’s County, which is in excess of the Commission’s required debt service of $40.9 million and $105.9
million, respectively, over the 30 year period.

Additional information on the Commission’s long-term debt can be found in Note 4E of the Notes to the Financial
Statements.
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Economic Factors and Next Year’'s Budgets and Rates

The Commission continues to maintain a solid financial position and stable future outlook supported by the stability of
its major revenue source, property taxes which represented 87% of the Governmental Funds revenues in FY 2009.
Strong fiscal policies including fund balance reserves, interim financial reporting to monitor revenues and expenditures,
a FY 2009 savings plan for Montgomery County operations including a retirement incentive program, and long-term
fiscal plans enabled the Commission to respond to the strategies incorporated by the two County Governments in
setting the FY 2010 tax rates and adopting the FY 2010 Budget.

The Commission’s property tax rates in the two counties are set based on different fiscal strategies. In Montgomery
County, the Commission’s property tax rates are set in conjunction with the Montgomery County Government property
tax rates, which have resulted in declining Commission tax rates over the past few years. In FY 2010, the
Commission’s total Montgomery County real property tax rate was reduced by .4 of a cent and the personal property
tax rate was reduced by .9 of a cent. So although the taxable real property assessable base was projected to increase
by 7%, the budgeted growth in Commission property tax revenues was less than 1%. An increased reliance on prior
year fund balance and slower expenditure growth including a temporary halt to the phasing in of pre-funding of Other
Post Employment Benefits was necessary to balance the operating budget.

In Prince George’s County, the Commission’s property tax rates were increased in FY 2004 to maintain a level tax
rate for the foreseeable future and to fund an aggressive capital improvement program. With the strong assessable
base growth, the property tax revenues increased at a greater rate than expenditures, enabling the Commission to
budget a large amount of current revenue to fund the capital improvement program and increase assistance to Prince
George’s County Government in funding programs they deliver to the community which are eligible to be funded by
Commission property tax revenues. These expenditures are referred to as project charges. The project charges
increased from $5.2 million in FY 2008 to $15.2 million in FY 2009 and in FY 2010, they were budgeted at $16.1
million. In addition, the Commission supported legislation effective in FY 2010 to transfer $30.0 million from the
Commission’s Park Account property taxes in FY 2010 and FY 2011 to assist the Prince George’'s County
Government. These transfers will be achieved primarily by reducing the current revenue funding of the capital
improvement program in FY 2010 and FY 2011 and issuing bonds at a future date when resources are needed. The
budgeted current revenue transfer from the Park Account to the Capital Project Fund was reduced from $68.0 million
in the FY 2010 Proposed Budget to $43.0 million in the FY 2010 Adopted Budget.

As noted above, assessable base in both counties continues to grow, but at a reduced rate due to the economic slow
down. One-third of the property is inspected and revalued by the State Department of Assessments and Taxation each
year so that all real property is inspected and revalued once every three years. The three-year cycle results in a
smoothing effect on property tax revenues. In times of slowing growth, the assessable base declines at a slower rate
which affords the Commission time to adjust its service delivery and spending levels in response to what is
economically affordable. When the economy is recovering, the assessments growth rate will lag somewhat.
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The steady growth in property tax revenues over the past 10 years is displayed in the following chart.

Property Tax Revenues
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At year-end, the Commission had a budget basis fund balance in the General Fund of $112.1 million. Of this amount,
$20.9 million is designated to fund fiscal year 2010, $17.3 million is designated for unforeseen circumstances, and
$74.0 million is uncommitted as of June 30, 2009. Of the uncommitted portion, $72.2 million is from Prince George’s
County operations and will be utilized in future years to build out an aggressive capital improvement program and
maintain a stable tax rate in accordance with its long-term fiscal plan.

The Commission’s Montgomery County activities are subject to spending affordability guidelines of Montgomery
County Government. In Prince George’s County, a Spending Affordability Committee makes recommendations during
the budgetary process to the County Executive and the County Council concerning spending affordability of the
Commission’s Prince George’s County operations.

The spending affordability processes along with close monitoring of financial results and projections during the fiscal
year add to the solid foundation of financial management and assist the Commission in meeting the challenge of
providing enhanced public services at an economical cost.

Requests for Information

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Commission’s finances for all those with an
interest in the Commission’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests
for additional financial information should be addressed to the Department of Finance, Office of Secretary-Treasurer,
The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission, 6611 Kenilworth Avenue, Riverdale, Maryland 20737.
This report can also be found on the Commissions website, http://www.mncppc.org (See CAFR).
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2009
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities
ASSETS
Equity in Pooied Cash and Investments $ 358,300,198 3 4,136,005
Receivables - Taxes, net of allowanca for uncollectibias 6,825,700 “
Recaivables - Othar 1,999,087 6,928
Dua from County Gavernments 4,324,138 540,000
Dua from Other Governments 5,625,448 9,231
Invantories - 980,265
Deposits and Other 634,998 -
Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments:
Unspent Debt Proceeds 13,009,979 -
Capital Aszeta:
Land and Construction in Progress 378,726,697 19,761,487
Other Capital Assets, Nat of Accumulated Depreciation 224,479,222 62,066,098
Total Assets 994,925,405 87,700,104
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Other Currant Liabilities 39,351,731 859,746
Accrued Interast Payable 1,422 907 31,370
Dua to Othar Govarnments 323,000 -
Deposita and Unearnad Revenue 5.271,011 1,146,080
Claims Payable:
Due within One Year 4,563,532 -
Due in more than One Year 7,619,301 -
Compensated Absances:
Duye within One Year 10,249,643 321,668
Dua in more than Ona Year 8,390,148 753,088
Bonds and Notes Payable:
Due within One Year 15,375,160 1,129,561
Due in more than One Year 107,909,559 3,297,072
Net Other Post Empioyment Banefit Obligations
Pue in mora than Cne Yaar 19,480, BE5 804 9687
Total Liabilities 219,947,258 8,443 542
NET ASSETS
Investad in Capital Assets, Net of Relatad Debt 492,930,779 77,400,952
Unrestricted 202,047 368 1,855,610
Total Net Assats ] 774,978,147 $ 79,258,562

The notas 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 1

Total

363,636,293
8,925,700
2,008,015
4,864,138
5534 877

980,265
634,938

13,009,979

308,488,184
286,545,320

1,082,625 509

40,211,477
1,454,277
323,000
6,417,091

4,553,532
7,619,301

10,571,301
9,143,237

16,504,721
111,207,031

20,385, 832
228,390,800

570,331,731

283,902,978
854,234,709



4%

Functions/Pregrams

Governmental Activities:
General Government
Ceuniy Planning and Zening
Park Operafions and Maintenance
Recreation Programs
Interest on Long-term Debt
Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:
Recreational and CuRural Facilities
Total Business-type Activities
Total Government

THE MARYLARD-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSIGH

The notes fo the financial statements are an intagral part of this statement.

Exhibit 2
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Program Revenues
QOperating
Charges for Grants and Governmenial Business-type
Expenses Services Contributions Activities Activities Total
18,875,298 - % - {18,875,258) § - {18,875,258)
60,370,641 3,257,841 1,418,179 (55,683.621) - (55,683,621)
181,359,243 5,381,158 881,923 (154,542,161) - (154,542 161}
68,011,470 12.725 830 808,008 (54,477,532) - {54 477.532)
5211,728 - - {5,211,728} - (5,211,728}
333,828,340 21,364 927 3,118,110 (288,800,300} - {288,800,300)
30,899,133 18,177,811 91,937 - {12,629 585) {12,628 585)
30,899 133 18,177,811 91837 - {12,629 585) {12,628,585)
$§ 364727473 39,542,538 % 3,211,047 {288,800,300) {12,629 585) {301,429 885)
Generai Revenues:;
Property Taxes 354,329,523 - 354,329,523
Unrestricied Investment Eamings 9,152,076 138,213 9,250,289
Transfers {9,559,900) 9,559,900 -
Net General Revenues and Transfers 353,881,699 9,738,113 363,619,812
Change in Net Assets 655,081,395 (2,891.472) 62 189,927
Net Assets - Beginning 709,856,748 82,148,034 792 044 782
Net Assets - Ending 774,978,147 § 79,256562 § 854,234,709




THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

Exhibit 3
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2009
Montgomery Prince George's
County County Other Total
Capital Capital Governmental Govermnmentat
General Projects Projects Funds Funds
ASSETS
Equity in Pooled Cash and Invesiments 3 174569671 212442 & 122876564 % 6398507 304,058,184
Receivables - Taxes {net of allowance for uncollectibles) 6,820,121 - - 105,579 8,925,700
Receivables - Other (net of allowance for uncollectibies) 170,048 - 1,775,018 13,728 1,968,792
Due from County Govemments 245,272 3,182,605 - 4749158 3912882
Due from Other Governments 323,889 1,397,378 3,804,179 - 5,525,446
Restricted Cash - Unspent Debt Proceeds - 2,933,418 40,076,561 - 13,008,879
Other 22,560 - - - 22,580
Tolal Assets $ 182,151,581 § 77350933 $ 138532320 $ 6,993,728 $ 335,413,563
T "
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabiliies:
Accounts Payable - 21,723,710 § 2815682 § 1,729680 § 459,738 § 28,728,810
Accrued Liabilities 10,361,983 - - 137,568 10499551
Retainage Payable - 879,292 749,908 - 1.829,200
Due to County Govemments &0 - - 35 a5
Deposits and Deferred Revenue 8510418 875,000 - 1654687 7.550,885
Total Liabilities 38,598,171 4,569,874 2,479,588 762,808 46,408,541
Fund Balances: )
Reserved for Encumbrances 31,406,415 13,074,814 15,879,797 B47,503 61,208,529
Reserved for Debt Service - - - 43379 43,379
Unreserved, Designated for Contingencies 17,298,600 - - - 17,288,600
Unreserved, Designated for Subsequent Years 20,875,700 - - - 20,875,700
Unreserved, Undesignated, Reported in:
General Fund i 73,974,695 - - . 73,974,695
8pecial Revenue Fund R - - . 5,340,039 5,340,039
Capital Projects Fund - (9,808,855) 120,172,935 - 110,264,080
Total Fund Balances . 143,555 410 3,165,559 136,052,732 6,230,921 289,005,022
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 18‘._’_.1 51581 § 77356833 § 138532320 § 6,893,729
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
are different because:
Capital assats used in governmental activities are not financia
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 591,620,998

Internat service funds are used by management to charge the costs of capital

equipment financing, risk management, group insurance and

the Exscutive Office Building. The assets and liabiiities of the intemal

service funds are inciuded in govemmental activities in the statement of

net assets. 51,468,666
Some of the Commission's taxes will be collected after year-end, but are not

available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures, and

therefore are reported as deferred revenus in the funds, 2278874
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payablie in the
current period and therefore are not reporied in the funds, (158,396,413}
Net Assets of Govemmental Activities $ 774,978,147

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Intergovernmental -

Federal

State

Caunty

Local
Charges for Services
Rentals and Concessions
Interest
Sale of Land
Contributions
Miscallaneous

Total Ravenues

EXPENDITURES
Cuyrant -
General Government
Pianning and Zoning
Park Operations and Maintanance
Recraation
Contributions
Debt Servica -
Principal
Interest
Qihar Debt Service Costs
Capital Qutiay -
Park Acquisition
Park Davalopment
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revanues over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Ganaral Obligation Bonds Issued
Refunding Bonds |ssued
Premiuma on Bonds Issued
Frincipal Retirement of Refunded Bonds
Transfers in
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning

Exhibit 4
Statoment of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
Mantgomery Prince George's
County County Other Total
Capitat Capital Governmental Governmental
General Frojects Projects Funds Funds
§ 351,087,124 § - % N 2908130 § 353,966,263
225,758 488,219 30,306 . 744,283
573,160 895,889 2,710,811 . 4,179,660
1,058,381 10,640,732 - 715417 12,412,530
41,254 - - 33,977 75,231
£,903,853 - - 2,668,366 11,572,219
4,180,907 5 - 4,856,311 9,017 218
3,691,807 280,008 3,043,344 240,938 7.665, 096
- 355,028 - - 366,028
- 37,500 2,025,016 473,163 2,535,879
506,507 5,820 402 255 761 775,490
370,519,751 12,712,187 7,808,678 12157 070 403,188,667
18,355,088 = . . 18,356,008
53,448,736 - - 3,893,007 57,135,743
162,175,782 - - 427,950 162,803,732
58,238,277 = - 6,770,67¢ 65,000,056
P - - 1,860,781 1,860,781
56,800 . 13,649,049 13,705,849
W - 5,065,685 5,065,685
- - & 178,835 178,835
. 2,206,268 6,801,138 = 9,007,408
. 17,863,780 11,067 678 . 28 961,336
292 273 693 20,670,028 17,858,714 31,845 986 362,088 421
78,248,058 {7 357 831) (10,088.035) (19,688,918) 41,110,276
- 5,250,000 - - 5,250,000
. “ 2 8,408,000 8,405,000
- 38,212 . 343,405 381,617
- - - (8,650,856) (8,650,856)
3,332,353 - 61,182,809 19,602,434 84,117 596
(B8,718.122) (327,221) (3,043,344) {1,628 809) (93,717.498)
(86 386,768) 4,960,991 58,139,465 18,071,174 (4,214,130)
(7.138,711) (2,368,840) 48,050,430 (1,817,742) 36,698,137
150,605,121 5562 769 88,002,302 7,848,663 262,108,885
143|555 410 % 3165050 % 13ﬂi052i732 $ 6230921 % 289,005,022

Fund Balancas - Ending

The notas 1o the financial statermants are an integral part of this staternent,
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION
Exhibit §
Raconcillation of the Staternent of Revenuaes, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances of Govarnmantal Funds
To the Statemant of Activities
For the Year Ended Juna 30, 2009

Armounts reported for governmental activities in the Statemant of Activitas (Exhibit 2) are
different because:

Net changa in fund balances - lotal gevarnmental funds (Exhibit 4) S 36,898,137

Governmental funds report capital outiays as expenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets ig allocated
ovar thair estimated useful ives and reported as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which capitalized expenditures
exceeded depreciation in the current perod.

Capitalized Expandituras 3 41,731,126

Depraciation Expense {14,456 137)
MNet adjustment 27,275,589

In the Statement of Activitias, only the gain (loss) on the sale of property is
reported, whereas in the governmental funds, the proceeds from sales
increasa financial resources, Other land activity that has no impact on
financial resources is also included in the Statement of Activities.

Sale of Land (355,028)
Donations 3,715,730
Net adjustment 3,360,702

Tax revenues in the Statement of Activties that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenuas in the funds,
This is the amount by which the deferred revenues changed from
jast fiscal year. 363,260

The issuance of long-term debt {e.9., bonds, leases) provides
current financial resources to governmantal funds, while the
repayment of the principal of long-tarm debt consumas the
current financial resources of govarnmantal funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also,
govarnmantal funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums,
discounts, and similar items when debt is first issusd, whereas
these amounts are deferred and amaortized in the the
Statement of Activities. This amount is the net affact of these
differances in the treatment of long-tern dabt and related items.

General Obligation Debt incurred {13,967,009)
Repaymenta of Principal 13,705,849
Payment to Refunding Bond Escrow Account 8,650,856
Net adjustment 8,389,696

Some expenses repored in the statament of activilies do not require the
vse of current financial resourcas and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in the governmantal funds, This amount is the unfunded
cost of other post employment benefits and compensated abgsences, {11,202,258)

Accrued interest expanse reported in the Statement of Activities
do nat require the use of current financial resources and,
therafora, are not reported as expanditures in governmental funds.
The amount i& the impact of the net change in the liabilities
from the prior year. 5,901

Internal service funds are used by managament to charge the costs

of capital equipment financings, employea benefits, risk management

and Executive Office Building costs, to individual funds,

Tha change In net assets of certain activities of internal service funds

is reported with governmental activities. 292,772
Change in net assats of govemmental activities (Exhibit 2) $ 65,081,399

The natas to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Revenues:

Property Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Rentals and Concessians
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revanues

Expenditures/Encumbrances.
General Government
County Planning and Zoning
Park Operation and Maintenance
Recreaticn Programs
Total Expenditures/Encumbrances

Excess of Revenues over
Expenditures/Encumbrances

Other Financing Sources (Uses).
Transfars In
Transfers Out
Total Cther Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Ravenues and Other Financing Sources

over Expendituras/Encumbrances
and Other Financing Uses - Budget Basis

Fund Balances - Budget Basis, Beginning

Exhibit 6
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual - GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
Budgetad Amounts Varianca
Positive
Qriginal Final Actual _{Neqative)
335,800,200 335800200 § 351,057,124 §  15256,924
1,522 500 2,026,386 1,896,551 (129,835)
8,653,100 9,653,100 8,003,853 (749,247)
4,446,500 4,446,500 4 160,906 (285,65094)
4,384 000 4,394 Q00 3,991,807 (402,183)
440,500 445 481 509,507 64 026
356,256,800 356,765 667 370,519,748 13,754,081
18,639,200 18,241,000 18,280,425 960,575
64,432,900 65,205,376 66,306,030 8,989,346
171,232,500 171,736,470 169,599,800 2,136,670
57,367,300 58,867 921 57 875126 983,796
312,671,800 315,130,767 302 061,380 13,068,387
43 584 900 41,634,900 68,458 368 26 823 468
1,270,000 1,270,000 3,332,353 2,062,353
{89 206 600) (89,206 600) (88, 718,122) 488, 478
{87 936,600} (87,936 600) (85, 385,769) 2,550,831
(44,351,700} (46,301,700) (16,927,401} % 2913?4@99
129,076,356
% 1 1.'!'143 995

Fund Balances - Budget Basis, Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 7
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2009
Governmental
Business-lype Activities - Enterprise Funds Activitias-
Recreational and Cultural Activities (ntarnal
Montgomery Princa George's Sarvica
County County Totals Funds
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 1497629 §% 2,838,466 § 4,336,095 § 66,242,014
Accounts Receivable 6,928 - 6,928 40,295
Due from County Government 180,000 - 180,000 411,256
Due from Other Govarnment - 9231 9,231 -
Prepaid Expenses - - - 495 654
Deaposits and Other - - - 116,704
Inventories 152 487 827,778 980 265 -
Total Current Assets 1,837,044 3,675,475 5512519 56,305,923
Noncurrent Assets:
Due from County Government 360,000 - 360,000 -
Capita) Asseats:
Land 11,584,468 7,779,131 19,363,599 748,497
Buildings and Improvements 26,999,848 72,270,589 99,270,437 2,649 BGS
Machinery and Equipment 1,680,427 5,047 976 6,728,403 27,752,284
Construction in Progress 397 888 - 397,888 2,037 508
40,662,631 85,097 656 125,760,327 33,188,155
Less - Accumulated Depreciation (15,056 458) {28,876 284) (43,932 742 (21,603,234)
Total Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 25 606,173 56,221,412 81,827,585 11,584,921
Total Noncutrent Assets 25,966,173 56,221412 82 187 585 11,584,921
Total Assels 27,803,217 59,896,887 87,700,104 67,890,844
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 102,018 478,203 580,221 477 977
Claims Payable - - - 4,553,632
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 65,017 214,508 279,525 16,193
Compensated Absences 97,316 224,343 321,658 55,880
Interest Payable 31,370 - 31.370 40,097
Revenue Collected in Advance 812,787 333,293 1,146,080 -
Current Portion of Revenue Bonds Payable 685,117 - 685,117 -
Current Portion of Revenue Notes Payable 444,444 - 444 444 -
Current Portion of Notes Payable i . . 1613563
Due to Other Government 2 = - 322 908
Total Currant Liabilities 2,238 068 1,250 347 3,488 415 7,080,147
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Claims Payable - - - 7,619,301
Revenue Bonds Payable 1,741,612 - 1,741,512 -
Revenue Notes Payable 1,666,560 - 1,555,560 -
MNotes Payable - - - 1,570,916
Compensated Absences 179,087 574,001 753,088 3322
Nat Other Post Empioyment Benefit Obligations 184,535 720,432 904,967 118,692
Total Noncurrent Liabillties 3,660,694 1,294 433 4 855127 g 342 031
Total Liabilities 5,898 762 2,544 780 B,443 542 16,422,178
NET ASSETS
invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 21,179,540 56,221,412 77,400,952 8,400,442
Unrestricted 724 915 1,130,695 1,855 610 43,068,224
Total Net Assets 21.904 455 57,352.107 § 79256562 % 51,468 6566

Tha notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statoment of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Asgats

Operating Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Sales

Charges for Services

Claim Recoveries

Rentals and Concessions
Tolal Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses;
Cost of Goods Sold
Personal Services
Supplies and Materials
Claims incurred
Insurance
Communications

Utilities

Maintenance
Contractual Services
Other Services and Charges
Administrative Services
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating (Loss)

Nonoparating Revenues (Expenses):
Investmeant Earnings
Interest Expense, nat of Amortization

Total Nonoperating Revenua (Expense)

Transfers

Income (Loss) before Transfers

Change in Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Total Net Assets - Beginning - as restated (see Note 6)
Total Net Assets - Ending

$

Exhibit 8
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Govarnmental
Activities-

Recraational and Cultural Activities [aternal

Montgomery Prince George's Service

County County Totals Funds
82,249 % 9688 § 91937 3 =
631,471 2,409,559 3,061,030 =
5,456,653 4 576,459 10,033,112 34,423 182
- - - 930,930
2,327,935 2,755,534 5,083,469 -
8,518 308 9,751,240 18,268,548 35,354 112
356,967 1,615,475 1,872,442 -
3,001,710 11,220,669 14,312,369 4,601,217
503,561 1,615,713 2,119,274 360,071
- - - 19,782,069
- - - 6,905,926
36,124 345,584 381,708 -
1,204,525 1,981,766 3,186,291 B
498,606 860,290 1,358,896 -
557,948 606,466 1,164,416 1,332 214
232,402 658,519 890,921 1,628,182
1,251,790 341,700 1,633,480 -
1,363,936 2,268,984 3,632,920 1,808,716
9,137,570 21,515,156 30,652,726 36,506,385
(619,262) {11,763,816) {12,383,178) (1,152,283)
49,738 88,478 138,213 1,586,080
(246,407) ’ (246,407) 141,925
{(196,672) BB.A78 (108,194) 1,445,055
(815,934) (11,675,438) (12,491,372) 292,772
619,000 8,580,900 9,548 500 -
{196,934} {2,694,538) (2,891,472) 292772
22,101,389 60,046,645 82,148 034 51,175,604
21904455 § 657.352107 § 79266562 § 51,468,666

The notes {o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 9
Statament of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
Business-type Activitias- Enterprise Funds
Governmental
Racraational and Cultural Activities Activities-
Montgormery Prince George's Internal
County County Taotals Service Funds
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers and Users 5 8528788 % 10,044,653 § 18,573,441 % 34,440,543
Payments to Suppliers (3,165,480) (7.809,767) (10,975,247) (29,183,447)
Payments to Employees (2,563,906) (10,768,898) (13,732,804) (4,636,234)
Payments for Interfund Services Used (432,700) - (432,700) (487 800)
Payments for Administrative Charges (1,291,790) {341,700) {1,633,490) -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Aclivities 674912 (8,875712) (8,200,800) 133,062
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfers In from QOther Funds 619,000 8,980 900 9,599,900 -
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (286,069) {288,318) (574,385) (4,374,2209)
Principal Paid on Bonds and Notes Payable (1,107,223) - (1,107,223) (1,548,712)
Interest Paid (214,344) . (214,344) (141,925)
Fayment Received on Long Term Note 180,000 - 180,000 -
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related
Financing Activities (1.427 636) (288,316) (1,715,8952) (6,064 B66)
Cash Flows from Investing Aclivities:
Interest on Investments 49 735 88,478 138,213 1,586,980
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (83,989) (84,650) (178,639) {4,344,824)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 1,581,618 2,933,116 4514,734 59,586,838
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 § 1497628 § 2,838 466_$ 4336005 $ 55242014
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Exhibit 9

continued
Business-type Activities- Enterprise Funds
Governmenial
Recreational and Cultural Activities Activities-
Mantgomery Prince George's Internal
County County Totals Service Funds

Reconciliation of Operating (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Qperating (Loss) $ (619.262) $ (11,763916) § (12,383,178) & (1,152,283)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 1,363,936 2,268,984 3,632,920 1,896,716
Effect of Changes in Assets and Liabilities in:

Accounts Receivable - 84,550 84,6560 (24,625)
Due from Other Government 102,906 (9,231) 93,675 (293,290}
Inventories, at Cost 33,753 432 34,185 -
Prepaid Expenses - - - (495,654)
Agccounts Payable {234,253) (126,386) (360.839) 150,224
Claims Payahble - - - 271,780
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 17.051 38,728 55,779 (50,920)
Compensated Absences 18,535 44,190 62,725 15,903
Interest Payable (7,545) - (7.545) (16,009}
Other Accrued Liabilities - - - (100,000)
Due to Other Funds - - - (18,868)
Due to County Government - - - (120,105}
Net Other Post Employment Obligations 92,218 368,843 461,061 70,193
Revenhue Collected in Advance (82 427) 218,094 125 667 -
Total Adjustments 1,294,174 2 B8, 204 4,182,378 1,285 345
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 3 674,912 % (8,875,712) § (8,200,800) % 133,062

The notes to the financial statements are an integral par of this statement.
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Exhibit 10
Statement of Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2009
Pension Private
Trust Purpose Agency
Funds Trust Funds Funds
ASSETS
Equity in Pooled Cash and investments 3 602,103 $ 27,397,529 s 2676,084
Cash 45,487 . .
Fixed income Securities 126,922,128 - -
Internationai Fixed Income Securities 26,625,065 - -
Corporate Stock 210,216,353 - -
International Corporate Stock 57,811,003 - -
Real Estate Investments 22,147,479 - -
Short Termn Investments 16,282,919 “ -
Mutual Funds 7.457 761 - -
Collateral for Securities Lending Transactions 21,963,391 - -
Accounts Receivable 1,401,972 2,602 364,112
Land Held for Other Govarnments - 50,342 673 -
Other 14,783 - .
Total Assets 491,490,444 77,742 804 3,041,096
LIABILITIES
Investment Payable 9,037,432 - -
Accounts Payable 577,207 4,633 2,398,643
Claims Payable 597,231 - %
Obfigation for Collaterat Received .
under Securities Lending Transactions 22,637 284 - -
Deposits .- - 641,453
Total Liabilities 32,749,154 4633 3,041,096
NET ASSETS
Assets Held in Trust for:
Land Held for Other Gavernments - 60,342 673 -
Pansion Benefits 451,265,999 - -
Other Postemployment Benefits 7,476,201 - -
Other Purposes - 27,395,458 -
Total Net Assets $ 458741290 $ 77738171 % »

The notes to the financial statements are an integral parl of this statement.
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Statament of Changes in Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds

For the Year Ended June 340, 2009

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Emplayer
Plan Members
FPlan Members for Current Benefits
Private Donations
Tatal Contributions

Receipts from Commission Debt Service Funds
Federal Grants - Medicare

Investment Earnings.
Interest
Dividends
Net decrease in the Fair Value of Investments
Total Investment Earnings
Less Investment Advisory and Management Fees
Net Income (Loss) from Investing Activities

Securities Lending Activity
Securities Lending Income
Securities Lending Fees
Net income from Securities Lending Activity

Total Net Investment Income (Loss)
Total Additions and Investment Income (Loss)

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits
Refunds of Contributions
Administrative Expenses

Other
Total Deductions
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning
Net Assets - Ending

$

§

Exhibit 11
Pension Private
Trust Purpose
Funds Trust Funds
26,542 142 5 -
4 892 570 -
845,226 -
- 51,632
32, 279 938 51,632
2 1,860,781
333,101 -
6,414,863 752,598
286,946 -
(125,394 138) -
(118,692,329) 752,598
{1,587.109) -
(120,289 438) 752,598
355,078 -
(245 946) -
106,132 -
(120,184,306) 752 598
{87,571,267) 2,665 011
33,059,925 -
249 583 -
1,358,695 -
- 62,337
34,668,203 62,337
(122,239 470) 2,602,674
580 980,760 75,136 497
458,741,290 $ 77738171

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

(1) - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(A) The Commission and Its Services

Background

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission (the "Commission") is a body corporate of
the State of Maryland established by the Maryland General Assembly in 1927. The Commission is a
bi-county agency. It is empowered to acquire, develop, maintain and administer a regional system of
parks in the defined Metropolitan District in Montgomery and Prince George's Counties and to prepare
and administer a general plan for the physical development of a defined Regional District for the two
Counties. The Commission also conducts the recreation program for Prince George's County. The
express powers of the Commission are provided in Article 28 of the Annotated Code of Maryland. As a
body corporate of the State of Maryland, the Commission is not generally subject to local county
legislation such as the Tax Reform Initiative by Marylanders ("TRIM"), a Prince George's County Charter
Amendment originally enacted in November 1978.

The major source of funding for the Commission's primary services are five property taxes levied on an
individual County basis: Montgomery County administration tax - general administration and planning;
Montgomery County park tax - park operations and debt service for park acquisition and development
bonds; Prince George's County administration tax - general administration and planning; Prince George's
County park tax - park operations and debt service for park acquisition and development bonds; and the
Prince George's County recreation tax for the recreation program. Five separate accounts are
maintained within the General Fund to account for the Commission's primary services. Revenues and
expenditures that can be specifically identified with a County are recorded in the appropriate account of
that County and those that apply to both Counties are allocated to the appropriate accounts. Other funds
and accounts are maintained on a Commission-wide or on a separate County basis as necessary and
appropriate.

The provisions of Sections 2-113 and 7-107 of Article 28 of the Annotated Code of Maryland require that
the Commission publish an annual financial report and that its financial statements be audited by
independent certified public accountants. The accompanying financial statements have been presented
to meet the financial reporting needs of the Commission and the requirements of Maryland law.

Financial Reporting Entity

The Employees’ Retirement System (ERS), administered by the 11 member Board of Trustees, in
accordance with the Trust Agreement between the Board and the Commission, is a contributory defined
benefit pension system qualified under the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a). The administrative
operations are the responsibility of the ERS Staff and Board-appointed Administrator, who reports directly
to the Board of Trustees. Publicly available Financial Statements for the ERS can be obtained at 6611
Kenilworth Avenue, Suite 100, Riverdale, Maryland 20737.

The Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust (115 Trust), administered by the 5 member Board of
Trustees, in accordance with the Trust Agreement between the Board and the Commission, is a trust
qualified under the Internal Revenue Code Section 115 to provide health insurance benefits for eligible
participants. Only employer funds are held in the trust. The administrative operations are the
responsibility of the Administrator who is a Commission employee, and reports directly to the Board of
Trustees.
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As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), these
financial statements present the Commission and its blended component units, the ERS and the 115
Trust. A blended component unit, although a legally separate entity, is, in substance, part of the
Commission’s operations and therefore data from these units are combined with data of the Commission.
Accordingly, the financial statements of these component units are included as pension trust funds in the
accompanying financial statements and are the only such component units of the Commission.

In accordance with GAAP, the Commission represents a joint venture of Montgomery and Prince
George’s Counties, reportable in the notes to their respective financial statements. The financial data of
the Commission pertinent to Montgomery County and Prince George’'s County for governmental funds
are set forth on a County basis in Note 7.

(B) Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The Commission follows accounting standards established by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (“GASB").

The reporting requirements established by GASB include:

Management’'s Discussion _and Analysis — GASB standards require that financial statements be
accompanied by a narrative introduction and analytical overview of the Commission’s financial activities in
the form of “management’s discussion and analysis” (MD&A). This analysis is similar to analysis the
private sector provides in their annual reports.

Government-wide Financial Statements — The reporting model includes financial statements prepared
using full accrual accounting for all of the Commission’s activities. This approach includes not just current
assets and liabilities (such as cash and accounts payable), but also capital assets and long-term liabilities
(such as buildings and infrastructure, including bridges and roads, and general obligation debt). Full
accrual accounting also recognizes all revenues and the full cost to provide services each year, not just
those received or paid in the current year or soon thereafter. Neither fiduciary funds nor component units
that are fiduciary in nature are included in Government-wide financial statements.

The basic financial statements include both Government-wide (based on the Commission as a whole)
and fund financial statements. The focus is on both the Commission as a whole and the fund financial
statements, including the major individual funds of the governmental and business-type categories, as
well as the fiduciary funds (by category). Both the Government-wide and fund financial statements (within
the basic financial statements) categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type. In
the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities, both the governmental and
business-type activities columns are presented on a consolidated basis by column on a full accrual,
economic resource basis, as discussed above. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double
counting of internal activities. Each presentation provides valuable information that can be analyzed and
compared (between years and between governments) to enhance the usefulness of the information.

The Government-wide Financial Statements are made up of the following:

Statement of Net Assets — The Statement of Net Assets is designed to display the financial position of
the Commission (government and business-type activities). The Commission reports all capital assets,
including infrastructure, in the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets and reports depreciation
expense — the cost of “using up” capital assets — in the Statement of Activities. The net assets of the
Commission are presented in three categories — 1) invested in capital assets, net of related debt; 2)
restricted; and 3) unrestricted. The Commission generally first uses restricted assets for expenses
incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted assets are available. The Commission may defer the
use of restricted assets based on a review of the specific transaction. The Commission has no restricted
assets as of June 30, 2009.
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Statement of Activities — The Government-wide Statement of Activities reports expenses and revenues
in a format that focuses on the cost of each of the Commission’s functions. The expense of each
individual function is compared to the revenues generated directly by the function (for instance, through
user charges or intergovernmental grants). The Government-wide Statement of Activities reflects both
the gross and net cost per functional category (county planning and zoning, park operations and
maintenance, recreation, etc.) that is otherwise being supported by general government revenues. The
Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues,
operating and capital grants, and contributions. The program revenues must be directly associated with
the function (county planning and zoning, park operations and maintenance, recreation, etc.) or a
business-type activity. Program revenues include 1) charges for county planning and zoning services; 2)
charges for park operations and maintenance; 3) rentals and concessions; 4) recreational and cultural
facilities and events and 5) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Property taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported as general revenues. Direct expenses are considered
those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. The Commission does not allocate
indirect expenses. The operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or
capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

Fund Financial Statements — Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the Government-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

In the fund financial statements, financial transactions and accounts of the Commission are organized on
the basis of funds. The operation of each fund is considered to be an independent fiscal and separate
accounting entity, with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and/or other financial resources
together with all related liabilities and residual equities or balances, and changes therein, which are
segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance
with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations. The governmental fund financial statements are
presented on a current financial resource and modified accrual basis of accounting. This is the manner in
which these funds are normally budgeted. Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a
different measurement focus and basis of accounting than the Government-wide statements’
governmental activities column, reconciliations are presented which briefly explain the adjustments
necessary to reconcile the fund financial statements to the governmental activities column of the
Government-wide financial statements.

The Commission’s fiduciary funds, the Employees’ Retirement System and the Other Post Employment
Benefits Fund, which are fiduciary in nature, are presented in the fund financial statements by fund type
(pension, private purpose trust, and agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for the
benefit of a third party (other local governments, private parties, pension participants, etc.) and cannot be
used to address activities or obligations of the Commission, these funds are not incorporated into the
Government-wide statements.

Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Demonstrating compliance with the adopted budget is an
important component of the Commission’s accountability to the public. Many citizens participate in the
process of establishing the annual operating budgets of state and local governments and have a keen
interest in following the financial progress of their governments over the course of the year. For this
reason, the Commission has chosen to make its General Fund budgetary comparison statement part of
the basic financial statements. The Commission and many other governments revise their original
budgets over the course of the year for a variety of reasons.

Since the Commission adopts its General Fund budget by accounts within each county, each of which
has a dedicated tax levy, budgetary comparison summaries are presented for each account in Note 7.
These accounts are as follows: Montgomery County Administration, Montgomery County Park, Prince
George’s County Administration, Prince George’s County Park, and Prince George’s County Recreation.
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(C) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The Government-wide, proprietary and pension trust and private purpose fiduciary fund financial
statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The Government-wide,
proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are generally recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year in
which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Employee and employer contributions to pension trust funds are recognized as revenues (additions to net
assets) in the period in which employee services are performed. Both benefits and refunds paid are
recognized as expenses (deductions from net assets) in the period in which paid.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
Commission considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal period. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under the
accrual basis of accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment has matured and is due.

Property taxes, interest and grants associated with the current fiscal period are considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
Commission.

The Commission reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Commission. It is used to
account for the tax revenues and other revenues which fund the Commission's general
operations and to account for all other financial resources except those required to be accounted
for in another fund.

Montgomery County and Prince George's County Capital Projects Funds — These Capital
Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition, development or improvement of parkland
and the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities other than those accounted for in the
proprietary funds and the Advance Land Acquisition Accounts in the Private Purpose Trust
Funds. The Commission maintains separate funds for each county.

The Commission reports the following major enterprise funds:

Montgomery County and Prince George's County Enterprise Funds — These Enterprise
Funds are used to account for recreational and cultural facilities’ operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises. A separate Enterprise Fund is
maintained for the enterprise operations of each county, each of which is considered a major
fund.

Additionally, the Commission reports the following fund types:

Other Governmental Funds — The other governmental fund types used by the Commission are
special revenue and debt service. Special revenue funds are used to account for specific
revenues that are legally restricted for particular purposes. Debt service funds account for
resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on long-term debt of
governmental funds.
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Internal Service Funds — Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of certain
goods or services provided by one department to other departments of the Commission on a
cost-reimbursement basis. There are eight internal service funds reported by the Commission:
Montgomery County Capital Equipment Fund, Montgomery County Employee Benefits Fund,
Montgomery County Risk Management Fund, Prince George’s County Capital Equipment Fund,
Prince George’s County Executive Office Building Fund, Prince George's County Employee
Benefits Fund, Prince George's County Risk Management Fund, and Commission Wide
Initiatives Fund.

The Commission reports the following fiduciary fund types:

Pension Trust Funds — The Employees’ Retirement Fund is used to account for all activities of
the Employees’ Retirement System including accumulation of resources for, and payment of,
retirement annuities and/or other benefits and the administrative costs of operating the system.

The Other Postemployment Benefits Fund is used to account for the accumulation of Commission
resources for postretirement health care benefits provided by the Commission. The Commission
is not required to make additional contributions unless obligated to do so by resolution. In fiscal
year 2009, the Commission continued the phase in over an 8 year period actuarially based
funding of Other Postemployment Benefits in connection with the implementation of the
accounting requirements of GASB Statement No. 45 “Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions”.

Private-Purpose Trust Funds — Private-purpose trust funds are used to account for funds
whose principal and interest are legally held in trust and must be expended in accordance with
their designated purposes. The most significant amounts included are the Advance Land
Acquisition Accounts, which are used to acquire land for specific public uses, such as schools,
libraries, parks or roads.

Agency Funds — The agency funds are used to account for the State retirement funds of
participating Commission employees and retirees, and for certain deposits held.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the Government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of GASB. Although governments
also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and
Enterprise Funds, subject to this same limitation, the Commission has elected not to do so.

In the process of aggregating data for the Government-wide financial statements, some amounts reported
as interfund activity and balances in the funds should be eliminated or reclassified. As a general rule the
effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the Government-wide financial statements. Internal
Service Funds are used by management to charge to funds using the service the costs of capital
equipment financing, risk management, employee benefits, Commission-wide initiatives, and the
Executive Office Building. The assets and liabilities of the Internal Service Funds are included in the
governmental activities column of the Statement of Net Assets. The Commission eliminates internal
service fund expenses by allocating the expenses to other functions. Expenses for capital equipment,
risk management and Commission wide initiatives are allocated based on revenues, and for employee
benefits based on salaries expense. The expenses of the Prince George's County Executive Office
Building Fund are allocated to general government. The funds are so unique that a single allocation
method was not appropriate.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
enterprise funds and of the internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services,
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administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

(D) Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash.

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments — The Commission pools the cash and investments of all funds
into a common pool to maintain investment flexibility and maximize earnings. The Commission’s Finance
Department manages the pool. Investment earnings are allocated to participating Funds based upon
their average monthly equity in pooled cash balances. Commission investments, including those in the
Pension Trust Fund, are stated at fair value.

Property Taxes Receivable — All property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for
uncollectible accounts of $3,179,826 at June 30, 2009. The property tax receivable allowance is based
on an aging of receivables, with increasing percentages applied to older receivables. Property taxes are
levied and collected for the special taxing districts of the Commission by Montgomery and Prince
George's County Governments, as appropriate. Semiannual tax payment plans are automatic for
homeowners living in their properties unless they request to remain on an annual payment plan. Under
the semiannual payment plan, one-half of the real property taxes are due by September 30 and the
remaining one-half is due by December 31. Real property taxes are levied on July 1 each year and
become delinquent on October 1 and January 1, at which time interest and penalties commence.
Personal property and real property taxes levied for a fraction of a year are due when billed. Tax liens on
real property are sold at public auction on the second Monday in June in Montgomery County and on the
second Monday in May in Prince George’s County for taxes that are delinquent.

The property tax revenues and rates of the Commission are not subject to any legislative limitations.
However, the respective County Council approves such revenues and rates when budgets are adopted.

Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities — Accounts payable includes only short-term liabilities
due and payable within the normal course of business.

Inventories — Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market for proprietary funds.

Capital Assets — Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g.
roads, bridges, trails, dams and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the Government-wide financial statements. The Commission defines capital
assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess
of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed and actual costs are not known. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. The costs
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Assets Years

Buildings and Improvements 20-40
Infrastructure 15-60
Machinery and Equipment 5-10
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Compensated Absences — Commission employees earn annual leave and sick leave in varying
amounts, and are granted three days of personal leave annually. Some employees may also earn
compensatory leave in lieu of overtime pay. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since
the Commission does not have a policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from service.

In the Government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
compensated absences are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. When annual and sick leave are used or taken
by employees, the expense is charged directly to the employees’ cost center. Compensated absences
for leave liabilities for employees charged to proprietary funds, are charged directly to the proprietary
funds’ cost center to which the employee is assigned. The year-end liability for annual leave and
compensatory leave for all employees is calculated based on hours of leave available, priced at current
salary rates plus applicable employer payroll taxes.

Long-term Obligations — In the Government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the
fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net
assets.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures.

Fund Equity — In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance
for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a
specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent management plans that are subject to change.

Reserves — Fund balances in the governmental funds are reserved for encumbrances and debt
service to indicate the amounts are not available for other expenditures.

Designated Fund Balances for Individual Funds and Accounts - The Commission has
designated $38,174,300 of fund balances in the General Fund at June 30, 2009, to fund fiscal
year 2010 operations and allow for contingencies, as follows:

Montgomery County Prince George's County
Administration Park Administration Park Recreation Total
Contingencies $ 833,300 $ 2,383,300 $ 2475500 $ 8,133,200 $ 3,473,300 $ 17,298,600
Fiscal year 2010 1,068,200 4,574,300 2,160,900 10,845,200 2,227,100 20,875,700

$ 1,901,500 $ 6,957,600 $ 4,636,400 $ 18,978,400 $ 5,700,400 $ 38,174,300

(2) - EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND BALANCE SHEET AND THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

The governmental fund balance sheet (Exhibit 3) includes reconciliation between fund balance — total
governmental funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the Statement of Net Assets
(Exhibit 1). Details related to the most significant items on the reconciliation are as follows.
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Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources, and therefore are not reported
in the funds. The capital assets related to governmental funds (not including internal service funds)
include:

Land $ 304,333,871
Buildings and improvements 195,795,325
Infrastructure 224,650,697
Machinery and Equipment 54,853,910
Accumulated Depreciation on Buildings,
Improvements and Machinery and Equipment (259,619,625)
Construction in Progress 71,606,820
Total $ 591,620,998

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period, and
therefore are not reported in the funds. The long-term debt related to governmental funds (not including
internal service funds) includes:

Bonds and Notes Payable:

Due Within One Year $ 13,761,597
Due in More than One Year 106,339,043
Net Other Post Employment Benefit
Obligations 19,362,173
Compensated Absences
Due Within One Year 10,193,763
Due in More than One Year 8,357,027
Accrued Interest Payable 1,382,810
Totals $ 159,396,413

(3) - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

(A) Budgetary Information

The following procedures are used in establishing the annual budget.

On or before January 15, the Commission submits to the County Executive of each County a proposed
annual budget for the respective accounts of the General Fund (including park debt service) and the
Special Revenue Funds, and a budget plan for the respective Enterprise Funds and Internal Service
Funds. The Capital Projects Funds' budgets and six-year expenditure plans are submitted to the County
Executive of Prince George's County prior to each November 1 and to the County Executive of
Montgomery County prior to November 1 of each odd-numbered year. These budgets and plans include
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

Each County Executive transmits the budgets and plans with recommendations to the respective County
Council. The County Councils conduct public hearings on the budgets and plans, and the budgets and
plans are legally adopted prior to July 1.

The legal level of budgetary control is the department or function for the Administration Accounts and the
Montgomery County Park Account, and the Account level for Prince George's County Park Account, and
Prince George's County Recreation Account. The Commission's expenditures may not exceed the total
approved budget for each of the General Fund Accounts without prior approval by the respective County
Council, except where grant funds received with the knowledge and approval of Prince George's County
constitute an automatic budget amendment, thereby increasing the appropriations. Management is
authorized to allow a department or function within a General Fund Account to be overspent by up to 10%
of the approved budget without Council approval, provided the account in total is not overspent.
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General Fund and Special Revenue Funds unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end. Capital
project appropriations do not lapse until the project is completed. The budget plans for the proprietary
funds serve as a guide to the Commission and not as legally binding limitations.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device for the General Fund. The
budget for the General Fund is adopted on a modified accrual basis consistent with GAAP except that
encumbrances are treated as expenditures.

The actual expenditures in the General Fund Statements of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual are presented on a basis
consistent with The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission Adopted Annual Budget.
All expenditures made during fiscal year 2009 were within the legal limitations pertinent to the
Commission. Under the budgetary method, current year outstanding encumbrances are charged to the
budgetary appropriations and are considered expenditures of the current period. Governmental GAAP
considers outstanding encumbrances as reservations of fund balances that are charged to expenditures
in the period in which the goods or services are used or received.

Reconciliation from the Budget Basis to the GAAP Basis for the year ended June 30, 2009 is as follows.
The following account information is reported in Note 7.

Montgomery County Prince George's County Total
Administration Park Administration Park Recreation General
Account Account Account Account Account Fund
Adjustment to Expenditures
To Increase -
Encumbrances -

June 30, 2008 $ 2,658,141 $ 1,781,261 $ 8,594,768 $ 4577771 $ 4,006,784 $ 21,618,725
To Decrease -

Encumbrances -
June 30, 2009 (3,137,475) (3,837,443) (10,871,655) (9,917,207) (3,642,635) (31,406,415)
Total Adjustment (479,334) (2,056,182) (2,276,887) (5,339,436) 364,149 (9,787,690)
Net Change in Fund Balance:
GAAP Basis 1,462,825 (1,097,427) (1,961,608) (2,096,565) (3,446,936) (7,139,711)
Budget Basis $ 983,491 $ (3,153609) $ (4,238495) $ (7,436,001) $ (3,082,787) $ (16,927,401)

(4) — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

(A) Cash and Investments

The Commission's deposits and investments as of June 30, 2009, totaled $896,794,474. The
Commission's unrestricted pool of deposits and investments ($394,312,909) is available to all funds,
except for the Pension Trust Funds.

Commission Cash and Investments

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - At year-end, the carrying amount of cash deposits was $6,368,931
and the bank balance was $7,467,709. In addition, the Commission held cash at various locations
totaling $248,740. All the bank balances were covered by Federal depository insurance.

In addition, the Commission had Certificates of Deposit with a carrying value (including accrued interest)
of $97,859,872 at June 30, 2009. The certificates, with an average life of 145.18 days, were covered by
collateral of $148,908,337, which is greater than bank balances for all applicable banks.

The Commission requires collateral for the bank balances of deposits and investments to be held in the

Commission's name by the trust department of a bank other than the pledging bank. The Commission's
policy was complied with throughout the year ended June 30, 2009. Collateral shall be maintained in
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excess of FDIC insurance coverage for all Commission bank cash accounts, certificates of deposits and
time deposits.

Money Market Deposits - At year end the carrying value (fair value) of deposits in investment grade
money market accounts is $25,041,298. Of these deposits $107,644 relate to cash and investments
restricted for construction.

Investments - The Annotated Code of Maryland authorizes the Commission to invest in obligations for
which the United States has pledged its full faith and credit for the payment of principal and interest,
obligations that are issued by a Federal agency, repurchase agreements, bankers’ acceptances,
commercial paper, money market mutual funds, the State Treasurer’s investment pool, and certificates of
deposit. Commission bond proceeds may also be invested in municipal bonds and notes. The
investments program also complies with the Commission’s internal investment policy.

Statutes do not restrict the investment activity of the pension trust funds.

Cash and Investments Restricted for Unspent Debt Proceeds - At year-end, the Commission had
$13,009,979 of unspent bonds and note proceeds restricted to pay construction costs for various projects.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments — For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure
of the counterparty, the Commission will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Statutes require that securities underlying
repurchase agreements have a fair value of at least 102% of the cost of the investment. If during the
year, the fair value of securities underlying such investments falls below this required level, additional
collateral is pledged or other collateral in the amount of the required level is substituted. All collateral met
statutory requirements and is held in the Commission’s name by a third-party custodian.

Fixed Income Investments - Fixed income investments included in the Commission’s Pooled
Investments at June 30, 2009 were as follows:

Weighted Average

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity (Days)
Commercial Paper $ 38,346,478 57.67
Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation Notes 42,534,991 68.40
U.S. Treasury Bills 6,751,982 139.93
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 63,137,850 51.03
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Association Notes 64,479,810 299.48
Federal National Mortgage Association Notes 58,052,078 103.74
Municipal Securities 4,500,858 4.89
Total fair value $ 277,804,047

Portfolio Weighted Average Maturity 124.20

Interest Rate Risk - The Commission manages its exposure to declines in fair value by limiting the
maturity of its investment portfolio. The majority of investments shall be for a maximum maturity of one
year. A portion of the portfolio may be invested in U.S. Government and U. S. Agency securities with a
maturity of up to two years.

Credit Risk — Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligation. The Commission’s investment policy requires that investments in commercial paper, money
market accounts and bankers acceptances have received ratings of the highest letter and numerical
rating by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization as designated by the Securities
and Exchange Commission. Up to 10% of bond proceeds may be invested in money market mutual funds
that have not received the highest rating but are still recognized as investment grade. All related
investments have received ratings of the highest letter quality, except for $107,644 (0.8%) of bond funds
invested in a money market fund that is considered investment grade.



Concentration of Credit Risk — Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude
of the Commission’s investment in a single issuer. It is the Commission’s policy to diversify by investment
type and institution in order to avoid unreasonable risks, with maximum limitation as follows:

Diversification by Investment Type Maximum Percent of Portfolio*
U.S. Government Securities 100 %
U.S. Agency Securities 60
Repurchase Agreements 60
Certificates of Deposit (Including Time Deposits) ** 25
Bankers' Acceptances 50
Bankers’ Acceptances — Non-U.S. 5
Commercial Paper 10
Pooled Investments 25
Money Market Mutual Funds (10%/fund) 25
Bond Proceeds:

Municipal Securities 100

Money Market Mutual Funds — Highest Rating 100

Money Market Mutual Funds — Investment Grade 10
Diversification by Institution Maximum Percent of Portfolio*
Approved Broker/Dealers and Financial Institutions 30 %
Money Market Mutual Funds by Fund 10
U.S. Government Agency by Agency 20
Bankers Acceptances by Institution 20
Commercial Banks for CD's and Time Deposits** 20

* At time of purchase
** Certificates of deposit are classified as deposits for financial reporting purposes.

The Commission is in compliance with this policy.

Employees’ Retirement System (ERS) Cash and Investments

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - For cash deposits and cash equivalents, custodial credit risk is the
risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not be returned to it.

The amount of ERS's total cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2009, was $16,310,876. Cash deposits
in the bank account totaled $27,957 that was insured and collateralized. At June 30, 2009, ERS held
$16,282,919 of cash equivalents in its custodial investment accounts.

As of June 30, 2009, ERS's cash equivalents were exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized $ 169,719
Uninsured and held by custodial bank not in ERS's name 85,569
$ 255,288

Investments - The Board of Trustees ("Board") of ERS is authorized by the Trust Agreement dated July
26, 1972 and most recently amended September 16, 2009 to invest and reinvest the Trust Fund, as may
be determined by investment counsel selected by the Commission. The Board is authorized to formulate
investment policies, develop investment manager guidelines and objectives, and approve the retention of
qualified advisors. The Commission approves new investment managers.

66



The Trust Fund shall be diversified across investment classes and among investment managers in order

to achieve an optimal balance between risk and return. The Board established target allocations for the
authorized investment classes as follows:

U. S. Equities 35 %
Non-U.S. Equities 20
U.S. Core Fixed Income 15
U.S. High Yield Fixed Income 10
U.S. Long Duration Fixed income 10
U.S.Real Estate (Private) 5
U.S. Real Assets (Private) _ 5
Total 100 %

Trust Fund assets should be invested to obtain an appropriate long-term total return consistent with the
overriding goal of limiting the risk of a large loss.

Each investment manager has a set of Guidelines, which contain investment objectives, and risk control
provisions, which are appropriate for each manager's mission. Investment managers have discretion
within the constraints of these Guidelines and are subject to regular review by the Board.

The Trust Fund has guidelines, which apply broadly to each asset class as follows:
U.S. Equity Guidelines

e U.S. Equity investment managers are limited to no more than 5% of the value of the portfolio in
cash equivalents at any time.

e The U.S. Equity Composite should match the Russell 3000 Index in terms of capitalization and
growth characteristics.

e 75% to 85% should be invested in "large capitalization stocks".
e 15% to 25% should be invested in "small capitalization stocks".

Non-U.S. Equity Guidelines

e Cash equivalent exposure is limited to 5%.
e 85% to 100% should be invested in "developed markets".
e 0% to 15% should be invested in "emerging markets".

Fixed Income Guidelines

e The Fixed Income Composite is limited to 20% of its value in cash equivalents at any time.

e Asingle issuer cannot exceed 5% of the market value of the fixed income composite at any time.

e Duration of the fixed income composite should remain within +/- 1.5 years relative to the asset
class benchmarks. The duration of the fixed income composite at June 30, 2009 was 4.21 years
with the Merrill Lynch BB/B and the Barclays Aggregate at 4.32 and 4.19 years, respectively.

e Securities with a weighted-average life greater than 30 years are prohibited.

e The fixed income composite is expected to maintain an aggregate weighting of at least a single A.

Real Estate Guidelines

e Cash equivalent exposure is limited to 10%.
e The maximum allocation by geographic region and property type is limited to 150% of its weight in
the index and a minimum of 50% of its weight in the index.

¢ No individual property investor is expected to exceed 7.5% of the real estate composite at any
time.
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e The valuation objective is to accurately estimate the net asset value on a daily basis. The
Valuation Consultant (VC) obtains an independent third-party appraisal of each property at least
every 12 months. Monthly, the VC provides a list of property values that is based on a portfolio
overview, updated discounted cash flow models, and/or limited scope, restricted appraisals and
any facts regarding any event that occurs (i.e. lease or sale) that could impact property value.

Guidelines for Real Assets will be developed prior to implementation of this strategy.

Unless the Board grants prior authorization, an investment manager may not:

Purchase securities on margin.

Sell uncovered call options or sell put options.

Leverage the portfolio.

Sell securities short.

Purchase commingled funds, mutual funds, or common trusts.

Own more than 10% of any class of securities of any one issuer.

Purchase letter stock, private placements, or sell securities restricted in a similar manner, other
than those provided by SEC Rule 144A.

¢ Investin commodities, or any vehicle that would leverage the portfolio.

Derivative Policy Statement — A derivative policy statement identifies and allows common derivative
investments and strategies, which are consistent with the Investment Policy Statement. The guidelines
identify transaction-level and portfolio-level risk control procedures and documentation requirements.
Managers are required to measure and monitor exposure to counterparty credit risk. All counterparties
must have commercial paper credit ratings of at least Al or equivalent rating. The duration and other risk
exposure limits specified in the managers’ guidelines are expected to be satisfied on an ongoing basis.
Investment managers are permitted to use such derivatives for hedging purposes, including cross-
hedging of currency exposures, to replicate the risk/return profile of an asset or asset class, and to
tactically change country exposure. Derivative securities such as “plain vanilla” CMO’s and structure
notes are allowed. CMOQO'’s which are not “plain vanilla” are restricted to 5% of a manager’s portfolio. Any
use of derivatives not listed above is prohibited without written approval of the board.

The following use of derivatives is prohibited:

e Leverage - Derivatives shall not be used to magnify exposure to an asset beyond that which
would be allowed by the guidelines.

e Unrelated Speculation - Derivatives shall not be used to create exposures to securities,
currencies, indices, or any other financial variable unless such exposures would be allowed by
the manager's guidelines if created with non-derivative securities.
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ERS's investments at June 30, 2009 were as follows:

Investment Type

Common Stock

Preferred Stock

Convertible Equity

Government Bonds

Government Agencies

Provincial Bonds

Corporate Bonds

Corporate Convertible Bonds
Government Mortgage Backed Securities
Commercial Mortgage-Backed

Asset Backed Securities
Non-Government Backed CMOs

Index Linked Government Bonds

Fixed Income Mutual Funds

Real Estate

Cash & Cash Equivalent Derivative-Options
Short Term Investment Funds

Securities Lending Short Term Collateral Investment Pool

Cash
Total Investments

Fair Value

$ 267,164,652
93,126
248,096
5,463,374
4,468,827
320,430
46,563,219
521,481
31,786,604
2,074,098
3,975,967
5,853,606
3,267,926
49,773,143
22,147,479
(38,250)
16,064,476
21,963,391
256,693

$ 481,968,338

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments — For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the
event of the failure of the counterparty, ERS will not be able to recover the value of its investment or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Investment securities are exposed to
custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of the government, and
are held by either a) the counterparty or b) the counterparty's trust department or agent but not in the
government's name. The ERS requires that all investments be clearly marked as to ownership and to the

extent possible, shall be registered in the name of ERS.

Of ERS’s $482.0 million in investments at June 30, 2009, $22.0 million were cash collateral reinvestment
securities acquired by the custodian, whom is also the lending agent/counterparty. This is consistent with

ERS's securities lending agreement in place with the custodian.

The fair value of cash collateral securities as of June 30, 2009, is presented by type below:

Collateral

U.S. Agencies

U.S. Corporate Fixed
U.S. Equities

U.S. Government Fixed

Total

Fair Value
608,861
10,409,209
5,256,180
5,689,141
_$ 21963391

Interest Rate Risk — Each investment manager has duration targets and bands that control interest rate

risk.
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As of June 30, 2009, ERS had the following fixed income investments and short term investments with
the following maturities:

Weighted Average

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity-Years
Asset Backed Securities $ 3,975,967 20.055054
Commercial Mortgage-Backed 2,074,098 30.519345
Corporate Bonds 46,563,219 12.966754
Corporate Convertible Bonds 521,481 18.222596
Government Agencies 4,468,826 10.924959
Government Bonds 5,463,374 11.668643
Government Mortgage Backed Securities 31,786,604 27.574334
Guaranteed Fixed Income 232,276 2.948379
Index Linked Government Bonds 3,267,926 15.144349
Provincial Bonds 320,430 2.801364
Non - Government Backed CMOs 5,853,606 32.366886
Fixed Income Mutual Funds 49,540,867 N/A
Short Term Investment Funds 16,064,476 N/A
Totals $ 170,133,150

Portfolio Weighted Average Maturity 18.288094

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations - Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) are a type of
mortgage-backed security that creates several pools of pass-through rates for different classes of bonds,
called tranches. The tranches have their own risk characteristics with varying maturities. These securities
are based on cash flows from interest payments on underlying mortgages. Therefore they are sensitive to
prepayments by mortgages, which may result from a decline in interest rates. The repayments of principal
and interest from the pass-through securities are used to retire the bonds in an established order of
maturity. ERS held $5,853,606 in CMO's at June 30, 2009.

Asset-backed Securities — Asset-backed securities (ABS) are bond or notes backed by loan paper or
accounts receivable originated by banks, credit card companies, or other providers of credit. The
originator of the loan or accounts receivable paper sells it to a specially created trust, which repackages it
as securities. Brokerage firms underwrite the securities and reoffer them to the public. ERS held
$3,975,967 in ABS at June 30, 2009.

Credit Risk — Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligation. The credit risk of a debt instrument is measured by a nationally recognized credit rating
agency such as Standard & Poor’s Services. Individual manager guidelines require investment managers
to follow certain controls, documentation and risk management procedures. Managers are required to
measure and monitor exposure to counterparty credit risk. All counterparties must have commercial paper
credit ratings of at least Al or equivalent rating.

Individual investment manager guidelines include limitations on the percentage of securities including

derivatives. A Derivative policy statement identifies and allows common derivative investments and
strategies which are consistent with the Investment Policy statement.
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ERS Credit Quality Ratings Summary as of June 30, 2009 is as follows:

Credit Quality Distribution for Securities
With Credit Exposure as a Percentage of Total Investments

Agency Government 7.635%
Agency AAA 1.420
Agency A 0.067
Agency BBB 0.123
Agency BB 0.043
Agency Not Rated 0.036
Asset Backed Securities AAA 0.479
Asset Backed Securities AA 0.021
Asset Backed Securities A 0.027
Asset Backed Securities BBB 0.157
Asset Backed Securities BB 0.037
Asset Backed Securities CCC 0.062
Asset Backed Securities Not Rated 0.042
Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities  AAA 0.309
Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities  Not Rated 0.121
Non-Government Backed C.M.O.’s AAA 0.867
Non-Government Backed C.M.O.'s AA 0.004
Non-Government Backed C.M.O.'s A 0.050
Non-Government Backed C.M.O.'s BBB 0.055
Non-Government Backed C.M.O.'s BB 0.033
Non-Government Backed C.M.O.'s B 0.089
Non-Government Backed C.M.O.'s CCC 0.061
Non-Government Backed C.M.O.'s D 0.006
Non-Government Backed C.M.O.'s Not Rated 0.048
Corporate Bonds AAA 0.105
Corporate Bonds AA 0.534
Corporate Bonds A 2.375
Corporate Bonds BBB 2.537
Corporate Bonds BB 1.969
Corporate Bonds B 1.536
Corporate Bonds CCC 0.435
Corporate Bonds CcC 0.063
Corporate Bonds D 0.012
Corporate Bonds Not Rated 0.084
Corporate Convertible Bonds A 0.001
Corporate Convertible Bonds BB 0.050
Corporate Convertible Bonds B 0.045
Corporate Convertible Bonds Not Rated 0.012
Provincial Bonds AAA 0.066
Government Mortgage Backed AAA 0.047
Other Fixed Income Not Rated 10.249
Short Term Investment Fund Not Rated 3.329
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Foreign Currency Risk — The ERS does not have a policy for foreign currency risk. Foreign currency is
intentionally unhedged. ERS's exposure to foreign currency risk at June 30, 2009, is as follows:

Investment Type Currency Fair Value
Government Bonds Brazilian Real $ 593,205
Government Bonds Canadian Dollars 543,227
Government Bonds Columbian Peso 155,775
Government Bonds New Zealand Dollars 48,800
Government Agencies Canadian Dollars 120,022
Government Agencies Indonesian Rupiah 137,748
Provincial Bonds Australian Dollar 143,607
Corporate Bonds Canadian Dollars 7,943
Corporate Bonds Mexican Peso 110,628
Corporate Bonds New Zealand Dollars 69,865
Cash Iceland Krona 3,424
Total $ 1,934,244

Note: These schedules do not agree with the total international obligations and international equities as
listed in the schedule of ERS investments due to international obligations valued in U.S. dollars, but
classified as international.

Cash Received as Securities Lending Collateral

The following table details the net income from securities lending for the period ending June 30, 2009:

Security lending income $ 355,078
Less security lending fees 249,946
Net securites lending income $ 105,132

The Board of Trustees authorized the lending of fixed income securities, which activity is managed by the
custodian bank. There were no violations of legal or contractual provisions, and no borrower or lending
agent default losses known to the securities lending agent as of June 30, 2009 except on September 15,
2008, Lehman Brothers International Europe (LBIE) and on September 18, 2008, Lehman Brothers Inc.
(LBI) were called into default on obligations under the terms of one or more of the Securities Borrowing
Agreements. All clients were compensated for any security that was not returned from loan in
accordance with the contractual obligation. Due to the nature of the program’s collateralization of loans at
a minimum of 102% of market value plus accrued interest, management of the ERS believes that there is
no credit risk exposure since the ERS owes the borrower more than the borrower owes the ERS.

Securities are loaned against collateral that may include cash, U.S. government securities, and
irrevocable letters of credit. U.S. government securities are loaned against collateral valued at 102% of
the market value of the securities plus any accrued interest. Non-U.S. government securities are loaned
against collateral valued at 105% of the market value of the securities plus any accrued interest. Non-
cash collateral cannot be pledged or sold unless the borrower defaults. Consequently, the non-cash
collateral has not been reported as an asset or liability on the statement of plan net assets. All securities
loans can be terminated on demand by either the lender or the borrower, although the average term of
overall loans were approximately 64 days in 2009.

Cash open collateral is invested in a short-term investment pool, which had an average weighted maturity
of 15 days in 2009. Cash collateral may also be invested separately in "term loans", in which case the
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investments match the loan term. These loans can be terminated on demand by either lender or
borrower. There are no dividends or coupon payments owing on the securities lent.

The custodian bank's responsibilities include performing appropriate borrower and collateral
investment credit analyses, demanding adequate types and levels of collateral, and complying
with applicable Department of Labor and Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council
regulations concerning securities lending. Loss indemnification is provided when securities are
not returned due to the insolvency of a borrower and the trustee bank fails to fulfill its contractual
responsibilities relating to the lending of those securities to that borrower.

The following table presents the fair values of the underlying securities, and the value of the
collateral pledged at June 30, 2009:

Cash Collateral Noncash
Securities Lent Fair Value Received* Collateral Value*
Fixed income securities $ 16,707,211 $ 17,124,625 $ -
Domestic equities 5,256,180 5,412,659 -
Total $ 21,963,391 $ 22,537,284 $ -

*The securities collateral value is based on ERS's pro rata share of the value of the securities
collateral maintained at The Northern Trust Bank on the program wide collateralization levels.

Other Post Employment Benefits (the “Trust”) Cash and Investments

The Trust had $17,530 of cash on hand at June 30, 2009. The trust participates in the
Commission’s pooled cash for payment of benefits, and had equity in pooled cash balance of
$602,103. Investments in mutual funds totaled $7,457,761.

Investments - The Board of Trustees of the Trust ("Board") is authorized by the Trust Agreement
dated July 1, 1999 and amended May 16, 2007 to invest and reinvest the Trust Fund. The Board
is authorized to formulate investment policies, develop investment manager guidelines and
objectives, and approve the retention of qualified advisors and investment managers. The target
allocations as established by the Board for the authorized investment classes during fiscal year
2009 are as follows:

Asset Class Minimum Maximum

Equity Funds
Index Fund 90% 100%

Cash and Equivalents 2% 10%
The Trust’s investments in mutual funds at June 30, 2009 were as follows:

Investment Type Fair Value
Equity Index Fund $ 7,457,761
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Cash and investment balances are shown in the financial statements as follows:

Statement of Net Assets

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments
Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments -

Unspent Bonds Proceeds
Statement of Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments - Pension Trust Funds

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments - Private Purpose Trust Funds
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments - Agency Funds
Cash and Marketable Securities - Pension Trust Funds
Collateral for Securities Lending Transactions - Pension Trust Funds

Total
They are composed of:

Cash in Banks of Commission
Cash of Employees' Retirement System Pension Trust Fund
Cash in Other Post Employment Benefits Fund

Cash in Other Locations - Commission

Money Market Deposits of Commission

Certificates of Deposit of Commission

Fixed Income Securities In Commission's Investment Pool
Mutual funds in Other Post Employment Benefits Fund
Investments of Employees' Retirement System Pension Trust Fund

Equity Investments

Fixed Income Securities

Real Estate
Cash

Cash & Cash Equivalent Derivative-Options

Collateral for Securities Lending Transactions

Total

(B) Capital Assets

363,636,293

13,009,979

602,103
27,397,529
2,676,984
467,508,195
21,963,391

896,794,474

6,368,931
27,957
17,530

248,740
25,041,298
97,859,872

277,804,047
7,457,761

267,505,874
170,133,151
22,147 479
256,693
(38,250)
21,963,391

896,794,474

A summary of governmental activities capital assets at June 30, 2009 is as follows:

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Other capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment

Total other capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total other capital asset, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Transfers/

July 1, 2008 Increases Decreases Contributions June 30, 2009
$ 292,724,538 $ 12,712,858 $ (355,028) $ $ 305,082,368
50,914,003 27,188,217 (4,457,891) 73,644,329
343,638,541 39,901,075 (355,028) (4,457,891) 378,726,697
197,453,647 316,179 675,364 198,445,190
220,689,170 179,000 - 3,782,527 224,650,697
75,287,961 9,425,428 (2,107,195) - 82,606,194
493,430,778 9,920,607 (2,107,195) 4,457,891 505,702,081
(108,677,052) (5,144,839) (113,821,891)
(103,196,981) (5,826,789) - (109,023,770)
(55,103,168) (5,381,225) 2,107,195 (58,377,198)
(266,977,201) (16,352,853) 2,107,195 (281,222,859)
226,453,577 (6,432,246) 4,457,891 224,479,222

$ 570,092,118 $ 33,468,829 $ (355,028) $ $ 603,205,919
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Summaries of business-type activities capital assets at June 30, 2009, made up of two major enterprise
funds, are as follows:

July 1, 2008 Increases Decreases June 30, 2009

Montgomery County Enterprise Fund
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 11,584,468 $ - 3 - $ 11,584,468

Construction in progress 172,164 225,724 - 397,888
Total capital assets not being depreciated 11,756,632 225,724 - 11,982,356
Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings and improvements 26,994,492 5,356 - 26,999,848

Machinery and equipment 1,625,438 54,989 - 1,680,427
Total capital assets being depreciated 28,619,930 60,345 - 28,680,275
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings (12,459,892) (1,297,528) - (13,757,420)

Machinery and equipment (1,232,630) (66,408) - (1,299,038)
Total accumulated depreciation (13,692,522) (1,363,936) - (15,056,458)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 14,927,408 (1,303,591) - 13,623,817
Capital assets, net $ 26,684,040 $ (1,077867) % - $ 25,606,173

Prince George's County Enterprise Fund
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 7,779,131  $ - $ - $ 7,779,131

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 72,270,589 - - 72,270,589
Machinery and equipment 4,783,290 288,316 (23,630) 5,047,976
Total capital assets being depreciated 77,053,879 288,316 (23,630) 77,318,565

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements (23,322,936) (2,044,588) - (25,367,524)
Machinery and equipment (3,307,994) (224,396) 23,630 (3,508,760)
Total accumulated depreciation (26,630,930) (2,268,984) 23,630 (28,876,284)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 50,422,949 (1,980,668) - 48,442,281
Capital assets, net $ 58,202,080 $ (1,980668) $ - $ 56,221,412
Total Business-type activities $ 84,886,120 $ (3,058535) $ - $ 81,827,585

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Commission as follows:

Governmental activities:

General Government $ 297,904
County Planning and Zoning 614,086
Park Operations and Maintenance 13,340,807
Recreation Programs 2,100,056
Total depreciation expense - govemmental activities $ 16,352,853

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities:
Recreational and Cultural Facilities $ 3,632,920



Construction Commitments - The Commission is committed to $28,954,611 for construction contracts

for work to be performed in subsequent years.

(C) Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

The Commission had no interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2009.

The Commission had the following interfund transfers during fiscal year 2009:

Montgomery Prince George's

County County Non-major
Capital Capital Governmental Proprietary
Interfund Transfers: General Projects Projects Funds Funds Total
Transfers In
General Fund - Administration Account $ -8 - 3% -8 1,823,000 $ -3 1,823,000
General Fund - Park Account - - 59,554,000 17,741,222 619,000 77,914,222
General Fund - Recreation Account - - 8,980,900 8,980,900
Special Revenue Fund - - 1,628,809 - 1,628,809
Debt Service Fund - - - - -
Capital Projects 3,332,353 - - 38,212 - 3,370,565
Total Transfers In $ 3332353 $ - $ 61,182,809 $ 19,602434 $ 9,599,900 $ 93,717,496
Transfers Out
General Fund - Park Account $ - 0% 289,009 $ 3,043,344 $ - $ $ 3,332,353
Debt Service Fund 17,741,222 38,212 - - 17,779,434
Capital Projects 59,554,000 - 1,628,809 61,182,809
Special Revenue Fund 1,823,000 - 1,823,000
Enterprise Fund 9,599,900 9,599,900
Internal Service Fund - -
Total Transfers Out $ 88,718,122 % 327,221  $ 3,043,344 3 1,628,809 $ $ 93,717,496

A majority of the transfers was to provide funding for the Debt Service Fund for Park Acquisition and

Development Bonds ($17,741,222) and current funding for Capital Projects ($61,182,809).

Proprietary fund transfers are made up of the following:

Montgomery Prince George's

County County Total
Enterprise Enterprise Proprietary
Interfund Transfers: Fund Fund Funds
Transfers In
General Fund - Park Account $ 619,000 $ - $ 619,000
General Fund - Recreation Account - 8,980,900 8,980,900
Total Transfers In $ 619,000 $ 8,980,900 $ 9,599,900

The Commission’s policy is to account for the construction of Prince George’s County Enterprise Fund
assets in the Capital Projects Fund until completed. Once completed, the assets are transferred from
Governmental Activities Capital Assets and capitalized in the Prince George’s County Enterprise Fund.

In addition to the above transfers, tax revenues of $1,860,781 not needed to pay current debt service
were contributed by the Advanced Land Acquisition Debt Service Funds to the Advanced Land

Acquisition Accounts in the Private Purpose Trust Funds.
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(D) Operating Leases

The Commission is committed under several operating leases for office space and office equipment
expiring at various dates through 2013. Each agreement provides for termination in the event of
nonappropriation of funds.

Future minimum commitments under operating leases at June 30, 2009 are as follows ($000's):

Operating Leases

Prince

Montgomery George's

Y ear Ending June 30 Total County County
2010 $ 3,053 $ 985 $ 2,068
2011 3,014 923 2,091
2012 2,457 628 1,829
2013 671 - 671
Total minimum lease payments $ 9,195 $ 2,536 $ 6,659

In fiscal year 2009, expenditures in the General Fund included $1,584,890 relating to the rental of office
space and $1,512,412 relating to rental and other charges for rented equipment.

(E) Long-Term Obligations

Notes and Loans Payable - Notes payable and loans are only reported at the Government-wide level.
Payments required to maturity on notes payable at June 30, 2009 are as follows ($000’s):

Montgomery County Prince George's County
Year Ending Governmental Governmental
June 30 Total Principal Interest Principal Interest
2010 $ 1,772 $ 1,269 $ 58 $ 401 % 44
2011 1,003 663 26 285 29
2012 646 368 5 258 15
2013 113 - - 110 3

Total payments $ 3,534 $ 2,300 $ 89 % 1,064 % 91

General Obligation Bonds - The Commission is authorized to issue general obligation bonds for the
acquisition of park land and the development of parks and recreational facilities, designated as Park
Acquisition and Development Bonds ("Park Bonds"); to provide resources for advance land acquisition for
highways, schools and other public purposes, designated as Advance Land Acquisition Bonds ("Advance
Land Bonds"); and to refund both Park and Advance Land Bonds. The general obligation bonds are
issued on the full faith and credit of the Commission and the county for which the bonds are issued.

Mandatory taxes of 3.6 cents per $100 of real property assessed valuation (9 cents for personal property)
in Montgomery County and at least 4 cents per $100 of real property assessed valuation (10 cents for
personal property) in Prince George's County are required by Article 28 of the Annotated Code of
Maryland to be levied in the Metropolitan District in the respective counties for the payment of Park Bond
debt service. In 2009, debt service payments approximated 0.26 cents per $100 of real property and 0.65
cents per $100 of personal property for Montgomery County and 1.63 cents for real property and 4.05
cents for personal property for Prince George’s County. The remainder of the proceeds of the mandatory
taxes was used for operating and maintaining the park system of the respective counties.

The Advance Land Bonds are payable from limited annual ad valorem property taxes which are levied by
the respective county on all property assessed for the purpose of county taxation.
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The debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds, for each of the subsequent five
years and in five-year increments thereafter is as follows (000’s):

Montgomery County General Obligation Bonds

Governmental Activities

Total Total Total Total Total Total
Fiscal Park Park Park ALA ALA ALA

Year Principal Interest Payments Principal Interest Payments

2010 $ 2,610 $ 1,061 $ 3,671 $ 530 $ 118 $ 648

2011 2,970 991 3,961 535 95 630

2012 2,515 904 3,419 240 79 319

2013 2,620 824 3,444 240 71 311

2014 2,345 747 3,092 235 61 296

2015-2019 10,065 2,698 12,763 710 205 915

2020 - 2024 6,495 1,125 7,620 600 86 686

2025 - 2029 2,670 229 2,899 120 3 123

Totals $ 32,290 $ 8,579 $ 40,869 $ 3,210 $ 718 $ 3,928

Total Total Total Total Total Total General
Fiscal Park Park Park ALA ALA ALA Obligation
Year Principal Interest Payments Principal Interest Payments Bonds

2010 $ 10,270 $ 3,305 $ 13,575 $ 295 $ 22 $ 317 $ 13,892
2011 10,166 2,955 13,121 290 8 298 13,419
2012 9,042 2,631 11,673 - 11,673
2013 9,290 2,313 11,603 - - - 11,603
2014 7,812 2,010 9,822 9,822
2015 - 2019 27,621 5,658 33,279 - - - 33,279
2020 - 2024 9,695 1,424 11,119 - - - 11,119
2025 -2029 1,605 137 1,742 - - - 1,742
Totals $ 85,501 $ 20,433 $ 105,934 $ 585 $ 30 $ 615 $ 106,549
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Outstanding General Obligation Bonds - General obligation bonds outstanding at June 30, 2009,

consist of the following individual issues (000's):

Series
Montgomery County
Park Acquisition and Development Bonds
Series Y-2
Series CC-2 (Note 1)
Series FF-2
Series HH-2 Current refunding
Series| I-2
Series LL-2 Advance and Current Refunding
Series MM-2

Advance Land Acquisition Bonds
Bonds of 1995 Advance Refunding
ALA Refunding Bonds of 2002, Series DD-2
ALA Bonds of 2004 Series

Total Montgomery County General
Obligation Bonds

Prince George's County

Park Acquisition and Development Bonds
Series W-2
Series Z-2
Series BB-2 Advance Refunding
Series EE-2 (Note 1)
Series GG-2 Currrent Refunding
Series JJ-2
Series KK-2 Current Refunding

Advance Land Acquisition Bonds
Bonds of 1995 Advance Refunding
Total Prince George's County

General Obligation Bonds

at Date of Sale

50232 %
3.7819
3.8457
3.1807
3.9651
24059
34803

4.7707
34748

3.8457

6.4000
45481
3.3944
3.2824
3.1053
4.3180
3.2004

4.8991

Dated

11/01/00
12/01/02
11/15/04
07/15/05
03/15/07
05/21/09
05/21/09

12/01/95
12/01/02

11/15/04

06/25/98
07/15/01
12/01/02
03/15/04
07/15/05
05/15/07
04/10/08

12/01/95

Date

11/01/10
12/01/22
12/01/24
07/01/14
04/01/27
11/01/20
11/01/28

07/01/10
12/01/14

12/01/24

07/01/12
05/01/21
07/01/14
01/15/24
07/01/12
05/01/27
05/01/18

07/01/10

Payment Issue June 30, 2009
$ 230 $ 570 $ 460
875 12,155 7,430

160 4,000 3,360

810 5,445 3,055

185 4,700 4,330

140 8,405 8,405

210 5,250 5,250
2,610 45,655 32,290
300 3,345 590

150 1,550 940

80 2,000 1,680

530 6,895 3,210

$ 3140 $ 52550 $ 35,500
$ 615 $ 735 $ 1,995
750 18,700 13,650

1,765 21,110 9,310
2,810 37,525 29,930
2,340 13,685 6,735
355 8,900 8,190

1,635 17,300 15,691
10,270 124,545 85,501
295 3,300 585

$ 10565 $ 127845 $ 86,086

Notes: (1) The CC-2 and EE-2 Bonds include Advance Refunding and Park Acquisition and

Development Project Bonds;

Revenue Bonds and Revenue Notes Payable - The Commission is authorized to issue revenue bonds

and notes to finance the cost of revenue producing facilities and to refund outstanding bonds. The
revenue bonds and notes are not general obligations of the Commission or county for which they are
issued and are payable solely from revenues generated from revenue producing facilities. The
Commission’s revenue bonds and revenue notes payable, which totaled $4,426,633 (net of a deferred
amount of $96,188) at June 30, 2009, are accounted for in the Montgomery County Enterprise Fund.
Debt service expenditures for the revenue bonds and notes totaled $1,329,112 for the fiscal year. There
were no revenue bonds or revenue notes payable for Prince George’s County.
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The outstanding proprietary fund debt as of June 30, 2009, and the related debt service requirements for
Montgomery County are as follows (000’s):

Business-type Activities
Revenue Bonds and Notes

Fiscal Total Total Total

Year Principal Interest Payments
2010 1,130 177 1,307
2011 1,153 130 1,283
2012 1,176 83 1,259
2013 842 35 877
2014 222 6 228
Total $ 4,523 $ 431 $ 4954

The Commission is in compliance with all significant restrictive covenants related to revenue bonds and
notes.

Outstanding Revenue Bonds and Revenue Notes Payable - Revenue bonds, net of a $96,188
deferred amount on the Little Bennett Golf Facilities Refunding Bond, and revenue notes payable at June
30, 2009, consist of the following individual issues (000's):

Effective Final FY2010 Outstanding
Interest Rate Maturity Serial Original at
Series at Date of Sale Dated Date Payment Issue June 30, 2009
Montgomery County
Revenue Bonds and Notes
Little Bennett Golf Course
(net of deferred amount) 3.3705 % 12/09/03 11/01/12 $ 360 $ 3,154 $ 1,418
Wheaton Ice Rink 3.3706 12/09/03  05/01/12 326 2,799 1,009
Cabin John Ice Rink 5.1600 04/24/99  11/01/13 444 6,000 2,000
$ 1,130 $ 11,953 $ 4,427

New Debt Issue - On May 21, 2009, the Commission issued $8,405,000 of Montgomery County Park
Acquisition and Development Refunding Bonds, Series LL-2 and $5,250,000 of Montgomery County Park
Acquisition and Development General Obligation Project Bonds, Series MM-2. The refunding bonds
provided the resources to retire on June 8, 2009 $4,550,000 of Montgomery County Park Acquisition and
Development Project Bonds, Series U-2 (current refunding) and to defease the $3,700,000 callable
portion of the Montgomery County Park Acquisition and Development Project Bonds, Series Y-2
(advance refunding). The reacquisition price in excess of the net carrying value of the old debt is being
netted against the new debt and amortized over the remaining life of the refunded bonds, which equals
the life of the new debt issued. Semiannual payments of interest and annual principal payments are due
until November 1, 2020 at a net interest cost of 2.4059% and November 1, 2028, at a net interest cost of
3.4803% respectively.
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Information related to the refunding bond issue follows.

Bond issue title

Amount of refunding bonds issued

Amount of bonds defeased

Acquisition price in excess of carrying
value of old debt

Remaining life of old bonds

Total reduction in debt service payments

Economic gain

Defeased Debt - In the current fiscal year, the Commission defeased the callable portion of a certain
series of general obligation bonds by placing proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for
all future debt service payments on the old bonds. The refunded bonds and their amortization date is

detailed as follows:

Redemption
Series Date

Montgomery
County
U-2 Y-2
4,545,000 $ 3,860,000
- 3,700,000
129,350 289,397
9years 11 years
385,639 330,583
415,165 309,704

Montgomery
County

Series Y-2 November 1,2010 $
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Changes in Long-term Liabilities — Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2009,

were as follows:

Governmental activities:

Montgomery County
Gereral Obligation Park Bonds Payable

Gereral Obligation ALA Bonds Payable
Deferred charges, net of premiums, on
Gereral Obligation Bonds

Notes Payable - Governmental
Loan Payable to Montgomery County
Accrued Compensated Absences

Net Other Post Employment Berefit Obligations

Long-term Liabiliies

Prince George's County
Gereral Obligation Park Bonds Payable

Gereral Obligation ALA Bonds Payable
Deferred charges, net of premiums, on
Gereral Obligation Bonds

Notes Payable - Governmenta
Accrued Compensaed Absences
Net Other Post Employment Berefit Obligations

Long-term Liabilities

Totd Longtem Liabilities

Business type activities:

Montgomery Courty
Revenue Bonds and Notes Payable
Unamortized Discount on Revenue Bonds
and Notes
Accrued Compensated Absences
Net Other Post Employment Benrefit Obligations

Long-term Liabilities

Prince George's County
Accrued Compersated Absences
Net Other Post Employment Benrefit Obligations

Long-term Liabiliies

Totd Long-tem Liabiliies

Beginning Ending Amount Due
Balance Additions Reductions Balance in Ore Year
$ 2465000 $ 13655,000 $ 1083000 $ 32,290,000 $ 2,610,000
3,745,000 - 535,000 3,210,000 530,000
(439,941) (88,849) (36,022) (492,768) -
3,204,822 - 1,164,45% 2,130,367 1,212,631
227,200 - 56,800 170,400 56,800
7,690,081 5,402,971 5,041,775 8,051,277 5,041,775
4,216,687 4,441,083 - 8,657,720 -
48,198,849 23,410,155 17,592,008 54,016,996 9,451,206
95,735,000 - 10,234,049 85,500,%1 10,269,797
835,000 - 300,000 585,000 295,000
1,361,218 - (198,275) (1,162,A3) -
1,438,370 - 384,258 1,054,112 400,932
9,354,419 6,441,9%4 5,207,868 10,588,515 5,207,368
5,160,271 5,662,874 - 10,823 145 -
111,211,842 12,104,838 15,927,900 107,388,780 16,173,597
$ 199,410691 $ 3551493 $ VB51998 $ 161405776 $ 25,624,803
Beginning Ending Amount Due
Balance Additions Reductions Balance in Ore Year
$ 5,630,044 $ - % 1107223 $ 4522821 $ 1,129,561
(128,251) - (32,083) (96,188) (32,063
257,867 115,850 97,315 276,402 97,315
92,317 2,218 - 184,535 -
5,851,977 208,068 1,172,475 4,887,570 1,194,813
754,154 268,533 224,343 798,344 224,343
351,589 368,843 - 720,432 -
1,105,743 637,376 224,343 1518776 224,343
$ 6,%7,720 $ 845,444 % 1,396,818 $ 6,406,346 $ 1,419,156
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Long-term obligations are shown in the Statement of Net Assets as follows:

Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total

Compensated Absences:

Due within One Year $ 10,249,643 $ 321,658 $ 10,571,301

Due in more than One Year 8,390,149 753,088 9,143,237
Bonds and Notes Payable:

Due within One Year 15,375,160 1,129,561 16,504,721

Due in more than One Year 107,909,959 3,297,072 111,207,031
Net Other Post employment Benefit Obligations

Due in more than One Year 19,480,865 904,967 20,385,832

Total Long-term Liabilities $ 161,405,776 $ 6,406,346 $ 167,812,122

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for
them are included as part of governmental activities. For the governmental activities, claims and
judgments and compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund.

(5) - OTHER INFORMATION

(A) Risk Management

The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Commission protects
against unforeseen losses through self-insurance and commercial insurance coverages. Self-insurance
and some commercial insurance policies are administered through the Montgomery County Self-
Insurance Fund (the "Program"), of which the Commission is a participant. The “Program" is beneficial
for the purpose of economic pooling of risks and resources, and providing claims administration. Self-
insured coverage is available for workers' compensation (Maryland state mandatory limits),
comprehensive general liability (Maryland Tort caps apply), police professional, public official liability, and
property and fire damage (up to $250,000). Commercial insurance policies are retained for boiler and
machinery damage, and data processing system breakdown, property and fire damage above $250,000
excess liability and commercial crime coverage. The Commission is responsible for reimbursing the
Program, the full amount of all self-insured claims with the exception of property loss claims which are
limited to $250,000 reimbursement after which point, group commercial insurance policies provide
protection. Outside the" Program" coverages, the Commission also carries Public Official bond coverage,
airport liability coverage, airport museum coverages, and other coverages for specialized needs. The
Commission did not pay any claims settlements in excess of $250,000 for fiscal years 2007, 2008 and
2009. No insurance coverages were reduced in fiscal year 2009.

The Commission's employees and retirees have various options in their selection of health insurance
benefits. The Commission self-insures the following medical plans: a health maintenance organization
(HMO), an exclusive provider organization (EPO), a point of service (POS), out-of-area POS (retirees
only) and Medicare compliment plan (retirees only), as well as the prescription drug plan. All other group
health insurance plans are fully insured including a dental plan and a vision plan with three coverage
options. The Commission expenses (net of employee, Medicare Part D and retiree contributions) were
$23,906,767 for all group health benefits in fiscal year 2009. The basis for estimating incurred but not
reported (IBNR) claims at year-end is an annual analysis performed by the plans’ administrators.

Premiums are paid into the Risk Management Internal Service Fund by the General Fund and Enterprise
Funds and are available to pay claims, claim reserves and administrative costs of the Program. Claims
paid during fiscal year 2009 totaled $3,934,453. Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has
occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for IBNR
claims which is determined annually based on an actuarial valuation. In addition, individual claim liabilities
are established for each case based on the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends including
frequency and amount of payouts and other economic and social factors. Changes in the balances of
claims liabilities during the past two years are as follows:
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Risk

Medical Management
Unpaid Claims, June 30, 2007 $ 1,588,271 $ 9,420,777
Incurred Claims, Fiscal Y ear 2008 15,416,063 3,441,882
Claims Paid, Fiscal Y ear 2008 (14,862,750) (3,103,190)
Unpaid Claims, June 30, 2008 2,141,584 9,759,469
Incurred Claims, Fiscal Y ear 2009 14,705,490 4,349,122
Claims Paid, Fiscal Y ear 2009 (14,848,379) (3,934,453)
Unpaid Claims, June 30, 2009 $ 1,998695 $ 10,174,138

The medical column excludes expenses that are fully insured.

Unpaid claims reconcile to the amounts shown in the Statement of Net Assets as follows:

Risk
Medical Management Total
Due within One Year $ 1,998,695 $ 2,554,837 $ 4,553,532
Due in more than One Year - 7,619,301 7,619,301
Total $ 1,998,695 $ 10,174,138 $ 12,172,833

(B) Related Party Transactions

The Commission was involved in the following related party transactions during fiscal year 2009:

Payments and Obligations to Prince George’s County - The Commission paid or is obligated to pay
Prince George's County for the following:

Department of Environmental Resources Zoning Enforcement/Inspection 1,872,300
Property Tax Collection Fees 436,700
Office Space Rental at the County Administration Building 588,624
Geographic Information Systems - GIS 340,500
Peoples Zoning Counsel 102,100
Department of Environmental Resources Water and Sewer Planning 136,800
Permits & Inspection - Department of Environmental Resource (DER) 2,300,000
Permits & Inspection - DPW&T 1,620,000
Redevelopment Authority 1,000,000
Gorgeous Prince George's 250,000
Prince George's Community College 2,500,000
Green Programs - Prince George's County Office of Central Services 50,000
Economic Development for Enterprise Zone 65,000

Total $ 12,180,512

Of this amount, $10,278,312 is in Accounts Payable at June 30, 2009.

(C) Contingencies

Grant Program — The Commission, as grantee or subgrantee, participates in several Federal and State
grant programs, which are subject to financial and compliance audits. The Commission believes it has
complied, in all material respects, with applicable grant requirements and the amount of expenditures that
may be disallowed by the granting agencies, if any, would be immaterial.
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Litigation — The Commission is a defendant in various legal actions that fall into three major categories —
those arising from the Commission’s planning and zoning powers, those arising from incidents occurring
on the Commission property and those arising from personnel actions. The Commission’s management
and its General Counsel estimate that the resolution of claims resulting from all litigation against the
Commission not covered by insurance will not materially affect the financial position or operations of the
Commission.

(D) Employees’ Retirement System and Pension Plans

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description - The Commission contributes to The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning
Commission Employees' Retirement System (the "System"), a single-employer defined benefit public
employee retirement plan. Benefit provisions and obligations to contribute to the plans and all other
requirements are established by a Trust Agreement between the Commission and the Board of Trustees
of the System which has been periodically amended since the System was established July 1, 1972.
Accounting and financial reporting for the system is performed by non-Commission employees who are
employed directly by the System. The System’s financial records are not maintained on a separate
county basis. The assets of the System are invested with the objective of ensuring sufficient funds will be
available for meeting benefit payments. As the System’s investment asset pool provides collectively for
benefit payments of all four plans, the System is considered a single “pension plan” for purposes of
financial reporting in accordance with GAAP. Publicly available Financial Statements that include
management’s discussion and analysis, financial statements and required supplementary information for
the System can be obtained at the administrative offices of The Maryland-National Capital Park and
Planning Commission Employees’ Retirement System, 6611 Kenilworth Avenue, Suite 100, Riverdale,
Maryland 20737.

Active plan members in Plan A are required to contribute 6% of their base pay. Plan B members
contribute 3% of their base pay up to the maximum Social Security Wage Base and 6% in excess of the
maximum Social Security Wage Base for the calendar year. Plan C members contribute 8% of their base
pay and Plan D members contribute 7% of their base pay.

Actuarial Methods for Defined Benefit Pension Plan - The actuarial value of assets calculates gains or
losses on the basis of the actuarially assumed interest rate and recognizes one-fifth of the cumulative
gains or losses not yet recognized. This year's asset value is based on the July 1, 2008 actuarial
valuation.

The Entry Age Normal Cost method is used, with level dollar amortization of the unfunded actuarial
accrued liabilities as of July 1, 2005 over a closed amortization period ending July 1, 2016. Subsequent
changes in unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities are amortized in equal payments over 15 years.

The actuarial accrued liability was estimated as part of an actuarial valuation performed as of July 1,
2008. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) a rate of return on the
investment of present and future assets of 7.5% a year compounded annually, (b) projected salary
increases of 4% a year plus variable merit increases, (c) cost of living increases in benefits after
retirement based on the Plan’s provision for annual increases of 100% of the first 3% of change in the
CPI-Urban Index for major U.S. cities plus half of the change in excess of 3%, but no more than 5% in
total. The assumed post-retirement cost of living adjustment is 3%.



The funded status of the plan as of the most recent actuarial date, July 1, 2008, is as follows ($000’s):

Actuarial Valuation of Plan Assets $ 633,700
Actuarial Accrued Liability 662,225
Funded Ratio 95.7%
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability 28,525
Annual Covered Payroll 132,241
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability

as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 21.6%

The net assets available for benefits at June 30, 2009 totaled $451,265,999.

The Commission’s contributions to the System are made in accordance with actuarially determined
requirements.

The Commission’s annual pension cost (APC) and net pension obligation (NPO) to the System for fiscal
years, 2007, 2008 and 2009 are presented below ($000):

2007 2008 2009
Annual Pension Cost (APC) $ 9825 $ 10,561 $ 14,933
Percentage of APC Contributed 100% 100% 100%

Net Pension Obligation (NPO) - - -

The Commission contributes 100% of the adjusted annual required contribution and has no NPO at year-
end.

Deferred Compensation Plans

The Commission offers its employees deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. One plan, available to all career Commission employees, permits them to
defer a portion of their salary to future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees or
beneficiaries until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The Commission also
offers a separate deferred compensation plan to its officers and to the staff of the Employees' Retirement
System. These plans are not included in the financial statements.

(E) Other Postemployment Benefits

Plan Description - In addition to the pension benefits provided by the System, the Commission provides
postretirement health care benefits, in accordance with Commission approval, to all full-time and part-time
career employees, directors appointed by Montgomery County and Prince George's County Planning
Boards, Merit System Board Members, Commissioners, appointed officials and Employees’ Retirement
System employees who retire under a Commission Retirement Plan or the State of Maryland Retirement
Plan at the end of their Commission or System service, and who have been insured under any
Commission-sponsored group medical plan during the three years immediately preceding the date of
retirement or ability to prove similar coverage in another plan immediately prior to retirement. Currently
720 retirees and survivors are participating in the Commission's medical plans. The Commission
contributes 85 percent of the amount of medical, prescription drug, and dental insurance rates and 80
percent of the low coverage option for all three coverage options of vision benefit rates. The System
contributes the same percentages for its full-time and part-time employees and retiree Benefits levels are
established annually by resolution of the Commission.

Funding Policy - On July 1, 1999, the Commission established a 115 Trust account (the “Trust”) for the
purpose of pre-funding a portion of retiree insurance costs in the future. The Commission executed a
Discretionary Investment Management Agreement with a Financial Advisor (Custodial Trustee) of the
account. Per the Post-Retirement Insurance Benefits Program Trust Agreement | - Contributions, the
Commission may elect to contribute additional amounts as deemed necessary to meet its benefit costs.
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Prior to fiscal year 2008, the Trust account had not been funded based on actuarial information. The fund
was used in certain prior fiscal years to pay the net cost of postretirement health care benefits, net of the
retiree contributions. A minimal balance was retained in the fund to maintain the legal status of the trust.

In fiscal year 2008, the Commission began phasing in over an 8 year period actuarially based funding of
Other Postemployment Benefits in connection with the implementation of the accounting requirements of
GASB Statement No. 45 “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions”.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation — The Commission’s annual other postemployment
benefit (OPEB) cost (Expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer
(ARC) an amount actuarially determined in accordance with parameters established in current GASB
accounting standards. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period
not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the Commission’s annual OPEB
cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and the calculation of the year end net
OPEB obligation (dollar amounts in thousands).

Annual required contribution (expense) $ 21,306
Contribution made 10,741

Increase in Net OPEB contribution 10,565
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 9,821
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 20,386

The Commission’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan,
and the net OPEB obligation (NPO) to the System for fiscal years 2008 and 2009 is presented below
($000):

2008 2009
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 19,402 $ 21,306
Percentage of ARC Contributed 49% 50%
Net OPEB Obligation 9,821 20,386

Actuarial Valuation - Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Actuarially
determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the Commission and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time
of the valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the Commission and plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions include techniques that are designed to
reduce short-term volatility in actuarially accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent
with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

Actuarial Methods for Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan - The actuarial value of assets is the fair
value of the investments. This year’s asset value is based on the July 1, 2008 actuarial valuation.

The Projected Unit Credit Cost method is used, with level percentage of pay amortization of the unfunded
actuarial liabilities over an open 30 year amortization period.
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The actuarial accrued liability was estimated as part of an actuarial valuation performed as of July 1,
2008. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation are as follows:

Rate of Return — The assumed rate of return on the investment of present and future assets is a
“select and ultimate” interest rate starting at 4.25% and grading to 7.5% over an eight year period,
and thereafter at 7.5% a year compounded annually.

Salary Increases - Salary increases of 4.00% a year are projected for calculating the level
percentage of pay.

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates — The expected rate of increase for healthcare costs in 2009 was
estimated at 9.5% for prescription drugs and medical costs, and 5.5% for dental and vision.
Declining rates of increase were used, with 2019 and later rates at 4.5% for all costs.

The funded status of the plan as of the most recent actuarial date, July 1, 2008, is as follows ($000’s):

Actuarial Valuation of Plan Assets $ 2,817
Actuarial Accrued Liability 257,492
Funded Ratio 1.09%
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability 254,675
Annual Covered Payroll 131,074
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability

as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 194.3%

The 115 Trust is reported by the Commission as a pension trust fund, the Other Post Employment
Benefits Fund.

The Trust's financial records are not maintained on a separate county basis.
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(F) Pension Trust Funds

Combining schedules of the pension trust funds follow:

Combining Schedules of Net Assets

ASSETS
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments
Cash
Fixed Income Securities
International Fixed Income Securities
Corporate Stock
International Corporate Stock
Real Estate
Short Term Investments
Mutual Funds

Pension Trust Funds
June 30, 2009

Collateral for Securities Lending Transactions

Accounts Receivable
Other
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Investment Payable
Accounts Payable
Claims Payable
Obligation for Collateral Received
under Securities Lending Transactions
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Assets Held in Trust for:
Pension Benefits
Other Postemployment Benefits
Total Net Assets

Other Post
Employees' Employment Total
Retirement Benefits Pension Trust

Fund Fund Funds
- % 602,103 $ 602,103
27,957 17,530 45,487
126,922,128 - 126,922,128
26,625,065 - 26,625,065
210,216,353 - 210,216,353
57,811,003 - 57,811,003
22,147,479 - 22,147,479
16,282,919 - 16,282,919
- 7,457,761 7,457,761
21,963,391 - 21,963,391
1,401,972 - 1,401,972
14,783 - 14,783
483,413,050 8,077,394 491,490,444
9,037,432 - 9,037,432
572,335 4,872 577,207
- 597,231 597,231
22,537,284 - 22,537,284
32,147,051 602,103 32,749,154
451,265,999 - 451,265,999
- 7,475,291 7,475,291
451,265,999 $ 7,475291 $ 458,741,290
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Combining Schedules of Changes in Net Assets

Pension Trust Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Other Post
Employees' Employment
Retirement Benefits
Fund Fund Totals
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Employer 14,933,506 $ 11,608,636 $ 26,542,142
Plan Members 4,892,570 - 4,892,570
Plan Members for Current Benefits - 845,226 845,226
Total Contributions 19,826,076 12,453,862 32,279,938
Federal Grants - Medicare - 333,101 333,101
Investment Earnings:
Interest 6,407,173 7,690 6,414,863
Dividends 51,299 235,647 286,946
Net increase (decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments (124,430,522) (963,616) (125,394,138)
Total Investment Earnings (loss) (117,972,050) (720,279) (118,692,329)
Less Investment Advisory and Management Fees (1,577,950) (19,159) (1,597,109)
Net Income (loss) from Investing Activities (119,550,000) (739,438) (120,289,438)
Securities Lending Activity
Securities Lending Income 355,078 - 355,078
Securities Lending Fees (249,946) - (249,946)
Net Income from Securities Lending Activity 105,132 - 105,132
Total Net Investment Loss (119,444,868) (739,438) (120,184,306)
Total Additions and Investment Losses (99,618,792) 12,047,525 (87,571,267)
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits 25,670,702 7,389,223 33,059,925
Refunds of Contributions 249,583 - 249,583
Administrative expenses 1,358,695 - 1,358,695
Total Deductions 27,278,980 7,389,223 34,668,203
Change in Net Assets (126,897,772) 4,658,302 (122,239,470)
Net Assets - Beginning 578,163,771 2,816,989 580,980,760
Net Assets - Ending $ 451,265999 $ 7475291 $ 458,741,290

90



(6) — PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The Commission had adopted a fiscally prudent policy in 1985 to fund the compensated absences liability
in an Internal Service Fund. However, current accounting standards do not permit the pre-funding of
compensated absences accrued by employees paid with resources of the Governmental Funds.
Therefore, the Commission had a prior period adjustment to the Internal Service Funds in FY 2009. The
adjustment is presented below.

Internal Service Funds:

Beginning Net Assets Internal Service Funds $ 34,093,648
Elimination of Liability 17,082,246
Adjusted Beginning Net Assets Internal Service Funds, restated $ 51,175,894

(7) — COUNTY FINANCIAL DATA

The following financial data pertains to both Montgomery and Prince George’s Counties.
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ASSETS
Equity in Fooled Cash and Investments
Receivables - Taxes (net of allowance
for uncollectibles)

Receivables - QOthar
Due fram County Gavernment
Due fram Other Gavernments
Reastricted Cash - Unspent Debt Proceeds
Other

Total Assets

LIABLITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Ratainage Payable
Due to County Gavernment
Deposits and Deferred Revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reservad for Encumbrances
Reserved for Debt Service

Unraserved, Designaled far Contingencies
Unreserved, Designated for Subsequent Years

Unreserved, Lindesignaled, Reported in;
General Fund
Special Revenue Fund
Capital Projacts

Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilittes and Fund Balances

MONTGOMERY COUNTY
Summary of Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balances
Governmental Funds and Accounts
June 30, 2009

Note 7A

Other Total
General Fund Accounts Capital Governmartal Governmental
Administration Park Total Projects Funds Funds
3 7865707 & 15191532 § 22,547,239 § 212442 % 2052414 § 24,812,085
602 957 1,639,316 2,242,273 76,318 2,318,591
114,458 18,988 133,444 . 13,728 147172
211,581 33,601 245272 3,192 695 303,080 3,741,027
. 44,343 44,543 1,397 378 1,441,727
- . 2,923,418 2933418
12,389 12,389 12,389

25,224,060

$ 8,297,082 $ 16927668 § $ 7735933 § 2,445 520

§ 35 406,413

§ 554,219 § 1656261 & 2210480 §  2Bi5682 3 64,987 § 5,001,149
1,087,203 2,695,582 3,782,785 . 41,886 3,824,671

- . . 879,202 . 870,202

80 . 60 . as 95

385,101 1,189,611 1,674,712 875,000 126,467 2576,179

2,026,503 5,541,454 7,568,037 4 569,974 233,375 12,371,386
3197475 3,807,443 6,974,918 13,074 814 426,036 20,475,768

- - - 29118 29,118

833,300 2,383,300 3,216,600 E 3,216,600
1,068,200 4,574,300 5,642,500 - 5,642,500

1231 5534 591 371 1,822,905 1,822 905

- 1,756,991 1,756,991

. (9,808,855) . {5,908,855)

6,270,509 11,386,414 17,656,923 3,165,959 2,212,145 23,035,027

$ 8207000 % 16027868 § _ 265224060 § __ 7,736830 § 2445520 % 35 406,413
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REVENUES
Property Taxes
Intgrgovernmental:

Federal

State

County

Local
Charges for Services
Rentals and Concessions
Intarasct
Sale of Land
Contributions
Miscellaneous

Total Revenuas

EXPENDITURES
Currant:
General Governmant
Planning and Zoning

Park Operations and Maintenance

Contributions
DRebt Service;

Principal

Interest

Other Debt Service Costs
Capital Qutlay;

Park Acquisition

Park Development

Totat Expenditures

MONTGOMERY COUNTY

Summary of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances
Governmental Funds and Accounts

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Note 7B

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over

Expanditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

General Obligation Bonds lssued

Refunding Eonds Issued

Premiums an Bonds |ssusd
Payment to Rafunding Bond Escrow Aggaunt 5

Transfers In
Transter Out

Tatal Other Financing Saurces (Uses)

Nat Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

Other Total
General Fund Accounta Capihtal Governmantal Govarnmeantal
Administration Park Tolal Projects Funds Funds

§ 27503864 § TBB14B41 3 104219705 § § 1,700,802 $ 106,020,507
33,062 33,062 488,219 521,281

207499 207.499 895,889 - 1,103,388

868,103 25,000 893,103 10,640,732 541,716 12,075,550

- 29,905 29,905 . 33,877 63,882

401,328 B95,479 1,296,807 1,690,463 2,987 270
1,426,893 1,426,893 - 34,618 1,461,511

201,425 407,513 608,938 289,009 65,103 963,050

- . - 355,028 . 365,028

- - . 37.500 100,395 137,895

23,156 145,548 168,705 5,820 206,408 380,934
28,997 876 79,986,741 108,984,617 12.712 197 4,373 482 128,070,296
8,338,955 8,338,955 - 8,338,955
17,394,696 - 17,394,696 - 3,893,007 21,087,703
- 768921127 76,921 127 . 293,465 77,214,592

. 2 E 1,001,558 1,001,558

28,400 28,400 56,800 - 3,115,000 3,171,800

= . . 1,349,850 1,349,890

- 162.877 152,877

- 2,206,268 2,206,268

- - - 17,863,760 17,863,760
258,762,081 76,949 527 102,711,578 20,070,028 9,605,797 132,387 403
3,235 825 3,037,214 6,273,039 (7.357.831) {5,232,315) (6,317.107)
E ' - 5,250,000 - 5,250,000

- - - . B.405,000 8,405,000

. . - 38,212 343,405 381,617
- s * (B.650,B56) (8,650.856)

. 289008 289,009 - 5,615,862 5,904,871
{1,773,000) (4,423,650) (6,196,650) {327,221) - {6,625.871)
{1,773,000) (4,134.641) (5,907.641) 4,960,991 571341 4,766,761
1,462 825 (1.097.427) 365,398 (2,396,840) 481,096 (1,550,346)
4,807 684 12, 4683 841 17,201,525 5,562,799 1,731,048 24,585,373
3 6,270,509 § 11386414 % 17,656,923 § 3,165,959 § 2,212,145 § 23,035,027
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY

ADMINISTRATION ACCOUNT- GENERAL FUND
Summary of Aevenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Note 7C

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Paositive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Proparty Taxes & 27460600 % 27,460,600 § 27503864 & 43,264
Intergovemmental -
State 150,000 150,000 - (150,000)
Caounty 737,500 737,500 866,103 130,603
Charges for Services 400,000 400,000 401,328 1,328
Interest 250,000 250,000 201,425 (48.575)
Miscellaneous - - 23,156 23,156
Total Revenuas 28,998,100 28,998,100 28,997.876 (224)
Expenditures/Encumbrances:
Commissioners' Office 1,605,200 1,207,000 988,287 218,713
Central Administrative Services -
Department of Human Resources and Managemant 2,680,500 2,680,500 2,586,042 94,458
Department of Finance 3,236,400 3,236,400 3,127,365 108,035
Legal Dapartmant 1,072,400 1,072,400 1,066,048 6,352
Support Services 512,300 512,300 513,188 (B888)
Marit System Board 55,200 55,200 51,527 3,673
Total Central Administrative Services 7.556,800 7.556,800 7,344,170 212,630
Planning Depanment -
Park and Flanning Director's Office 518,700 616,600 578,087 38,513
Management Services 841,400 2,459,800 2,306,175 153,625
Strategic Planning 240,800 - - -
Urban Design - 1,458,200 1,358,594 99,606
Transpertation Planning - 1,894,200 1,866,452 27,748
Community-Based Planning 3,551,800 2,351,600 2,263,300 88,300
County-wide Flanning 4,432,100 2,393,600 2,310,847 82,753
Development Review 1,628,000 943,000 945 (B2 (2,022)
Ressarch and Technology 4,829,600 4,481,400 4,309,150 172,250
Support Services 2,110,100 1,852,300 2,085,639 (143,338)
Grants 150,000 150,000 - 150,000
Total Planning Pepartment 18,302,500 18,700,700 18,033,266 667.434
Non-Departmental - - (124,338) 124,338
Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 27,464,500 27,464,500 26,241 385 1,223,115
Excess of Revenues over (under)
Expenditures/Encumbrances 1,633,600 1,633,600 2,756,491 1,222,891
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in (Out) -
Special Revenue Fund - Dev. Review {1,773,000) (1,773,000} {1,773,000) -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,773,000) (1,773,000) (1.773,000} -
Excess of Revenues and Cther Financing Sources
over (undar) Expenditures and Cther Financing Uses $ (239,400) $ {239,400} 983491 § 1,222,891
Furd Balance - Budget Basis, Beginning 2,149,543
Fund Balance - Budget Basis, Ending 3,133,034
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY

PARK ACCOUNT- GENERAL FUND

Summary of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues:
Property Taxes
Intergovernmental -
Fedaeral
State
Other
County
Charges for Services
Rentals and Concesslons
Interest
Miscellaneous
Total Aevenues

Expenditures/Encumbrances;
Director of Montgomery Parks
Managament Services
Facilities Management
Park Planning and Stewardship
Research and Technalogy
Park Development
Park Police
Natural Resources
Central Maintanance
Northern Region
Southern Region
Support Services
Grants
Property Management
Nen-Departmental

Tolal Expenditures/Encumbrances

Excess of Revenuas over (under)

Expendituras/Encumbrances

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In/Out-
Capital Projects Funds
Debt Service Fund
Enterprise Fund

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
over (under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 3

Fund Balance - Budget Basis, Beginning
Fund Balance - Budget Basis, Ending

Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Note 7D

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Qriginal Final Actual {Negative)
§ 76628600 § 76628600 % 76615841 § 187,241
- 33,062 33,062 “
425,000 357,052 207,499 (149,553)
- 28,905 29,805 -
- - 256,000 25,000
1,019,600 1,019,600 895,479 {124,121}
1,749,600 1,749,600 1,426,893 {322,707)
520,000 520,000 407,513 {112,487}
33,500 38,481 145,549 107,068
80,376,300 80,376,300 79,986,741 (389,559)
2,706,100 2,706,100 2,749 9583 {43,883)
886,700 886,700 902,343 (15,643}
1,750,200 1,750,200 1,547,319 202,881
3,734,200 3,734,200 3,340,937 393,262
1,945,000 1,945,000 1,667,153 277847
3,771,600 3,771,600 3,265,843 506,757
12,084,200 12,084,200 11,833,281 250,919
6,179,300 6,179,300 5,866,903 32397
11,244 900 11,244,900 10,989,955 264,945
8,974,600 8,974,600 8,725,496 249,104
13,157,200 13,157,200 13,016,940 140,260
12,675,700 12,675,700 13,943 270 {1,267,670)
425,000 425,000 275,448 149,652
1,137,400 1,137,400 906,037 231,363
- - (25.199) 25,199
80,672,100 B80,672.100 79,005,709 1,666,391
(295,800) (295,800) 981,032 1,276,832
130,000 130,000 289,009 159,009
(4,005,800) (4,005,800) (3.804,650) 201,150
{619,000) (619,000) (619,000) -
{4,494 ,800) (4,424,800) (4,134,641) 360,159
(4790600} &  (4.790,600) (3,153,609) § 1,636,981
10,702,580
5 7 548|971



ASSETS
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments
Receivables - Taxes {net of allowance
for uncollectiblas}

Rateivables - Other
Due fram County Governmen
Due from Ciher Governments
Restricted Cash - Unspent Debt Proceeds
Other

Tolal Assels

LIABLITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liakilities:
Accounts Payable
Acerusd Liatilities
Retalnage Payabie
Deposits and Delerred Revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for Encumbrances
Reserved for Dabt Service
Unreserved, Designated for Contingancias

Unreserved, Designatod for Subsequent Years

Unreserved, Undesignated, Reporied in.
General Fund
Special Revanue Fund
Capital Projects
Total Fund Balances
Total Liahilities and Fund Balances

$

3

3

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY

Summary of Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balances

Governmental Funds and Aceounts

Note TE

June 30, 2009
Othar Total
Ganeral Fund Accounty Capital Govermmaental Governmantal
Administrati Park Totwl Projects Funie Funds
35376387 % 72120673 § 44525372 § 152,022,432 § 122876564 § 4,347,093 § 279,246,089
731,033 2,607,056 1,336,759 4,577,848 - 23,261 4,607,109
11,960 11,114 13,640 36,804 1,776,016 . 1,811,620
= = . - “ 171,855 171,856
113,239 22,130 144,177 279,546 3,804,179 . 4,083,728
2 = = = 10,078 561 = 10,076,561
10,181 - - 10,191 - - 1819
36,242 80O % 74 66G,873 § 46,022 848 5 156026621 & 198532320 5 __ 4548208 & 300,007,150
9,846,853 % 4221923 8 5444454 § 15,513,230 & 1720680 & 394,751 § 21,637 661
827,001 2,721,509 3,030, 668 6,579,198 - 95,602 6,674,800
- = = ] 749,908 - 748,808
27722 1,158,331 3,300,154 4,935,708 E 39,000 4,974 706
10,951,075 8,101,763 11,975,296 41,028,134 2,479,588 529,433 34,037,155
10.871,655 9917,207 3,642,635 24,431 497 15,879,797 421,467 40,732,761
& > % 7 7 14,261 14,261
2,476,500 8,133,200 3.473,300 14,082,004} - - 14,082,003
2,160,900 10,845,200 2,227,100 15,233,200 - 15,233,200
4,783.670 37663603 24,704,517 72,161,750 5 G 72,151,790
v ¢ i G 4 3.583.048 3,583.048
: L] . - 120,172,935 - 120,172,935
25,291,725 66,559.21¢ 34,047,562 125,898 487 136,052 732 4018776 265 060,995
36242 800 § 74 660,973 % 46 042 BB § 156.925.5‘51_ $ 138,632,820 & 4548200 § 300007150
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REVENUES
Proporty Taxes
Intargovernmantal:

Foderal

Siale

County

Lacal
Charges for Sarvices
Rentals and Concassions
Interest
Contributiong
Miscalaneous

Total fevanuas

EXPENDITURES
Currant;
Garnaral Governmant
Fanning and Zoning
Park Operations and Maintenancs
Recraation
Conltributions
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Other Crebt Servica Costs
Capital Outlay:
Park Acquisition
Park Development
Tetal Expandilures
Excass (daficiency) of Revenues over
EXpCAiitlres

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transters In
Transfer Qut

Total Qther Financing Scurces (Uses)
Net Change In Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Baginning

Fund Balances - Ending

Summary of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balancas

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY

Governmental Funds and Accounts
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Nota 7F

Other Total
General Fund Accounts Gapital G tal G tal
Adminlstratian Park Récrantion Total Projecta Fundn Funda

ki 42001842 & 149,481,184  § 655164995 % 246,737,418 b 1,208337 & 247,945,750
45,997 146.699 182 606 30,306 223,002

= 21,757 343,824 365,661 2,710611 . 3.076.272

160,278 3,000 B 163,276 - 173,702 336,980

» 11,348 - 11,349 . » 11,248

1,012,211 FABIE £,221.020 7.807.046 972,603 8,584 848

- 2,019,287 714,727 2,734,014 - 4,821,693 7,555,707

881,080 1,382,777 1109012 3,382,862 2,043 344 175.833 6.602.048

. . - - 2,025,046 372,768 2,397,784

1,164 286,172 73, 4E6 340,802 402 53,362 394,656
44,158,578 153,606 318 83,773,241 261 536 134 7808679 7,784,588 277,128,401
10,016,143 10,018,143 10,018,143
36.052.040 5 36,052 040 - 36,052,040
- 85,254,655 - B5,254 655 334,485 85,589,140

E 58,229,277 58,239,277 6,770.675 65,000,956

i " 859,223 859,223

- 10,584,048 10,534,043

- - . 3715796 3,715,795

- - 25,958 25,058

& 6,801,138 0 €,801,138

: z . z 11,087,576 11,087,576

465 068.183 45 254 655 58,259 277 188,582,115 17,808,714 22,240,189 229,701,018
{1,911.608) 8,050,663 5.530 964 71,873,018 (10,0B8,045) (14,456,801) 47,427,383
. 3,043,344 - 4,063,344 B11B2,8029 173,986,572 78,212,725
(50,000) {73,480.572) (B.B0.300) {B2.521.472) (3.043,344) {1,828.009 87.193625)
(50.000) (70,447 228) 6,360,500, {79,478, 128) 50,158 465 12,357,763 (8,%80.900)
(1,561,808) (2,096 568) {3.448.936) (7,505.109) 48 050,430 (2,058,838) 38,446,483
27,253,333 68,655,775 37,494 488 133,403,596 88,002 302 6117614 227,523 512
5 26,251,798 & 56550010 & 34047557 $ 105898487 § 136052732 $ 4018778 4% 265,960,995
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PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY

ADMINISTRATION ACCOUNT- GENERAL FUND
Summary of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual

Revenues:
Property Taxes
Intergovernmental -
County
Charges for Services
Interest
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures/Encumbrances:

Commissioners' OHice

Central Administrative Services -
Depanment of Human Resources and Managament
Depantment of Finance
Legal Depantment
Support Services
Merit System Board

Total Central Administrative Services

Planning Department -
Director's Otfice
Development Review
Community Planning North
Community Planning South
Information Management
Countywide Planning
Information Center
Suppott Services
Grants

Total Planning Department

Non-Departmental
Total Expenditures/Encumbrances

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over
Expenditures/Encumbrances

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In (Out) -
Special Revenue Fund
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources

over (under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balance - Budget Basis, Beginning
Fund Balance - Budget Basis, Ending

For the Year Ended Juna 30, 2009

Note 7G

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
QOriginal Final Actual (Negativa)

$ 39,793,000 % 39,793,000 % 42091842 § 2,208,842
210,000 174,276 160,278 (13,998)
1,628,000 1,628,000 1,012,211 (615,789)
690,000 690,000 891,080 201,080

. S 1,164 1,164
42,321,000 42,285,276 44,156,575 1,871,299
2,866,800 2,866,800 2,544,533 322,267
2,680,500 2,680,500 2,586,042 94,458
3,236,400 3,236,400 3,127,365 109,035
1,126,000 1,126,000 1,125,312 668
512,300 512,300 513,188 (888}
55,200 55,200 51,528 3,672
7,610,400 7,610,400 7.403,435 206,965
2,569,600 3,069,600 4,332,292 {1,262,692)
B,298,900 8,208,900 6.627,095 1,671,805
5,502,300 5,502,300 4,000,252 1,502,048
4,938,200 4,938,200 3,629,658 1,308,542
7,745,500 7,745,500 7,698,394 47,106
8,671,300 8,671,300 7,279,892 1,391,408
6,222 500 6,222 500 3,601,253 2,721,247
2,052,100 2,052,100 1,594 866 457,234
130,000 894,278 94 276 -
46,130,400 46,594,676 38,757,978 7,836,698
. . (360,876) 360,876
56,607,600 57,071,876 48,245,070 8,726,806
{14,286,600) (14,786,600) (4,188 495) 10,598,105
(50,000) (80.000) (50,000 -
(50,000} (560,000) (50,000) -

L (14.336.600) $__ (14,836,600 (4.238,495) & 10,698 105

18,658,565
3 14,420,670
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PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY
PARK ACCOUNT- GENERAL FUND

Summary of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues:
Property Taxes
Intergovernmental -
Federal
Btate
Local
County
Charges for Services
Rantals and Concessions
Interest
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures/Encumbrances:
Director's Office
Park Polica
Support Sarvices
Park Ptanning and Development
Infarmation Technelogy and Cemmunication
Facility Operations -
Administration
Maimenance and Development
Natural and Historical Resources
Arts and Cultural Heritage
Park Permits and Aquatics Maintenance
Tatal Facility Operations

Area Operations -
Narthern Area
Central Area
Southern Area
Total Area Operations

Grants
Non-Deparntmental
Total Expenditures/Encumbrancas

Excess of Ravenues over
Expenditures/Encumbrances

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transiets In (Out) -
Capital Projects Funds - Interest
Dabt Service - Park Fund
Capital Projects Funds - Development
Total Other Financing Sources (Usas)

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balance - Budget Basis, Baginning
Fund Balance - Budget Basis, Ending

Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Note 7H

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

140,022,000 140,022,000 & 149 481,184 $ 9,459,184
- 23,532 45,997 22,465

- 16,089 21,737 5 648

- 11,349 11,349 -

- 3,000 3,000 -

336,600 336,600 373815 37,218
2,066,200 2,066,200 2,015,287 (46,913)
1,530,000 1,530,000 1,382,777 (147,223)
314,400 314,400 266,172 (48,228)
144,269,200 144,323,170 153,605,318 9,282 148
3,570,300 2,894,400 2,820,132 74,268
15,200,500 14,538,800 14,295,665 243,135
11,860,300 12,915,300 12,857 387 57,913
5,773,300 6,248,900 6,041,469 207,431
1,834,600 2,116,700 2,003,984 22,716
430,400 417,200 388 594 27,608
25,719,700 27,710,400 28,371,513 (661,113)
2,742,100 2,663,200 2,618,085 (64,885)
1,786,300 1,714,100 1,723,358 (9,258)
554,600 393,800 427,482 (33,682)
31,233,100 32,788,700 33,530,032 (741,332)
6,058,800 8,813,600 5,785,434 28,166
5,807,300 5,656,700 5,439,921 216,779
5,248,300 5,234,800 5,106,423 128,377
17,115,400 16,705,100 16,331,778 arazaz
x 53,970 53,970 -

3,963,900 2 802,500 2,569,674 232 B26
20,560,400 91,064,370 90,594,091 470,279
53,708,800 53,258,800 63,011,227 8,752,427
1,140,000 1,140,000 3,043,344 1,903,344
(14,223,900) (14,223,900} (13,936,572) 287,328
(59,554,000) {59.554.,000) {59,554,000) -
(72,637,900} (72.837,900) {70,447.228) 2,190,672
{18,929 100) (19,379, 100) {7.436,001) & 11,943 099

64,078,004

99
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Note 71
PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY
RECREATION ACCOUNT- GENERAL FUND
Summary of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basls) and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Qriginal Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues.
Froperty Taxes $ 51,896,000 § 51896000 § 55164393 § 3,268,383
Intergovernmental -

Federal 146,699 146,699 -
State (] 343,922 343,922 -
Charges for Services 6,268,900 €,268,900 6,221,020 (47,880)
Rentals and Concessions 630,700 630,700 714,726 84,026
Intarest 1,404,000 1,404,000 1,109,012 (294,988)
Miscellanaous 92,600 92,600 73,466 (19,134)

Total Revenues 60,292,200 60,782,821 63,773,238 2,990,417
Expandituras/Encumbrances:
Director's Office 1,401,300 1,241,300 1,023,644 217,656
Daputy Director 260,000 260,000 255 726 4274
Support Services 6,274,000 7,198,400 6,357,002 841,398
Information Technelogy Communications 2,698,300 3,673,300 3,809,953 (136,653}
Total Director's Qffice 10,633,600 12,373,000 11,446,325 926,675
Facility Operations:
Sports/Athletic/Outreach Program 5,083,000 4,998,000 4,942 939 55,061
Natural and Historical Resources 4,385,600 4,284,600 4,462 3408 {177,748)
Artg and Cultural Heritage 3,655,100 3,655,100 3,467,188 187,912
Granis - 490,621 491 168 (547}
Total Facility Operations 13,123,700 13,428,321 13,363,643 64,678
Area Oparations:
Deputy Director 534,900 534,900 494,342 40,558
Northern Area 7,990,200 7,862,800 8,430,252 (567,452)
Central Area 7,007,200 6,907,200 6,891,944 16,256
Southern Area 7,950,500 7,450,500 7,291,304 159,196
Child Care and Special Projects 5,434,500 5,461,900 5,453.625 8,275
Total Area Operations 28,917,300 28,217,300 28,561,467 (344,167)
Non-Departmental 4,692,700 4,838,300 4,503,690 335,610
Total Operating Expenditures/Encumbrances 57,367,300 58,857,921 57,875,125 982,796
Excess of Revenues aver (under)
Expanditures/Encumbrances 2,924,800 1,924,900 5,898,113 3,973,213
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers (n (Out) -
Enterprise (8,980,900) (8.,980,900) (8,980,900) -
Total Cther Financing Sources (Uses) (8,980,900) (8,980,900) (8,980,900) -
Excess of Ravenues and Othar Finanging Sources
ovar Expenditures and Other Financing Uses §  (6,056,000) % (7,056,000 (3,082,787 § 3973213
Fund Balance - Budget Basis, Begninning 33,487,704

Fund Balance - Budget Basis, Ending $ 80404917
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Required Supplementary Information for Defined Benefit Pension Plan

(Unaudited)

Schedule of Funding Progress for Defined Benefit Pension Plan (the System) - The actuarial
accrued liability at the valuation date shown on the Schedule of Funding Progress is a measure of the
present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases and step-rate
benefits, estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service to date. The measure is
intended to help users assess the funding status of the System on a going-concern basis, assess
progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make comparisons
among employers.

Funding activity for the last three years is summarized as follows:

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS (000'S)

July 1, 2006 July 1, 2007 July 1, 2008

Actuarial Valuation of Plan Assets $ 552,432 $ 600,285 $ 633,700
Actuarial Accrued Liability 544,748 615,589 662,225
Funded Ratio 101.4% 97.5% 95.7%
Actuarial Value of Assets in Excess of (less than) Actuarial

Accrued Liability 7,684 (15,304) (28,525)
Annual Covered Payroll 109,579 122,825 132,241
Actuarial Value of Assets in Excess of (less than) Actuarial

Accrued Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 7.0% -12.5% -21.6%

Analysis of the dollar amounts of plan net assets, actuarial accrued liability and unfunded actuarial
accrued liability in isolation can be misleading. Expressing plan net assets as a percentage of the
actuarial accrued liability provides one indication of the system’s funding status on a going-concern basis.
Analysis of this percentage over time indicates whether the system is becoming financially stronger or
weaker. Generally, the greater this percentage, the stronger the system. Trends in the unfunded
actuarial accrued liability (or excess of) and annual covered payroll are both affected by inflation.
Expressing the unfunded actuarial accrued liability as a percentage of annual covered payroll
approximately adjusts for the effects of inflation and aids analysis of the system’s progress made in
accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Generally, the smaller the unfunded
percentage, the stronger the system.

Publicly available Financial Statements for the Employees’ Retirement System can be obtained at 6611
Kenilworth Avenue, Suite 100, Riverdale, Maryland 20737.
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Required Supplementary Information for Other Postemployment Benefits

(Unaudited)

Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Postemployment Benefits Plan (the Plan) - The actuarial
accrued liability at the valuation date shown on the Schedule of Funding Progress is a measure of the
present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases and step-rate
benefits, estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service to date. The measure is
intended to help users assess the funding status of the System on a going-concern basis, assess
progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make comparisons
among employers.

The Commission adopted the accounting requirements of GASB Statement No. 45 prospectively in fiscal
year 2008, and began a formal program of funding these benefits in that fiscal year. Therefore the full
three years of information required is not available, and the impact of that funding is not reflected in the
actuarial information presented below. However, information from two actuarial valuations is available,
summarized as follows:

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS (000'S)

July 1, 2006 July 1, 2007 July 1, 2008

Actuarial Valuation of Plan Assets $ 132 % 144 % 2,817
Actuarial Accrued Liability 208,005 232,535 257,492
Funded Ratio 0.06% 0.06% 1.09%
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability 207,873 232,391 254,675
Annual Covered Payroll 109,579 122,825 131,074
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability as a Percentage of Covered

Payroll 189.7% 189.2% 194.3%

Analysis of the dollar amounts of plan net assets, actuarial accrued liability and unfunded actuarial
accrued liability in isolation can be misleading. Expressing plan net assets as a percentage of the
actuarial accrued liability provides one indication of the system’s funding status on a going-concern basis.
Analysis of this percentage over time indicates whether the system is becoming financially stronger or
weaker. Generally, the greater this percentage, the stronger the system. Trends in the unfunded
actuarial accrued liability (or excess of) and annual covered payroll are both affected by inflation.
Expressing the unfunded actuarial accrued liability as a percentage of annual covered payroll
approximately adjusts for the effects of inflation and aids analysis of the system’s progress made in
accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Generally, the smaller the unfunded
percentage, the stronger the system.
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s PARTIIB
FINANCIAL SECTION

Combining Statements and Schedules

The Brainard Warner House, built in 1894, is the former home of the founder of the origind
town of Kensington.

SeeciaL ReveNuE FunDs

The Specia Revenue Funds account for certain revenues which are dedicated by the
Commission to certain purposes other than debt service, and are used in general
operations comprised of park operation and maintenance, recreation (Prince George's
County only), and planning administration.

DesTt Service FunDs

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources and the
payment of general obligation bond principal, interest, and related costs. The
Commission maintains Park Debt Service and Advance Land Acquisition Debt Service
Funds for each County.
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THE MARYLAND-NATICKAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

Schedule 1
Combining Balance Sheat
Nonmajor Govemmantal Funds
Juna 30, 2009
MONTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCE GEORGES COUNTY
Advance Afvance
Special Rewenue Funds Land Specizgl Revenue Funds Land Totak
Tolak Park Acquisition Torak Park Acquesibon MNonmajar
Epecial Debt el Parks and Special Debt Dbt Governmental
Planning Parks Revenus Senice SEMNICE Tuotal Planning Recrealion Aeveriue Service Senace Total Funds
ASSETS
Equity in Ppoled Cash and Invesiments  § 1474692 % 481,114 % 1955810 % 9B,604 - ¥ 2052414 § 138861 5 4,750,532 § 330,334 § 15,658 3 - % 4347033 § 5,399,507
Taxes Recefvable - - - - 78,318 76,318 - - - - 28.261 2826 105,579
Acoounts Recesable . 13,728 13728 - - 13,728 - - - - = 13,728
Due ram County Govemement 303,066 - 203,065 - - 303,050 - 171,855 171,855 - 171,855 47435
Tolal Assels 3 1,777.752 454 846 § 2272538 % 96,6504 76318 § 2445520 § 130861 % 4362388 % 4502249 % 16,53¢ § 2028t § £548209 § 65,933,729
LIABILITIES
Accpunts Payabie L 7,088 2.275 § 9363 § 55,624 - § 64337 % - § 378,052 % 78052 § 16693 § 3 334,751 § 459,738
Accrued Liabikties =7 393 a0b 45,980 4 41,486 - 35,682 55,682 - 95,682 137 564
Due to County Gavernment 35 - 35 - - "] - - - - - 35
Depasits and Deferred Revenue 35645 43,622 79,267 : 47,200 126467 24,000 24,000 & 15,003 39,0090 185,457
Tetal Liabilites 43,275 46,285 3351 95,604 47,200 233375 497,734 497,734 6688 15,003 529,433 762 804
FUND BAL AMNCES
Aeserced-tar Encumbrances 417,385 8,651 426 035 2 426036 = 421 467 421 467 - 421,467 B47.503
Rasarvad far Dol Sarvce - 28,118 29,118 = 14,261 14,261 43,379
Unreserved, Undessgnaled 1317080 439,804 1,756,991 % 1,756,991 739,861 3.443, 187 3,583,048 = 3.583.048 5.340,038
Tolal Furdd Balances 1,734, 477 448,550 2,183,027 28,118 2,212,145 133,861 3.864,654 4,004,515 14,261 4,018,776 6,230,921
Talal LabiRties and Fund Balances 3 1777752 § 494,846 § 2272508 § 96,604 76,31B 3§ 24845520 $ 139B6% § 4362388 % 4,502,249 § 16,693 § 28,261 § 4,548,208 3 F,.893,728




901

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

Schedule 2
[~ ARy of R , Expench , and Changes in Fund Balances
Honmajor Govermmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
MONTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCE GEQAGES COUNTY
Advance Advapce
Spetial Revenue Funds Land Special Revenue Funds Land Tekal
Tl Fark, Beguisiion Parks Tod Park Acquisition Nonmajor
Special Dbt o] ard Special Debl Ceim Governinental
Planning Pasks Revenue Service Service Total Planning Regreation Revenie Senvice Seivice Tdal Furits
REVEHUES:
Property Taxes s -5 -5 -3 - 1,700,802 $ 1700802 § -5 -5 - % - § 1208337 § 1,208.337 § 2,809,538
Intergovernmental - County 275,780 28583 541715 - - 541,715 173.702 173.702 - - 173.702 715417
Intergovesrenendal - Cther 27,280 5657 1T - 33,977 - - - - - 33877
Chiarges for Services 1,659,667 20,796 1,650,453 - 1680463 977,903 977,900 - . 977,803 2,668,366
Recreation Activities - 3618 34518 - 34618 - 4821533 4,821,693 - - 4821,692 4856311
Inkerest 51,788 13315 65,103 - 65,103 3229 172,604 175,813 - - 175,833 240,93
Contriputions 87,738 12657 100,335 - 00,395 - 372,764 372,768 - - 72768 473,183
Miscellaneous 150,315 56,004 206459 - - 206,409 - 53,352 53,352 - 53,352 259,761
Tolal Revenues 2262568 410,512 2 572680 1,703,802 4,373 482 3,220 5,572,022 6,575,251 1.208,337 V783,588 12 157,670
EXPENDITURES:
Prncipal Aetrements - - 2,580,000 535.000 3,115.000 - - 234,049 300,000 10,534.049 13,648,049
Inberesi - - 1208283 140,607 1,342,850 B - - 3678314 37.481 3715795 5065635
Othar Ded Sesvice Costs - - - 151,428 1,749 152877 - - - 24,2090 1,749 25,954 178835
Coniribusions = 4 - . 1001558 4,001,558 - - 959,223 859,223 1,860,781
Planning and Zoning 3,683,007 - 3,683,007 - 3,683,007 - - - - ¢ 3,683,007
Park Operalions and Mamntenance - 293, 465 293 485 - 293,465 - 334,485 334,485 - 334,485 B27.550
Recreation - - - - - - - £,770,679 €,770,679 - - 6770678 BFF05TS
Total Expenditores F633,007 263,455 3,986.473 3,540,411 1.678,914 5.505.797 - 7105164 7,105,184 1353%,572  _ 1.198453 22,240,188 31,845,885
Excess (deliancy] of revenoes ower [1.430,459) 186,647 {1,313.792) [3,840,411] 21,888 (5,232,315) 3,229 [533,149) 529,933 113,936,572} 9,984 14,456,601 13,688 916)
Sxpenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Retunding Bonds issued - 3,405.000 & 4,505,000 ~ - - - 8,405,000
Premwms on Bonds kssued = 343405 - 343,405 - - - = = 33405
Principal Retremenl of Fefunded Bonds 2 - [B.650 BS8) - {8,650.858) : - - - = (8,E50.856)
Tramsfors In 1,773,000 1,773,000 3.842,862 - 5615852 50,000 - 50,000 13,996,572 13,988,572 19,602,434
Transfers Out - - - - : - 11,628 809} 1,628,809 - {1.628 Bog) {1,628,800)
Total Othwer Fnancing Sources {Usesy 1,773,000 1,773,000 3540411 - 5713411 50,000 {1,628 8098 {1.57B.B09) 13935572 12,357,763 45,071,174
Met change in hund balances. Mz 561 115,647 453208 - 21,888 481,096 53,229 [2,165,951) [2.108,722] 9,884 {2198 B29) 11.617,742)
Fund Balances - beginning 1,381,918 331,903 1,723.819 - 7.230 3,731,049 85,53 5,025,605 £,F13,237 - 4,377 5,117,614 7,848 663
Fund Batances - ending 3 1734477 % 443,550 § 2, 1B3007 § -5 23,178 § 2212445 3 139,661 & 1864654 § 4004513 § -3 14,261 § 4018776 § 6.230,92%
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

Revenues:
Intergovemmenta!
Charges for Sarvices
Recrealion Activities
Interest
Contributions
Miscellanacus

Total Revenues

Expenditures/Encumbrances:
Current -
County Planning and Zoning
Park Operations and Maintenance
Recrealion
Total Expenditures/Encumbrances

Excess {Deficiency} of Revenues over
Expendilures/Encumbrances

Other Financing Sources {Uses}:
Operating Transters In
Transiers Oul

Total Other Financing (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing

Sources over Expenditiures/Encumbrances and
{ther Financing Sources {Uses) - Budge! Basis

Fund Balances - Budget Basis, July 1

Schedule 3
Combining Schedule of Revenuas, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and Changes in Fund Balahce
Bedget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual - Spacial Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
Montgomery Counly Prince George's County
Variance Vanance
Budgeted Amounis Paositive Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actuat {Negative) Original Final Actual {Negative]
$ 5800 § 345800 % 575,692 % 229,882 3 376,000 $ 376,000 & 173702 § (262,298}
2,053,900 2,053,900 1,650,463 {363,437) 855,300 955,300 B77.503 22,603
13,060 13,000 34,618 21,618 5,724,600 5.724 6800 4,821,693 {902,907}
500 200 £5,103 64,803 287,000 287 000 175,833 {11,187
£5.000 65,000 100,385 35,385 572,700 572,700 372768 (189,932}
181,800 181,804 206,409 24,609 73,500 73,500 53,352 {20,148)
2,560 000 2,660,000 2,672,680 12,68C 7,989,130 7,889,100 6,575,251 {1,413,849)
4,340,300 4,340,300 3,754,309 585,991 - - - -
278,700 78700 216,984 61,716 849,500 349,500 378,824 470,676
z |2 = i 6,827,300 6,827,300 5,744,763 82,547
4,619,000 4,619,000 3,971,293 647,707 7,676,800 7,676,800 7,123,577 553,223
{1,859,000) (1,956,000) {1,298,613] 660,387 312,320 312,300 {548,326) [B60,626)
1,773,000 1,773,000 1.773.000 = 50,000 50200 50,000 -
- - & - (1,743,400} {1,743,400) {1,628,808) 114,501
1,773.000 1,773,000 1,773,000 - (1,683,400} {1,683.400) 1,578,305} 114,591
$ (1850000 $ {186,000] 474387 § 660,397 3 (13811007 $  (1.3891,100) {2,127,135}) % {745,035}
1,282,603

Fund Balances - Budgst Basis, June 20

$ 1,756,890

The lunds budgets are approved Dy the respective County Council only for the total ol both funds

5,710,183

§ 3,583,048



‘t‘..

Tucker Road Ice Rink in Fort Washington isavery “cool” facility for all ages.

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for recreational and cultural facilities that are operated
in amanner similar to private business enterprises, where the Commission’ sintent is that the
costs of providing goods or services to the general public will be recovered primarily

through user charges.
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THE MARYLAND-NATIQNAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments
Aceounts Recaivable
Due from County Government
Due from Other Government
Invemaries
Total Current Assels

Noncurrent Assets:
Dua from County Govarnment
Capital Assets:
Land
Buildings and Improvemenis
Machinary and Equipment
Canstruction in Progress

Less - Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets (net of depreciation)
Total Noncurrent Assels
Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabiities:
Accounts Payabile
Accrued Salaries and Benefits
Compensated Absences
Interest Payabla
Revenue Collectad In Advance
Current Portion of Ravenue Bonds Payable
Current Portion of Revenua Notes Payable
Current Portion of Notes Payable
Tatal Current Liabiities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Revenue Bonds Payable
Ravanus Notas Payablp
Camperisated Alsences
Net Other Post Employment Barafit Obligations
Total Nongurrent Liabiities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Investad in Capital Assets, Net of Retated Debt

Lnragtricted
Total Net Assats

Schedule 4
Schedule of Net Assets
Enterprise Funds
Juna 30, 2009 and 2008
Recrentional and Culiural Facites
Maontgomery Coury - e a8 GROrga's County T ———
June 30, June 30, Juna 30, June 39, June 30, June 30,
2000 2008 2008 2008 2009 2008
3 1,497,629 § 1581618 & 2838466 § 2933116 % 4,336,095 § 4,514,734
6,928 8,928 . 84 550 6,528 91,478
180,000 180,000 - - 180,000 180,000
- 102,806 8,231 - 9.231 102,506
152,487 186,240 B27,778 28,210 980,265 1,014 450
1,837,044 2,057 892 3,875,475 3,845,876 5412519 5803 568
360,000 540,000 360,000 540,000
11,584,468 11,584,468 T.778,131 777913 19,363,599 19,363,599
26,999,048 26,994,492 72,270,589 72,270,589 99,270,437 99,265,081
1,680,427 1,625,438 5,047,976 4,783,290 6,728,403 6,408,728
387,888 172,164 - = 397,888 172,164
40,662,631 40,376 562 85,097 696 B4 833,010 125,760,327 125,209 572
(15,056,458) (13,692 522) {28 A76,284) (26.630,930) (43,932 742) 140,323 453)
25 606,173 26,684,040 56|221Jﬂ?_ 58,202 080 B1,827 SBS B4,BB6. 120
25,066,173 27,224,040 56,221 412 58,202,080 . B2 187,585 86,426,120
27,803,217 29,281,732 59,896,887 62,047,956 87,700,104 91,329,688
102,018 338,271 478,203 604,509 580,221 940,860
65,017 47,966 =14,508 175,780 279,525 223,746
97,315 83,717 224,343 188,908 321,658 272,825
31,370 38,915 = H 31,370 38915
812,787 905,214 333,293 115,189 1,146,080 1,020,413
685117 662,779 . - 685,117 662,779
444,444 444,444 - 444 444 444 444
2,238,068 2 519,308 1,250,347 1,084,476 3,488,415 3,603,782
1,741,512 2,394,566 - 1,741,512 2,394,566
1,555,660 2,000,004 & . 1,665,560 2.000,004
179,087 174,150 574,001 585,246 753,088 7393098
184,535 92,37 720432 351,589 804,967 443 906
3,660,694 4 661,087 1,294,433 916,835 4,986,127 5,577,872
5,898,762 7,180,343 2,544 780 2,001,311 8,443,542 9,181,654
21,178,540 21,182,247 56,221,412 58,202,080 77,400,982 79,384,327
724,915 918,142 1,130,685 1,844,565 1,856,610 2,763,707
$ 21,804,455 § 22,101,369 § 57,352,107 & 60,046,645 % 78,266,662 % 82,148,034
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

Schedule 5
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Enterprise Funds
For the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008
Recraational and Cultural Facilities
Montgomery County Prince Gieorge's County Totals
Year Ended June 30, Year Ended June 30, Year Ended June 30,
2009 2008 2009 2008 2008 2008
Operating Revenues:
Intergovernmental ) A2.249 § 102906 $ a6838 % 43730 % 91,837 § 151,638
Sales 651,471 631,448 2,400,550 2,553,637 3,081,030 3,185,085
Charges for Services 5,456,653 4,786,150 4,576,459 4,545,836 10,033,112 9,431,986
Rentals and Concesslons 2,327,886 2,326,898 2 756 534 2,883,022 5,083 463 8,308,820
Total Operating Revenues 8,518,308 7,847 402 8,761,240 140,23¢% 228 18,260,548 18,078,827
Operating Expanses:
Cast ol Goods Sold 356,967 323,603 1615475 1,737,089 1,972 442 2,060,692
Personal Services 3,081,710 2,854,190 11,220,650 10,692,610 14,312,369 13,546,800
Supplies and Materials 503,661 503,608 1,615,713 1,636,301 2,119,274 2,130,909
Communications 36,124 43,276 345,564 345,435 381,708 388,711
Utilitias 1,204,525 1171,194 1,981,766 1,780917 3,186,201 295211
Maintananca 498,606 517,290 860,290 1,050,898 1,358,896 1,677,188
Contractual Servicas 567,040 660,007 806,466 707,085 1,164,415 1,368,082
Other Services and Charges 232,402 362,783 658 1% 649,789 890,921 1,002 572
Administrative Services 1,291,780 1,320,493 341,700 321,900 1,633,430 1,642 393
Depreciation 1,363,936 1,365,737 2,268,984 2 265,808 3,632,920 3,628,548
Total Operating Expenses 9,137,570 9,130,271 21,815,156 21,197,733 30,652,726 30,308,004
Operating Income (Loss) (619,262) (1,262,869) {11,763,916) (10,866,508) (12.383,178) (12,229,377)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Investmani Earnings 49,735 121,154 88,478 193,701 138,213 254 Bh5
Interest Expense, hel of Amontization (246,407) (291,511) ? # (246 407) (261,811)
Loss on Disposal of Asset - {27 ,208) . - - {27,208)
Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) (196,672) (217,565) 868,478 193,701 (108,194) (23,864)
Loss bafore Transfars (815,834) (1,480,434) (11,675,438) (10,772.807) (12,491,373) (12,253,241)
Transfers In 619,000 618,000 8,980,900 8,445,100 9,699,900 9,064,100
Total Conlributions and Translers 615,000 619,000 8,980,900 8,445,100 8 5599 900 9 064,100
Change in Net Assets (196,934) (861,434) (2,694, 538) (2,327 707) (2,691,472} (3,188,141)
Total Net Assats « Baginning 22,101,389 22,962,623 60,046,645 62,374,352 82,148,034 85,337,175

&

Total Nat Assats - Ending 210044585 § 22101389 & B7,352107 & 60046645 & 70256562 B 92,148,034
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

Schedule of Cash Flows - Enterprise Funds
For the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers and Users $
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees
Payments for Interfund Services Used
Payments for Administrative Charges
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfers In from Other Funds

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets
Principal Paid on Bonds and Notes Payable
Interest Paid
Payment Received on Long Term Note
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest on Investments

Recreational and Cultural Facilities

Schedule 6

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, July 1

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, June 30 $

Reconciliation of Operating Income/(Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) $
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Effect of Changes in Assets and Liabilities in:
Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Government
Inventories, at Cost
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefits
Compensated Absences
Interest Payable
Net Other Post Employment Obligations
Revenue Collected in Advance

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities ~ $

Montgomery County Prince George's County

Year Ended June 30, Year Ended June 30, Year Ended June 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
8,528,788 $ 8,009,815 $ 10,044,653 $ 10,185,976 $ 18,573,441 $ 18,195,791
(3,165,480) (2,889,872) (7,809,767) (7,840,812) (10,975,247) (10,730,684)
(2,963,906) (2,920,126) (10,768,898) (10,357,519) (13,732,804) (13,277,645)

(432,700) (489,800) - - (432,700) (489,800)
(1,291,790) (1,320,493) (341,700) (321,900) (1,633,490) (1,642,393)

674,912 389,524 (8,875,712) (8,334,255) (8,200,800) (7,944,731)

619,000 619,000 8,980,900 8,445,100 9,599,900 9,064,100

(286,069) (341,601) (288,316) (162,985) (574,385) (504,586)
(1,107,223) (1,112,836) - - (1,107,223) (1,112,836)
(214,344) (259,448) - - (214,344) (259,448)

180,000 180,000 - - 180,000 180,000
(1,427,636) (1,533,885) (288,316) (162,985) (1,715,952) (1,696,870)

49,735 101,154 88,478 193,701 138,213 294,855
(83,989) (424,207) (94,650) 141,561 (178,639) (282,646)

1,581,618 2,005,825 2,933,116 2,791,555 4,514,734 4,797,380
1,497,629 $ 1,581,618 $ 2,838,466 $ 2,933,116 $ 4,336,095 $ 4,514,734

(619,262) $  (1,262,869) $  (11,763,916) $ (10,966,508) (12,383,178) $  (12,229,377)
1,363,936 1,363,737 2,268,984 2,265,809 3,632,920 3,629,546

- 43 84,550 (47,206) 84,550 (47,163)

102,906 (87,949) (9,231) 146,596 93,675 58,647

33,753 1,270 432 (170,643) 34,185 (169,373)
(234,253) 207,927 (126,386) 247,245 (360,639) 455,172
17,051 (119,503) 38,728 (98,101) 55,779 (217,604)
18,535 (48,179) 44,190 81,603 62,725 33,424
(7,545) (7,589) - - (7,545) (7,589)
92,218 92,317 368,843 351,589 461,061 443,906

(92,427) 250,319 218,094 (144,639) 125,667 105,680
1,294,174 1,652,393 2,888,204 2,632,253 4,182,378 4,284,646

674,912 $ 389,524 $ (8,875,712) $ _ (8,334,255) $ (8,200,800) $ (7,944,731)
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The Matthew Henson Trail kiosk provides information and a bit of a history lesson to the users of the new 4.2
mile, 8-foot-wide hard surface trail.

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the consolidated financing of certain goods or services
provided to other Commission funds on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Capital Equipment Funds

The Montgomery County Capital Equipment Fund is used to account for the acquisition of equipment
through the use of tax exempt financing and the leasing of the equipment to other Commission funds.

Executive Building Fund

The Executive Building Fund is used to account for the cost of operating the Executive Office
Building in Prince George's County and was used to account for the renovation costs of that building
which was acquired in February of 1992.

Employee Benefits Funds

The Employee Benefits Funds are used to account for the costs related to employees' life and health
insurance coverage, and the flexible spending program.

Risk Management Fund

The Risk Management Funds are used to account for the activity related to genera liability, property
damage, and workers compensation.

Commission Wide Initiatives Fund

The Commission Wide Initiatives Fund is used to account for the acquisition of equipment through the
use of tax exempt financing for certain projects which benefit the entire Commission.
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ASSETS

Currant Assets:
Eruity i Pooted Cash and irvesiments
Restricled Cash, Casn Equivalents and nvesiments:
Equipment Fnancirg
Praceeds
Accounts Recenvable
Cwe from Ceunty Govemmem
Prepaid Expensas
Deposils and kher
Todal Cument Assels

Boncurmen Assess:
Capital Assels:
Land
Builgings and Imgavaments
Machinery and Equipment
Censtruclion m Progiess
Less-Accumulated Depreciation

Tatzk Capital Assels (net of accwmidaied depreciabon)

Todal Assels
LIABILITIES

Current Liab#ties:
Accoimls Payatde
Current Portion of Claims Payable
Arcrued Salanes and Benefiis
Cumrent Porlion of Motes Payabie
Cument Portion of Compensaled Absences
D¢ i County Government
Interest Payable
Revenue Cokected in Advance
Tue to Other Funds

Tedal Cyrrent Liabidies

Mohicurrent Liabilites:
Claams Payable - Mel of Curreni Portion
Bioles Payable - Net of Currenl Postion
Compensated Absences - Met of Current Padion
et Other Posi Emplayment Benefit Cbigalions
Tolal Nonzumenl Liabilities
Total Liakilites

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Felated Debl

Unrestricted {ses Bole 6]
Tolal Mell Assets

$

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

Schedule 7
Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Net Assets
June 3G, 2009
MONTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCE GEDRGE'S COUNTY TOTALS
Commissipn
Capital Employee Risk Capflal Exetutve Emgioyes Risk Wide June 30, June 30,
Equapment Benefits Management Equipmeni Building ‘Banetils Managenen] Inifaives 2009 20063
4970560 § BB87735 % 2616355 % 5439407 § 1382734 § 8,897,736 13305500 % 3231887 % S5 242014 § 56,062 657
. : 4 F 5 . 3,574,181
18,773 1,500 - 18,772 1,250 - 40,285 18,670
: = 205,628 - - - 205,628 = 411,256 117,966
195,399 - 271574 - - - 24,681 455,664 -
- 59,352 - - - 58,352 . - 116,704 116,704
4,170,055 8,974,060 9,823,463 5,740,581 1382734 6,974,860 14,012,378 3,256,568 56,305,923 53 837178
- - - 743,497 - - - 748,497 748,497
= = o = 2,643,865 - - = 2,648 865 2,649,865
25,609,910 & 178,924 715,208 13,671 - 336,149 608,400 27752284 25,445,860
3,759,763 - 2 - - - 277746 2,037,509 1,056,761
(18,862,184} {454,003) (276,790} 11,584,423} $319,677) {346,067) (21,603,234] {20,494,572)

B,507,500 s 24835 438416 1,767 600 - 16,472 740,083 11,584,02¢F 2,107,411
12,757 563 8,074 B&0 9,548 313 6,149,397 3,150,334 8,974,860 14,028,850 3,996,857 &7 830 B44 ©8,344, 539
20 877 25974 49,908 203543 16,028 25,974 15,365 19037 477977 327,753
- 999,348 1,126,315 - 5 999,347 1,428,522 % 4,553,532 4,720,202
- = 5,841 - 2,281 - 70N - 16,183 140,213
1,170 B62 . - 148,278 190,000 - 104,423 1,613,563 1.594.783
- 22,358 - 11,164 22358 - 55,860 -
- - 161,453 - - i6F 352 - 322.905 433.010
787D - - 2,366 18,912 r B4g 40,097 56,106
- - - - - - 104,000
- - - - - - - - 18,855
1,308,308 1,025,322 1,356,875 355,287 233,456 1,625,321 5,634,768 124,309 7,080,147 7.354,865
- - 3,378,943 - - 4,240,368 - 7.619,301 7.)BD 851
914,303 5 = 123,788 525000 - - 7,327 1,570,916 2.184,480
- . 13,891 - %329 - 134892 - 33,822 =
- 53,153 - 12,385 53,153 - 118,692 48459
214,800 - 3,445,547 123,788 542,725 = 4,307 403 7,337 9,342 031 10,413,330
2,225,612 1,025,322 4,812,582 479,073 781,181 1,025,321 5842171 131,636 16,422.178 17,768,635
5,511,844 - 24 B35 164,352 1,052,600 . 16472 528,339 B.400,442 ¥.898,339
3,031,112 7,949,538 5010,621 5,503,972 1,315,553 7,848,539 8,070,207 3,236,682 43.068,224 43,277,435
10,542,856 % 749538 § 5035456 § 5,670,324 § 2,368,153 § 7,949,533 8,086,579 §$ 3865021 % 51468666 S 51,175,834
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

Scheduie 9
Combining Statement of Cash Flows - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
MONTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY
Commission
Capital Employee Risk Capital Executive Employee Risk Wide
Equipment Benefits Management Equipment/ Building Benelits Management Initiatives TOTAL
Cash Fiows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers and Users $ 3477921 § 10559041 § 3494644 $ 128,426 $ 962,000 $ 10,560,693 $ 3,587,997 $ 1,669,821 $ 34,440,543
Payments to Suppliers (125,765} (11,170,446) (2,256,146) (236,782) (335,580) (11,109,370) {3,395,425) (553,933) (29,183,447)
Payments to Employees - (3.397,608) {503,100) - (232,293) - {503,233) - (4,636,234)
Payments for Interfund Services Used {36,700} {51,000) {199,000} (3,600) {1,300} (51,000) (145,200} - {487,800}
Net Cash Provided (Used} by Operating Activities 3,315,456 (4,060,013) 536,398 (111,956) 392,827 {599,677) {455,861) 1,115,888 133,062
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: ;
Transters In From Other Funds 2,744,234 (3,5634,113) 431,950 5,156,174 567,395 (7,003,904) 1,638,264 - -
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition of Capital Assets (3,996,675) - . (16,608) (8,157) . - (352,789) (4,374,229)
Principal Paid on Notes Payable (1,123,914) - - {143,442) {180,000) - - (101,356} (1,548,712)
Interest Paid on Notes Payabie (85,920) - - (11,266) (40,202) - . (4,537) {141,925)
Net Cash Used by Capital and
Related Financing Activities (5,206,509) - - {171,316) (228,359) . - (458,682) (6,064,866)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest on Investments 16,734 371,626 269,603 88,423 22,666 377,300 370,438 70,190 1,586,980
Net Increase (Decrease} in Cash and Cash Equivalents 869,915 (7,222,500) 1,237,951 4,961,325 754,529 (7,226,281) 1,552,841 727,396 {4,344,824)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 3,100,745 16,120,235 8,378,404 478,082 628,205 16,124,017 12,252,659 2,504,491 59,586,838
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ 3970660 $ 8897735 $§ 9616355 $ 5439407 ¢ 1382734 $ 8897736 $ 13805500 $ 3,231,887 $ 55242014
Operating Income {Loss) $ 2017625 $§ (3864492 $ 254,560 $  (125,579) 270,133 $ {447,828) $ (301,958} § 1045256 $  (1,152,283)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 1,589,519 - 11,000 81,748 106,954 - 20,461 77,034 1,896,716
Effect of Changes in Assets and Liabilities in:
Accounts Receivable - (12,313) - - {12,312) - - (24,625)
Due from County Government - - (148,645) - - - {146,645) - {293,290)
Prepaid Expenses (199,399} - - (271,574) - - - (24,681) (495,654)
Accounts Payable (74,125} (34,812) 22,810 204,643 8,647 11,670 (7.646) 19,037 150,224
Claims Payable - (71,445) 414,641 - - {71,444) 28 - 271,780
Accrued Salaries and Benefits - (26,951) 2,331 - 1,266 (29,763) 2,197 - (50,920}
Compensated Absences - - 7,968 - (34) - 7,968 - 15,903
interest Payable {(9,296) - - (1,194) (4,761) - - {758} (16,009)
Other Accrued Liabilities - (50,000) - - - (50,000) - - (100,000)
Due to Other Funds (18,868) - - - - - - - (18,868)
Net Other Post Employment Obligations - 29,785 - 10,622 - 29,786 - 70,193
Due to County Government - - {60,052) - - - (60,053) - (120,105)
Total Adjustments 1,297,831 {195,521} 281,838 13,623 122,694 {151,849) (153,903) 70,632 1,285,345

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

$ 3,315,456 % (4,060,013) $ 536,308 $  {111,956) 302,827 $ (599,677) $  (455861) & 1,115.888 $ 133,062




Air Fair 100 at College Park Airport attracted thousands to the site where they were treated to high-flying trick planes
and numerous aviation displays and vendors.

Fipuciary FunDs

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the Commission in a trustee
capacity or as an agent for employees, individuals, private organizations, other
governmental units, and/or other funds.

Pension Trust Funds

The Pension Trust Funds are used to account for activities related to benefits for retired
employees. This includes all activities of the Employees’ Retirement System including
accumulation of resources for, and payment of, retirement annuities and/or other benefits
and the administrative costs of operating the system. This also includes all activities
related to the Commission’s portion of medical costs of retirees.

Private Purpose Trust Funds

The Private Purpose Trust Funds are used to account for funds whose principal and
interest must be expended in accordance with their designated purposes.

Agency Funds

The Agency Funds are used to account for funds where the Commission is merely acting
in an agent capacity for another organization.
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

Schedule 10
Combining Statoments of Net Assets
Flduciary Fund Types
June 30, 2009
PRIVATE PURPOSE
PENSION TRUST FUNDS TRUST FRINDS AGENCY FUNDS
Other Post
Empioyess’ Emgloyment Total Prince Totar Total
Rebrement Benals Pension Trus! #Hontgomery George's. Privata Purpase Suate Prnce Agency
Fund Fund Funds County County Trust Funds Retrement Manigomeny Geome's ___Fumos
ASSETS
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 3 - 5 502,103 % 602,103 § 20,174,156 3 T223373 5 27397529 3 2397842 216721 § 2320 § 26765984
Cash 27 857 17,530 45 487 - = = - - - -
Fed Income Securities 126,922,128 - 126,822,128 - - - - = m "
Intemational Ficed Income Securities 26,625,065 - 26,625,065 - - - - = = =
Corporate Stock 210216353 = 210,216,353 N & = - - - -
Intermational Corporale Stock, 57,811,003 - 57,811,003 - - - - - - -
Real Estale investments 22,147 479 - 22147478 - - - - - - -
Shoit Term Investments 16,282,819 5 15,282,518 - - . 3 - - -
Murtual Fundds - 7. 457,761 7,457,761 - - - - - - =
Collaleral for Securities Lending
Transaclions 21,963,391 - 21,963 3581 - - - - - - -
Acoounts Receivable 1401972 - 1.401,972 - 2,802 2602 - 364 112 - 364,112
Land Held for Cther Governmenls - - = 32,505,331 17,837 342 0,342 673 - - & =
Cther 14,783 - 14,783 - - - - : = -
Tolal Assets 483,413,050 B8.077.354 451,480,444 52675487 25,063,317 77742804 2,357,943 B40,833 2,320 3.041.006
LIASILITIES
Investments Payabke 9,037,432 - 9,037 432 - - - - - -
Accounts Payable 572,335 4872 577,207 - 4533 4633 2,397.843 - 1,700 2,399,643
Claims Payable - 597,231 587,21 - - - - - - -
OBligation for Collateral Received
under Securities Lending Transactions 22 537,264 - 22,537,284 - = - - - = =
Deposits - - - - - - - 540,833 620 641,453
Total Liabilitias 32,147 051 502,103 32,749 154 - 4633 4633 2,357,943 BAN B33 2,320 3,041,096
HET ASSETS
Assets Held in Trust for:
Land Held for Transfer - - - 32,505,331 17,837,342 50,342,873 - - - -
Pension Benefits 451 265 959 - 451,265,999 - - - - - - -
Other Poslemploymenl Benefils - TA75.291 7,475,291 - - - - - - -
Other Purposes - - x 20,174,156 7.221.342 27,355,498 - - - -

Tolal Net Assets § 451265999 5 T475791 5 458741290 s S2679487 s 25058684 5 77738171 § - 5 o - 5 =
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

Schedule 11
Combining Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Fiduciary Fund Types
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

PRMWATE PURPOSE

PENSION TRUST FUNDS TRUST FUNDS
Other
Fos!
Employees’ Empéayment Prince
Retirement Benefis Moatgoniery Gearge's
Fund Fund Totals County County Totals
ADDTHONS:
Contributions:
Employer $ 14933506 $ 11,608,636 § 26,542,142 § - § -3
Plan Members 4,892,570 . 4892570 - - -
Plan Membess for Current Benefits - 845,226 B45 204 - = =
Privale Jlonations & - - 7422 44,210 51,632
Tolal Conatributions 19,826,076 12,453,862 32,279,938 7422 44,210 51,632
Contnbutions trom Commission Debt Service Funds - - A 1,001,558 853,223 860,781
Federal Grants - Medicare - 333,10 333,+01 - - -
Investment Eamings:
Wnteres! 6,407,173 7. 600 6,414,363 573,391 V3,207 752,598
Dwvidends 51,2089 235,647 286,946 - - =
et incroase (decrease] in the Fair Value of Invesimenls [124,430,522) {963,616} {125,394,138) - b %
Total imvestment Eamings {117,972,050) (720,279 {118,692,323) 579,301 173,207 752588
Less Invesiment Advisory and Management Fees {1,577,850) {19,159 {1.597.108] = - *
Net Income {Loss) from Investing Acihities 4119,550,000] (739,438} {120,289.438) 579,301 173,207 752,598
Securiies Lending Activity
Securties Lending Income 355,078 - 355,078 E
Securities Lending Fees [249,346) - [249,946) -
Net Income from Securities Lending Activity 5,132 - 105,132 -
Total Net invesimenl Income (Loss} (119,444 868) 1739.438) (120,184,306) 579,391 173.207 752,598
Total Additions and Imvesiment lncome (Loss {39,618,7921 12,047,525 {B7,571,267] 1,588,271 1,076,640 2,665,011
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits 25670702 7.389,223 33,059,925 . - -
Redunds of Confributions 249,583 - 243,583 - - E
Adminisirative expenses 1,358,695 - 1.358.685 % 7 B
{Hhes - - # 1,547 80,780 62337
Total Deductions 27,278,980 7,389,223 34 568,203 1,547 60,730 82,337
Change in Met Assels {126,897 772 4,658,362 (122,239,470} 1,586,824 1,015,850 2,602.674
Nel Assels - Beginming 578,163 771 2.816,388 580,980,760 51,002 663 24,042,834 75.135 497

Ned Assels - Ending -1 451,265999 § 7475281 % 458,741,208 s 52,870,487 § 25050684 §% 77,738,171




6Ll

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

MARYLAND STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEM FUND

ASSETS
Equity m Pooked Cash and Investments §
Todal Current Assets §
LIABIUTIES
Accounts Payable §
Total Currenl Liabikties s
MONTGOMERY CCUNTY FUND
ASSETS
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments %
Accounts Receivable
Tatal Cuerent Assetfs k]
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable %
Deposits
Tatal Current Liabiliiies $

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY FUND

ASSETS

Equity n Pogled Cash and lovestments $
Tatal Curent Assets s
LIABILITIES
Apcounts Payable 5
Deposits
Total Cumrent Liabiliies %
TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS
Equity in Pooded Cash and frvestments 3
Accounts Receivable
Total Current Assels %
LIABIUTIES
Accounts Pavable ]
Deposits
Total Cwrent Liabilities 3

July 1,
2008

2500971
2500971

2,500,871
2,500,971

3.140,470

3,140,470

2,510,661
829,803

Additions

$ 210,757

s 210,717
——y

C S ;1 N
y
$ 1,110,236
614,112
$ 1,724,348

§ 705,478
B29,526

$__  tamood

s 2,320
s 2.320
3 1,700
2.320

$ 4.020
$ 1,323,273
614,112

H 1,937,385

$ 7,895
831,846
3 1,749,741

___Deduotions

313,745
313,745

313.745
313,745

1,473,014
250,000
1,723,014

715,168
818,502
1,533,670

1,700
1.700

1,786,759
250,000
236,759

1,028,313
820,202
1,849,115

Schedule 12

June 30,

2008

2,307,043
2,397,943

2,397,343
2,397,843

276,721
w4112
H40,833

B40,833
540,833

2,320
2,320

1,700
620
2,320

2,676,984
364,112
o OO

2,299,643
641,453
3,041,098



o Partlll &
SraTisTiIcAL SECTION

Children of all ages enjoy skateboarding at Olney Recreationa Park.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission’s (Commission)
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a context for understanding
what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the Commission’s overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 122

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the Commission’s financial performance and well-being have changed over
time.

Revenue Capacity 127
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
Commission’s most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity 131
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the Commission’s current levels of outstanding debt and the Commission’s
ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 136
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the Commission’s financial activities
take place.

Operating Information 139
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the Commission’s financial report relates to
the services the Commission provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Reports for the relevant year.
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

Taxpayer

Potomac Electric Power Company
Verizon - Maryland
Montgomery Mall LLC
Washington Gas Light Company
7501 Wisconsin Ave. LLC
Camalier,Anne D et al, Trustee
Federal Realty Investment Trust
Democracy Associates
Chevy Chase Land Co
Wheaton Plaza Regional Shopping Center
Lake Fores Associates
International Business Machines
May Department Stores
Bryant F.Foulger, Trustee
Albert & R. Abramson, et. al.
Asbury Methodist Home, Inc

Total

Total Assessable Base

Taxpayer

Gaylord National, LLC
Mirant Chalk Point LLC
Potomac Electric Power Company
Verizon Maryland
Washington Gas Light Company
Greenbelt Homes, Incorporated
JKC Stadium (FedEx Field)
Baltimore Gas and Electric Company
Empirian Village of Maryland, LLC
Silver Oaks Campus LLC
Samuel Zell TRS
Safeway Stores, Inc.
Summerfield Housing LTD Partnership
Giant Foods, Inc.
Bell Atlantic Maryland
GB Mall Limited Partnership

Total

Total Assessable Base

TABLE T-8
Principal Taxpayers
Current Fiscal Year and Nine Years Ago
MONTGOMERY COUNTY
2009 2000 (1)
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
Total Assessed Total Assessed
Assessment Rank Valuation Assessment Rank Valuation
$ 690,226,160 1 043 % $ 1,009,659,880 1 3.10
680,681,930 2 0.42 636,666,050 2 1.96
396,142,869 3 0.24 82,043,360 6 0.25
230,268,250 4 0.14 171,956,400 3 0.53
226,841,666 5 0.14 - - -
220,531,312 6 0.14 - - -
213,390,806 7 0.13 - - -
207,114,900 8 0.13 - - -
201,846,132 9 0.12 - - -
188,065,412 10 0.12 - - -
- - 50,115,600 9 0.15
- - - 85,389,180 4 0.26
- - - 83,324,130 5 0.26
- - - 57,116,210 7 0.17
- - - 50,844,300 8 0.16
- - - 45,774,450 10 0.14
$ 3,255,109,437 201 % $ 2,272,889,560 6.98
$ 162,053,662,492 100.00 % $  32,553,856,811 100.00
PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY
2009 2000 (1)
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
Total Assessed Total Assessed
Assessment Rank Valuation Assessment Rank Valuation
$ 670,855,100 1 076 % $ - - -
494,667,042 2 0.56 - - -
431,790,993 3 0.49 1,981,398,800 1 11.07
406,340,430 4 0.46 - - -
218,766,847 5 0.25 300,951,720 3 1.68
195,151,290 6 0.22 110,126,160 8 0.62
187,999,100 7 0.21 95,614,260 9 0.53
- - - 184,935,080 4 1.03
187,362,588 8 0.21 - - -
129,448,066 9 0.15 - -
125,229,198 10 0.14 - - -
- - - 121,934,260 5 0.68
- - - 115,480,400 6 0.65
- - - 113,332,040 7 0.63
- - - 748,002,160 2 4.18
- - - 70,053,680 10 0.39
$ 3,047,610,654 344 % $ 3,841,828,560 21.46
$  88,636,873,820 100.00 % $ 17,891,768,130 100.00

(1) Beginning in Fiscal Year 2002 all real property in the State of Maryland is assessed at
100 percent of actual value. Previously the valuation was assessed at 40% of actual value.

Source: Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments.
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

TABLE T-14
Pledged-Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Little Bennett Golf Course Revenue Bonds (1)
Less: Net
Gross Operating Available Debt Service
Year Revenues (2) Expenses (3) Revenue (4) Principal Interest Coverage
2000 $ 1,654,516 $ 1,531,064 $ 123,452 $ 245,000 $ 273,875 0.24
2001 1,697,517 1,728,532 (31,015) 255,000 259,647 (0.06)
2002 1,782,015 1,910,369 (128,354) 270,000 244,643 (0.25)
2003 1,433,356 1,636,476 (203,120) 285,000 228,796 (0.40)
2004 1,547,197 1,501,372 45,825 300,000 248,684 0.08
2005 1,407,434 1,571,068 (163,634) 314,634 122,975 (0.37)
2006 999,416 1,303,515 (304,099) 315,137 120,699 (0.70)
2007 213,804 3,194 210,610 325,757 109,811 0.48
2008 301,059 159,104 141,955 336,735 98,587 0.33
2009 300,000 70,385 229,615 348,083 86,983 0.53
Wheaton Ice Rink Revenue Bonds
Less: Net
Gross Operating Available Debt Service
Year Revenues (2) Expenses (3) Revenue (4) Principal Interest Coverage
2000 $ 585,225 $ 1,213,664 $ (628,439) $ 190,000 $ 216,241 (1.55)
2001 760,659 868,404 (107,745) 200,000 204,626 (0.27)
2002 949,130 986,319 (37,189) 215,000 192,335 (0.09)
2003 917,785 995,430 (77,645) 230,000 179,174 (0.19)
2004 962,056 1,036,132 (74,076) 315,662 158,692 (0.16)
2005 1,017,062 1,112,823 (95,761) 275,622 83,433 (0.27)
2006 1,248,187 1,375,948 (127,761) 284,910 72,748 (0.36)
2007 1,129,298 1,329,107 (199,809) 294,512 63,144 (0.56)
2008 981,681 1,262,416 (280,735) 304,437 53,165 (0.79)
2009 969,600 1,360,638 (391,038) 314,696 42,846 (1.09)
Cabin John Ice Rink Revenue Notes (5)
Less: Net
Gross Operating Available Debt Service
Year Revenues (2) Expenses (3) Revenue (4) Principal Interest Coverage
2000 $ 1,637,362 $ 1,579,133 $ 58,229 $ - $ 311,920 0.19
2001 2,426,109 2,170,016 256,093 444,444 300,045 0.34
2002 2,778,017 2,506,214 271,803 444,444 277,111 0.38
2003 2,968,982 2,529,806 439,176 444,444 254,177 0.63
2004 3,071,550 2,495,269 576,281 444,444 231,245 0.85
2005 3,066,518 2,608,814 457,704 444,444 208,311 0.70
2006 3,384,115 3,066,518 317,597 444,444 185,378 0.50
2007 3,006,568 2,604,061 402,507 444,444 162,444 0.66
2008 2,505,663 2,204,101 301,562 444,444 139,512 0.52
2009 2,724,698 2,399,913 324,785 444,444 116,578 0.58
Notes: (1) The Commission's Montgomery County golf courses lease to the Montgomery County Revenue Authority

on a short-term basis on April 15, 2006 was converted to a long-term lease in October 2006.
(2) Gross revenues include nonoperating interest income.
(3) Operating expenses do not include interest, depreciation, or amortization expenses.
(4) These are the revenues that are actually pledged to cover this debt. In practice, the Commission
uses the available resources of the entire Montgomery County Enterprise Fund.
(5) Revenue notes for the Cabin John Ice Rink were issued in fiscal year 2000.

Source: The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

TABLE T-15
Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years
MONTGOMERY COUNTY
Total Personal

Income Per Capita Labor Unemployment Registered

Year Population (1) 000's omitted (2,3) Income (4) Force (5) Rate  (6) Pupils (7)
2000 877,495 $ 43,575,224 $ 49,659 489,050 26 % 130,689
2001 894,878 45,537,627 50,887 490,213 3.1 134,180
2002 908,233 47,041,902 51,795 496,101 35 136,832
2003 917,160 48,533,753 52,917 496,223 3.3 138,891
2004 923,094 51,907,936 56,233 497,204 3.2 139,203
2005 930,286 55,806,685 59,989 505,692 3.1 139,337
2006 936,070 59,458,070 63,519 514,163 2.8 139,387
2007 941,491 63,573,952 67,525 512,719 2.7 137,798
2008 949,591 65,300,000 68,766 513,649 3.2 137,745
2009 957,760 67,100,000 70,059 509,926 5.4 137,763

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY
Total Personal

Income Per Capita Labor Unemployment Registered

Year Population (8) 000's omitted (2) Income (2) Force (9) Rate  (6) Pupils (10)
2000 802,712 $ 23,195,413 $ 28,894 452,067 43 % 131,059
2001 815,927 24,414,098 29,909 485,077 4.0 133,723
2002 825,815 25,445,330 30,783 471,602 5.1 135,039
2003 832,761 26,248,500 31,429 475,007 5.2 135,439
2004 837,837 28,162,399 33,461 440,424 4.5 137,285
2005 842,764 29,422,711 34,912 445,124 4.5 136,095
2006 841,315 30,137,985 36,108 454,601 4.1 133,325
2007 828,770 30,994,985 37,555 448,144 3.7 131,014
2008 820,852 n. a. n. a. 450,970 4.5 129,752
2009 n. a. n. a. n. a. 443,244 6.9 127,977

Notes:

(1) Source: Data for 2000-2008 from the U.S. Bureau of the Census, data for 2009 estimated by the Montgomery County
Department of Finance

(2) Source: Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce (Income data for 2008 and 2009 is not currently available)

(3) Source: Data for 2008 - 2009 are estimates derived by the Montgomery County Department of Finance

(4) Source: Per Capita Income is derived by dividing personal income by population

(5) Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics, U.S. Department of Labor

(6) Source: Maryland Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulations. Represents yearly average figures.

(7) Source: Office of Management and Budget, Montgomery County

(8) Source: U.S. Bureau of the Census, Population Estimates Branch

(9) Source: Maryland Department of Labor, Career and Workforce Information

(10) Source: www.mdreportcard.org

136



s1eak snouen 1ebpng fenuuy paidopy uoissiwwo) Buluueld pue sied 8yl :82In0S

TT9V0'T 0€'970'T 2Sv00'T 0v'SOT'T 67'680'T CTTET'T o'IvT'T 98'9VT'T 9T'0ST'T G/.'90T'T
09701 0€'0TT 0,'60T 0Lv02 ov'sTe 0g°62¢ Sg'9¢¢ S9°'TEC 09°'s€C S8'T1C
T.'T69 ¥2'€89 2¥'9599 08'299 0S'¥¥9 01’299 05789 50229 0£'089 ¥¥'659
0s'e 0s'€ 00'e 00°€ oT'e oT'e 0T'e 0T'T oT'T 0T'T
TS°08T TT6.T 2ZvLT 0S'T8T 00°'S.T 0€'06T 0€°L6T 0Z'v6T S6'86T 00'86T
SZ9TT TLYTT 0T'STT 00'8TT 06'€TT 00'8TT erat A o' LTT ST9TT 0S'STT
9.¥0T 11°20T 0€'T0T 08'90T 0£'86 0€20T S2'L0T 06°'60T 06'0TT 0t'S0T
¥8'€9 5929 §9'59 0€°29 S0°'S9 5929 S2°69 5069 09°0L 12°99
2LYTT S8°CTT 0S°LTT 0Z'TIT 0SCTT 0G'STT SO'STT 0G'STT 0S¥TT 05'80T
£¥'8¢ 0G'8¢ 0592 0L'le 0022 0§22 0592 08¢ 0622 lL262
€V'ee 8862 S8'8T 05'0¢ S6'8T S0'9T 0€'9T 0T'LT 08'9T 00CT
¥.°0T 0S'TT 0T'0T 06'8 0L, 00°0T 008 00'8 008 008
€89 06'9 - - - - - - - -
€TL L - - - - - - - -

- - - 00'6T 00'6T 00'ST 0597 00T ov'ST ov'ST
1G°Te §59°€C 0c've 06°€ 00y 00¢C - - - -
SO'TLT TE69T 0ov'LST 06'TST 09°'€ST 00'6ST 0S'T9T 02°'09T 0g'LST 0,°09T
§5'8¢ 0g'TE 06'9¢ 0€9¢ 08'9¢ 0082 08'6¢ 0582 0582 00°0¢
zeee 00°SE 09°'S¢ 0582 09'v¢ 08'v¢ ov've 08'v¢ 0E've 0¢'se
T0LT - - - - - - - - -
68°LT - - - - - - - - -
19°€C - - - - - - - - -

- yAN:14 00'TY 0T'0% 0cov LTy Seey o'y 02'8¢ 06°'LE
zeee 11°8€ 00°8¢ 00'6€ 0L'EY oL'vy S.'Sy 0L'Sy 0Z'9% 0S'9%
- (0]5974 0og'e or'y 0S'v 0S'v 0S'v 0S'v 0S'v 00'S
1G9°'S¢ 092 0g'6 oT'TT 0e'TT 08¢t ov'et 08'¢T 0T €T 0T’ €T

28'€ LL°€ og'e 0S¢ 0S¢ 0S¢ 0oge 0S¢ 0S¢ 00'€
S.'8L SV'e8 00'T8 00'T8 66'GL 25°9. 1T 96°LL 96'9L 9Ly,
S20 S¢'0 S¢0 S0 S¢0 S0 S¢0 S0 S20 S¢0
SLCT 0LeT 00'TT 00'TT 056 ov'6 ov'6 S.'6 S.'8 S.'8
0T'6¢ 09'6¢ 0€'6C 0€'6¢ 0€'8¢ 0g'8¢ 0062 0€'6¢ 08'8¢ 098¢
S.°9¢ 0S'v¢ SL'€e §lL€C SL'€e SEve S0've Seve SLve SsLze
066 0’91 0,97 0L'9T 6T VT [4A 4" 144" 11474" 144" 144"
6002 800C 2002 9002 5002 002 €002 2002 T00Z 0002
Jea\ [easi4
ALNNOD AHINOOLINON
SIeaA [edslH Ua] 1se
uonoun4 Aq seakojdw3 JUSWUISA0S) €10 |
9T-1 319vL

s1ealIoM [e10 ]

sal|Ioed [ednynd pue [euoneaiday
SsalIANOY adA-ssauisng

aoueudlUle|\ pue suoleladQ dled [eloL
juswabeue Auadoid
uolfiay uiayinos
uolfiay uiayuoN
oueUBUIE [e1IUSD
$92IN0SaY [einteN
921|0d >.led
wawdoanaq red
Buluueld spim-Aiunod
ABojouyoa | pue yoseasay
Juswabeuep sanioe
S92IMBS Juswalbeuey
Syled Jo wapuajuuadns
Syred Jo 1oyalg
:9ouRUBIUIRI pue suoiesadQ died

Buiuoz pue Buluue|d Aunod eoL

ABojouyss | pue yoseasay

MaInay Juawdojanag

ubisaq ueqin

Buluue|q uoneuodsuel |

Bujuue|d feyuswuoliaug

Buluue|d spim-Aiunod

Bujuue|q paseg-Aunwwod

Bujuue|d aibsrens

S92IMBS Juawabeuepy

1030811 Buluueld ay) jo 3o
:Buiuoz pue Bujuue|d fiunod

JUSWUIBA0D [eIBUD
pleog waisAS BN
juswyredaq [eba
@oueUlS Jo Juawedaq
Juswaleue|y pue S89IN0Say uewnH jo Juswyedaq
9210 SIBUOISSIWWOD

S9IHANJY [eluBWUIBA0D

NOISSINIWOD ONINNVTd ANV MdVd 1VLIdVYO TYNOILVYN-ANVIAGVIA IHL

137



sreak snouen ‘196png [enuuy padopy uoissiwwo) Buluueld pue sied 8yl :82In0S

06°LLT'C S0°090°2 8T'€86'T 86'EV6'T €7°088'T €0'GEL'T ET'GEL'T STYrL'T S8'0TL'T GE'669'T
00°€TC 00'8T¢ 05°'9TC 05202 05'60C 05°0TC (A4 05°LTC 0E°LYT 05'6€T
0S'ET6 08'6v8 02’528 0C'TT8 00882 09°2€9 09°5€9 09°0%9 00'TS9 00759
0g'8TL 09°029 09759 0T ¥¥9 0v'ce9 00¢Ly 00°€LY 0991 0S¢y 0S°'6EY
0L¥9T 0,°09T OT'19T 0T'6ST 09°2ST 09°2ST 09'6ST 00'T9T 0S'9.T 0S°¢Te
006 006 - - - - - - - -
00¢C - - - - - - - - -
0S'6T 056 056 008 00’8 00'e 00'e 00'€ 00'¢C 00'c
06652 05'80L 09789 09°089 05°099 05°099 0.°0¥9 09'6€9 00°099 00°999
0T ove 0T°'82¢ 09'6TC 09'6TC 0T'¥0Z 0T'¥0Z 0T2c0C 00°c0Z 00'8T¢ 00'¥TC
09'T.C 05°05¢ 0S'eve 0S°€ve 05°5€C 0S'v€T 0scee 00°€€T 00°6€C 00°6€C
00'T9 00°¢s 00'TS 008 00y 00y 00°'8¥ 00°'8¥ 00°6% 00°6%
0S°EVT 09°L€T 08'0€T 08'6CT 0CveT 0Cc'veT or'ecT or'ecT 00'TCT 00'TCT
0297 0zZ'SsT - - - - - - - -
0S°2¢ 0T's¢ 0L'6€ 0.°6€ 0L'6€ 0L'0v 0L'v€ ocee 00°€e 00°€e
09'70C 0T'10C €59'8.T 87,91 €L'9ST €L'G9T €LV9T 0T'69T OT'v.T 09'€LT
0022 00°S¢ 0S°€C 00¢ce 00°¢ce 00°0C 0T'TC 0Lce 0L'S¢ -
05°6€ 00cy 05°'sE 00'v€ 00ce 00 TE 08'6¢ 09°0€ 09°0€ -
09°'5¢ 09'v¢ 0S°€C 00°€C 00¢e 00°€C 08'TC 00¢ce 0092 0o'ze

- - - - - - - - - 00°0T

- - - - - - - - - 00°0T

- - - - - - - - - 09°CT

- - - - - 00¥T 06°€T 00¥T 00¥T 00vT
08°ey 08'SY €9°€E 88°9¢ €Tve €0'TC €6°CC 09'v¢ 09°€C 09°€C

- - - - - - - - - 00'8T
0.¢S 0L'6v ov'8y 0997 09°ey 0Lcy 0C'TY 0L'6€ 0C'TY 0C'6C
009T 00¥T 00¥T 00°'ST 00°€T 00¥T 00¥T 0S°'ST 00°€T 0cve
06'98 G9'¢8 GE'6L 0c'LL 0L'SL 0L'SL 099, Sv'LL S¥'8L GZ9L

6002 800Z 2002 9002 5002 002 €002 2002 T00C 0002

Jea\ [easi4
ALNNOD S.394039 3ONIdd
Slea A [eosid ua] 1seT
uonoun4 Aq saakojdw3 JUSWUISA0S) €10 |
panunuod
9T-1 319vL

s1eakyIoM [e10]

sanijioe [ein)nd pue [euonealday
Sa1lIANOY adA]-ssauisng

swelbold uoneaiday [eo |
suoneladQ ealy
suonesado Aujioe4
suonedIuNWWOoD % |
juswdojaAaQ pue uoneAsIuIWPY
20IJJ0O sJo1alg
swelboid uonealday

2oueUdUIRN pue suoneladQ led [e101
suoneladQ ealy
suonesado Aujioe4
juswdojanag pue Buluueld sed
921]0d led
suoneduNWWOoD % |
Jo30a.41d 8y1 JO YO
:90URUB)URRI pue suonesadQ died

Buiuoz pue Buluueld Auno) [elol

J21Ua) UoneWIO|
Buluueld apim-Aiunod
Juawaleue|y uorewioyu]
ubisaq ueqin
uoneuodsuel |
$92IN0S3Y [eiNlEN
Auoyiny uswdojanapay
Buluueld Anunwwo)
MBINSY JWIad uonewIoju|
Mmalnay Juawdojanag
20IJ0O sJopalg

:Buluoz pue Buluueld Aunod

JUBWIUIBAOY) [eIausD)

S311IAII0Y [RIUBWIUIBA0D

NOISSININOD ONINNVTd ANV MdVd 1VLIdVYO TYNOILVYN-ANVIAGVIA IHL

138



"a|qe|ieAe jou - e/u
s1eak snouen ‘196png [enuuy pasodoid uoissiwwo) Buiuue|d pue sed ayl :99In0S

62l'le 65€0€ ¥96'62 €9T'6E 99v'LE €.8'T¢ TOE2E T6T'TE 00T'0E G6€'8¢ SJBWO0ISND J3U3D 8J3U3I3U0D JO JBaquINN
G9G'zey 022'061 GTE'69S 211961 160'02S €9G'V61 899°85¢€ 829'92S 1SE'6TY 996'T6V siawolsny sailjide died Jo JsaquinN
€0T'96 0TS'8S T08CET 6€8'6ET 09.'0vT ¥709'GST 698'6ST TIG'GYT 00v'8YT €0G'9GT SIBWOISND Sluua ] Jloopuj Jo JIsaquinN
9€€'06€ 97,801 100'67¥ £98'651 etorale] a4 €61'921 8TE'8TY 799'86€ 6..'18€ 68€'TST SIaW01ISNY Huly 89| Jo JaquinN
:sanijioed [ednynd pue [euoneslday

SallANoY adA]-ssauisng

118'L€ 00.L'9% 808'GYy [efetoxolos Gee'se e/ e/ e/u 7 e/ swelbold aineN Buipusny s1swolsnd o JsquinN
86.°L ¥0T'. 0€8'9 218's 69G'G 00€'S €9v'g 006'€ 006'€ 2/8'¢ paiajdwo) sisenbay 821nI8S
8 ove 78T VT €€ og [45 e/u 70 e/ pala|dwo) sisanbay soueusiurely Jofe
T8G'T 00T'T G62'T 2IS'T 00€'T 00¢'T 0002 e/ e/u B/u s108l01d uoneIsalo}ay Joj palue|d seail
orT L6¢C 08y ote L0V |44 TEO'T 6¢S e/ e/u paiinboy puepyied Jo s8I0y [e10L
ZT 0T 9 9 9T ) 2z 6 e/ B/u paiajdwo) suonenousy punoibAe|d jo ssquiny
¥10'6 288'6 1VS'6 S/1'6 S/v'6 G0S'6 6€2'6 282'6 950'6 689/ panss| suwliad ied Jo JjsaquinN
:@0uBUB)UIRI pue suoneladQ ed
9/S'VT 169'G oov'eg orT'e GS08'T 00S' 980°C e/u e/ e/ serepdn S|9 Jo JaquinN
¥29'€ 080°‘€ 000°‘€ 008z 000°C €96'T e/ 7 7 e/ SHSIA @HSgaM Alreq jo JaquinnN
eu eu 09T 60T 474" L0T GET 89 TL 5SS SMaIAaY Sue|d 108(01d pue ue|d SIS JO JaquinN
(014 6€ (014 s 99 1% €9 GcT 9¢T e/ S8IpnIS uoneuodsuel] Jo JaquinN
174" 0ct 8¢ GE g€ o€ 9¢ e/u e/u e/u SMmaInay Buluueld Aloreinbay jo JaquinN
14 - L 9 zT 6 8 € v S paja|dwo) sue|d

uBsWpUBsWWY dep [euondss 7 JalSel Jo JaquinN
:Buiuoz pue Buiuuelq Aiunod

ALNNOD AYFNOOLNON

JAZRS €8E'E 820t 818'C T85'C ¥60°C CLL'T 6vS'T veE'T veE'T Ai010811Q Ul SI0pUSA A4IN JO JaquinN
€65'0¢C v15'6T 181'8T TvL'LT v10'LT ST0'9T TLT'ST SOT'VT 9/6'CT 02S'TT A101032.1Q Ul SIOPUBA JO JaqUINN
9.€ 0S¢ ooy 14 c9€ 00¢ 00¢ ST L1 vee PasiIBAPY suonisod JO JaquinN

:9PIM-UOISSIWWOD JUBWIUIBAOS) [18us9)
S31IAIIOY [RIUBWIUIBA0D)

600¢ 800¢ 100¢ 900¢ SG00¢ ¥00¢ €00¢ ¢00¢ T00C 000¢

JeaA [edsiy

SIea\ [eosi4 ua] 1se
uonoun4 Aq siojeaipu| Bunesado

/T-1319vL
NOISSINNOD ONINNV1d ANV HdVd TVLIdVYO TVNOILYN-ANVIAAVIN FHL

139



a|qe|ieAe Jou - e/u

sreak snouen ‘196png fenuuy pasodoid UoIssiWWo) Buluue|d pue yied ayl :99In0S

Tes'Le §TE'SE zer'Le 295'8¢ [t 7AVAS T76'9€ 908'TY 006°0€ e/u T18'72
259'9ze ovg'ove 1v1'8.¢2 §6¢°',.2 ¥0€'89¢2 ovi'ese T90'91¢ Ge6'l2e 0T0'cze 0T0'€2e
000'TE 795°9€ SSe've 000°L2 006°L2 008'9T 00L°TT 09€'TT 0se'6¢ 000°0€
00S'.2 00082 00S'92 00092 00S'ee 00022 00022 0006 e/u '/
000'76 85578 v.2'T18 955'06 198'T6 201’68 T95'88 0S9°0TT S€.°20T T.2'€0T
059°S 998'9 18€'S 8/0'S 6697 1/8'% 000 €86'T ¥88'T z8e'e
000°'16¢ 000'062 2ve's6e 8'v8¢2 vE€8'T.LC 2Ll'sle Ge8'zee 1.8'86¢ ¥60'18¢ 168'78¢
008'CT 000°CT 000°€T 007'ST 000'8T 000°02 000'8T 000'8T 000'8T 000'8T
000'61 9ge' Ly v61'81 GST'TS ove'ey 0€0'vE 8T.'eE oov'ee 696'€T 962'ST
0SS°L 00T'L 0099 0S¥'9 0709 869'S 285'S 260'S 796'Y 09L'v
878 [4<7A 609 969 999 €99 90, 8SY 0€9 6659
00L'v 009'v Tes'y €9E'Y v6v'S 9/9'v 00v's 00€'s 00€'s 0009
00089 TEE'09 2L1'S9 6T0'88 ove'LL TEE'9L 000°'€S 000°'2i €TT'2e 000'09
00S'S9T 66.'09T 2L€'29T 9ve'ZST LT8'CST 02Z€e'16 €6T'6E 8967y %2002 008‘€e
0008 821'8 000'TT S¥9'6 T16'0T T16'0T e/ ST2'TT TTT'ST e/
0089 692'L 0002 6¥T'0T 00T, GOT'L e/u 90T'L 10L'S Be/u
00V'T €2e'T €26'T GGE'Z €8.'T T6L'T 't VIT'T €20'T YNAS
8T¢ 28¢ Ive 8T¢ €0€ 69¢€ 8€e Yy S6¢ §S9¢
8¢¢ 11¢ 00¢ 90¢ ove c1e c1e S7AN €ST e/
00z'e 006'C 0sv'e 0LL°C 0€0'C ove'e 986'T 60E'T 152'T e/u
oy €9 69 06 9/ 1L 88 86 68 =70
0ST 2sT 0L €9T 1474 1474 /ST €TT 62¢ e/

ALNNOD S 394039 30NIdd

6002 800¢ 1,002 900¢ S00¢ 00¢ £00¢ 200¢ 100¢ 000¢
parewnsa
SIea A [edsld U3 1seT
uonoun4 Ag sioreoipuj Buiresado
panunuod
/T-1 31avLl

(421U uelIsanb3) asuepusny JO JAquINN
(eualy 92e|d MOYS) 8duUepuaNy 4O JaquinN
SUOISSIWPY [243USD Muly 39| JO JaquINN
sjuedioied sse|D Jslua) ssaui4 Jo JaquinN
4109 JO spunoy Jo Jaquinn

sa||ioe- [eJn)ND pue [euonesldsy

sanAnoy adA1-ssauisng

pa1oNpuUo) Sasse|D Jsluad Alunwiwo) eloL

souepUBNY S8NIANDY sonenby [ejo )

sjuedioired suods YINoA Jo Jaquiny

(SONS 210ISIH) SIONSIA WNISN JO JBqUINN
‘sweiboid uonesosy

PamO|A SSeIS JO SaIoy
s[eyuay Aladolid d10ISIH JO JaquinN
panss| siwiad Ajjioe4 UOISSIWWOD JO Jaquiny
(Woduy yred aba)j0D) SIONUSIA WN3SNIA JO JIaquinN
S93puslly UoIeINP aInteN Jo JaquinN
:@0uRUBIUIRIN pue suonelado died

0} papuodsay s|ieDd auoyda|a] Jo JaquinN
PaAIaS sIawoIsnD ul-y[eA Jo JaquinN
PanIaoay S[ellajay [eJUBWUOIIAUT JO JaquinN
panIeoay sfellajey uoneuodsuel] Jo JaquinN
paJania@ sisanbay S| jo JaquinN
palajdwo) sisanbay ysaq djaH jo JaquinN
suonealddy Buiuoz maN jo JaquinN
sue|d Areulwiald Joj suonealddy maN Jo JlaquinN
:Buiuoz pue Buluueld Aiunod
S3I1AIIOY [RIUBWUIBA0D)

NOISSINWOD ONINNVTd ANV HdVd TVLIdVO TYNOILVYN-ANVIAGVIN FHL

140



The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission

TABLE T-18
Capital Asset Statistics by Function
Last Five Fiscal Years
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
COMMISSION-WIDE

Governmental Activities

General Government:
Office Building 1 1 1 1 1

MONTGOMERY COUNTY

Governmental Activities

County Planning and Zoning:
Office Building 1 1 1 1 1

Park Operations and Maintenance:
Athletic Fields 13 356 360 361 359
Basketball Courts 159 173 173 208 208
Campsites 102 102 102 102 102
Dog Parks - 3 4 4 4
Historic Buildings 27 27 27 27 27
Office Building 13 13 13 13 13
Picnic Shelters 131 131 190 191 194
Playgrounds 249 255 284 290 291
Recreation Buildings 32 32 32 32 31
Rental Buildings 61 61 61 61 61
Skateboard Park - - 1 1 1
Tennis Courts 139 153 153 305 305

Business-Type Activities

Recreational and Cultural Facilities:
Antique Carousel 1 1 1 1 1
Conference Centers 3 3 3 3 3
Equestrian Centers 5 5 5 5 5
Golf Courses 4 4 - - -
Ice Rinks 2 2 2 2 2
Indoor Tennis Facilities 2 2 2 2 2
Miniature Trains 2 2 2 2 2
Miniature Golf Course - 1 1 1 1
Splash Park - 1 1 1 1

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY

Governmental Activities

Park Operations and Maintenance:
Office Building 14 14 14 14 14
Recreation Buildings 24 24 24 25 25
Picnic Shelters 86 86 87 88 88
Playgrounds 209 209 223 227 227
Athletic Fields 380 380 383 389 390
Tennis Courts 160 160 161 163 163
Basketball Courts 211 211 211 213 214

Recreation Programs:
Historic Buildings 15 15 15 15 15
Community Centers 29 29 30 30 30
Swimming Pools 10 10 10 10 10

Business-Type Activities

Recreational and Cultural Facilities:
Ice Rinks 2 2 2 2 2
Golf Courses 3 3 3 3 3
Tennis Bubbles 2 2 2 2 2
Equestrian Center 1 1 1 1 1
Sports and Learning Complex 1 1 1 1 1
Trap and Skeet Range 1 1 1 1 1
Marina 1 1 1 1 1
Airport 1 1 1 1 1

(1) Data for 2000-2004 not readily available

(2) The four Montgomery County golf courses have been leased to the Montgomery County Revenue
Authority as of October 2006.

Source: The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission, Finance Department
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

Employer

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Montgomery County Public Schools
U.S. Department of Defense
U.S. Department of Commerce
Montgomery County Government
Lockheed Martin
Adventist Healthcare
Marriott International, Inc. (Headquarters)
Giant Food Corporation
Holy Cross Hospital
Chevy Chase Bank

Total

Employer

United Parcel Service
Giant Food, Inc.
Verizon
Dimensions Health Corporation
Safeway Stores, Inc.
Shoppers Food Warehouse
Chevy Chase Bank
Target
Southern Maryland Hospital Center
Computer Science Corporation
Bell Atlantic Corp./Verizon
Hughes STX
Allied technical Services

Total

TABLE T-19
Principal Employers
Current Fiscal Year and Nine Years Ago
MONTGOMERY COUNTY
2009 (1) 2000
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
County County
Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank  Employment
39,979 1 8.36 % 30,463 1 6.77
20,953 2 4.38 18,066 2 4.02
14,709 3 3.07 14,598 3 3.24
8,749 4 1.83 8,940 4 1.99
8,525 5 1.78 7,626 5 1.70
7,000 6 1.46 4,200 9 0.93
6,911 7 1.44 6,000 6 1.33
3,957 8 0.83 3,500 10 0.78
3,816 9 0.80 5,250 7 1.17
3,200 10 0.67 * -
* - 4,500 8 1.00
117,799 24.62 % 103,143 22.93
PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY
2008 (2) 1999 (2)
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
Private Sector County Private Sector County
Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank  Employment
4,220 1 0.94 % 2,280 5 0.53
3,609 2 0.80 4,375 1 1.03
2,738 3 0.61 - - -
2,500 4 0.55 2,510 2 0.59
2,400 5 0.53 2,400 3 0.56
1,975 6 0.44 1,975 6 0.46
1,456 7 0.32 - - -
1,400 8 0.31 - - -
1,300 9 0.29 1,300 7 0.30
1,150 10 0.26 1,209 8 0.28
* - 2,328 4 0.55
- - - 898 9 0.21
* - - 897 10 0.21
22,748 5.05 % 20,172 4.72

Note: (1) The employee numbers listed are best estimates taken during the 4th quarter of 2008 from various sources, including first-hand
research by the County's Department of Economic Development, the Montgomery County Department of Park and Planning

Research and Technology Center, CoStar Tenant, and company Internet websites.

(2) In 2009, Information is not yet available. The number of employees in FY 1999 is provided for the ten year comparison.

* Employer is not one of the largest employers during the year noted.

Source: Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments.

142

%

%

%

%



wawedaq aoueuld ‘uoissiwwo) Buiuue|d pue yied [endeD reuoireN-puejlieiy 8yl :92inos

(8es'v69'2) $ (602'8ST) $ (s8T'6€2'T) $ (6E0'EL) $ €66'LTT $ (1€8'GEQ) $ (602'9.2) $ (559'v19) $ (€06'¥8T)
006'086'8 00v' vz 00Z'9ZT'Y 00298 009'28€ 00G'9S. 00T'956 006'282'C 00G'GYT
8.1'88 0LT'LT 900'82 - 192'6T - - 891'8T 199'S
(916'€92'TT) (6L2'6TY) (t6€'€6E'S) (6€L'6ST) (¥28'€82) (1€€'266) (608'z€2'T) (€20'9v6'2) (06's€€)
¥86'892'C 119'€C 119'022'T 111°) T¥9'G8 ¥25'STT 10Z'S6 6TY'709 8ZT'9TT
(ze6'v617'6) (z91'96€) (YTL'2LT'Y) (296'TST) (eez's6T) (208'9.8) (809'2€T'T) (Y09'TvE'2) (zv8'612)
ZLT'9vZ'6T S6E'6YY 609'TTG'L 8ZEBTIV'T 8€6'7SS 18L'T6E'T Gzz'ee9’s 882'508'€ 209087
0vZ'15L'6  $ €€T'es $ GBB8'8EE'E $ 99€/92'T $ G0L'9SE ¢ 086'VIS $ L19'G6V'C $ ¥BI'EIV'T  $ 09209 $
S[eloL eulepn xajdwo)d I81u8D syred syury S8sIN0D eualy uodiy
Bingsuape|g Buiurea 199S [feuoibay 99| J09 asodundiiniy
pue suods pue dei| JIEIUETe)
ueisanbg
AINNOD S. 394039 IONIAd
(7€6'96T) $ €TE'€9 $ 86E'EIT $ (zeT'65€) $ (160'762) $ (Otr'olT) $
000'6T9 - - 000'EYS - 0009
(2£9'96T) 6€5'Ge 96T'v2 (rzv'6ST) (€86'98) -
(z9z'619) v11'1EY 202'6€T (80L'zvL) (r11°202) (9Tv'9t2)
9€6'€9€'T /9€'8TT €/G'TY 9z€£'289 ¥19'88Y 950'€€
v.9'7v. TPT'9GS G//'08T (z8e'09) 005'182 (09€'€T2)
¥€9'€LL°L 9962122 ZSG'/0T'T 6t7'828'C 89€'8/ 669'97S
80€'8TS'8 $ /0.'89.'C $ 12€'882'T $ 190'89L'€ ¢ 898'6SE $ 6Ec'eee  $
s[elol salnl|Ioe sluua | syuY S9sIN0) [SEE e}
Yled Joopu| 9| J09 ELIIETEIo]e)
AINNOD AYIWODINOW
SanIioe4 [euoneanay
6002 ‘0E aunr papu3 JeaA [edsid ay) 104
sasuadx3 pue sanUaAdy JO 9|NPaYIS PasUspuUodD
NOILVINHOANI ASI4dYILNT TVLNINITAdNS
0z-1 dlqeL

NOISSININOD 9NINNVY1d ANV MdVd 1V1IdVO TYNOILYN-ANVITALVIA IHL

(sso7) awoou| 18N
(InQ) u| sisysuel |
uonnquuo) fendeD
(sesuadx3) sanuanay bBuneiadouon

(sso7) awoou| Bunesado
uoneroaidag

uoleloaidaq alojeg

(sso7) awoou| Bunesado
uoneloaidaq aiojeg sasuadxg Buiresado
sanuanay bBunesado

(sso7) awoou| 18N
(InQ) u| siajsuel |
(sesuadx3) senuanay BuneiadouoN

(sso7) awoou| bunelado
uonelaidag

uoneloaidaq alojeg

(sso7) awoou| Bunelado
uonelnaidaq alojeg sasuadx3 Bunesado
sanuanay bBunelado

143



ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The following individuals contributed to the preparation of this Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report:

Barbara A. Walsh
David B. Rowland
and
Valerie Berton
Andrea G. Davey
Harion R. Davis
Tanya R. Hankton
Sharon Jones
Maranda Jones-Anderson
Richard E. King
Deloris M. Kirby
Gwendolyn Lindsay
Latisha A. Parker
Dolente Thomas
Marquia L. Tillery
Virgilio P. Vehemente
Al Warfield
John Williams
Mary L. Williford

144



Photo Index

Cover:

The new Vansville Community Center boasts numerous GREEN technologies
making it an environmentally friendly building. After School Care participants play a
game of Dodgeball at the Vansville Community Center.

Page 9:

Father and son take advantage of the wide open space at the Agricultural History Farm
Park...M-NCPPC celebrates Asian Pacific Heritage Month annually with a showcase of
cultural entertainment, food, and good times...Volunteers demonstrate ‘old-time’ toys
during Arbor Day at the Agricultural History Farm Park in Derwood, MD...Judo is among
the martial arts class offerings that blend mind, body and spirit...The Cub Scout’s
monkey bridge is a popular attraction at Germantown’s Oktoberfest hosted by Ridge
Road Recreational Park...Centenarians gather annually at the Centenarian event to
celebrate with food, fun, and friends...Day campers participate in a bug hunt at
Woodlawn Manor Park...Parks and park facilities are kept secure around the clock by
The Maryland-National Capital Park Police utilizing the best in police technology.

Photo Credits:
Cassi Hayden (Prince George’s County): Cover, pages 9, 20, 108, and 116.
Francine Bethea (Montgomery County): pages 1, 9, 104, 112, and 120.
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